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PART |
Item 1. Business

OVERVIEW
Who We Are

IAC is a leading media and internet company coneplrisf more than 150 brands and products, includgigcom, About.com, Match.col
HomeAdvisor and Vimeo. Focused in the areas oftkeapplications, online dating, local and medi's family of websites is one of largest
in the world, with more than a billion monthly wisiacross more than 100 countries. The resultp@fations of IAC's various businesses are
reported within the following five segments: SeakcApplications, Match, Local, Media and Other.

For information regarding the results of operatioh$AC's reportable segments, as well as thepeesve contributions to IAC's
consolidated results of operations, see “ltem 7-ag@ment's Discussion and Analysis of Financial @mmdand Results of Operations”
beginning on page 23 and “ltem 8-Consolidated FraiStatements and Supplementary Data,” beginoimpage 42.

All references to “IAC,” the “Company,” “we,” “ourbr “us” in this report are to IAC/InterActiveCorp.

Our History

IAC, initially a hybrid media/electronic retailingpmpany, was incorporated in July 1986 in Delawarder the name Silver King
Broadcasting Company, Inc. After several name ceauffirst to HSN, Inc., then to USA Networks, INdSA Interactive and InterActiveCorp,
and finally to IAC/InterActiveCorp) and the comptat of a number of significant corporate transatiiover the years, the Company
transformed itself into a leading media and intecoenpany.

From 1997 through 2001, the Company acquired ar@alting interest in Ticketmaster Group (and the a@mmg interest in 1998) and Ho
Reservations Network (later renamed Hotels.comyvelbas acquired Match.com and other smaller ememe companies. As its
transformation from a hybrid media/electronic réirtgi company continued to evolve, in May 2002, @@mmpany acquired a controlling interest
in Expedia.com and contributed its entertainmesétssto Vivendi Universal Entertainment LLLP, or KLk joint venture then controlled by
Vivendi. The Company continued to grow its poribadif e-commerce companies by acquiring all of theras of Expedia.com, Hotels.com anc
Ticketmaster that it did not previously own, togativith a number of other e-commerce companiesdugirng LendingTree and Hotwire), in
2003.

In 2005, IAC acquired Ask Jeeves, Inc. (now known/C Search & Media, Inc.) and, on August 9, 20@&mpleted the separation of its
travel and travelrelated businesses and investments into an indepépdblic company called Expedia, Inc. That y&&€ also sold its
common and preferred interests in VUE to NBC Ursaér

In December 2006, the Company acquired Connectetlvies, LLC, which at that time owned and oper&etlegeHumor.com and
Vimeo. The Company transferred all of Vimeo’s asseta separate, wholly-owned subsidiary of IAQGn¥o, LLC, in July 2008.

In July 2008, the Company acquired the Lexico Bihirtig Group, owner of various reference websiteguding Dictionary.com. On
August 20, 2008, IAC separated into five publicgded companies: IAC, HSN, Inc., Interval Leisur®@, Inc., Ticketmaster and
Tree.com, Inc.

In June 2009, we sold the European operations ¢éiMzom to Meetic S.A. ("Meetic"), a leading Eurapeonline dating company base:
France, in exchange for a 27% interest in Meetitag5 million note. In July 2009, we acquired Rebfedia, Inc., operator of a number of
demographically targeted dating websites.

In December 2010, we exchanged the stock of a wholined subsidiary that held our Evite, Gifts.com &@ Advertising Solutions
businesses and approximately $218 million in caslsdibstantially all of Liberty Media Corporatioequity stake in IAC.

In February 2011, we acquired OkCupid, arsapported online personals service. During the thirarter of 2011, we increased our
ownership stake in Meetic to 81%. In September 20&2acquired The About Group, which primarily dstsof About.com, a comprehensive
online content and reference library. In Decemii&r22 we acquired Tutor, an online tutoring service.
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In early 2014, we acquired the remaining publichded shares of Meetic for approximately $72 millibrough a successful tender offe
France and the businesses within ValueClick’s “Odvaed Operated” reporting segment, including Inyestia and PriceRunner, for $80
million.

EQUITY OWNERSHIP AND VOTE

IAC has outstanding shares of common stock, with\ate per share, and Class B common stock, witlrd&es per share and which are
convertible into common stock on a share for shasgs. As of January 31, 2014, Barry Diller, IAClsairman and Senior Executive, owned
5,789,499 shares of Class B common stock (theeb8hares") representing 100% of IAC's outstan@ilags B common stock and
approximately 43.1% of the outstanding total votiogver of IAC.

Pursuant to an agreement between Mr. Diller and, léeCtain transfer restrictions apply to 1.5 milliof the Diller Shares, including a
requirement that, until December 1, 2015 and exfmegtansfers to certain permitted transferees,Diller Shares must first be converted into
common stock in order to be transferred. In addjtpursuant to an amended and restated governgreenaent between IAC and Mr. Diller,
for so long as Mr. Diller serves as IAC's Chairnazial Senior Executive, he generally has the rigkbttsent to limited matters in the event-
IAC's ratio of total debt to EBITDA (as definedtime governance agreement) equals or exceeds fometover a continuous twelve-month
period.

As a result of Mr. Diller's ownership interest, gt power and the contractual rights described abbir. Diller is currently in a position
influence, subject to our organizational documamis Delaware law, the composition of IAC's BoardDatctors and the outcome of corpor
actions requiring shareholder approval, such agensy business combinations and dispositions etsssmong other corporate transactions.
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DESCRIPTION OF IAC BUSINESSES
Search & Applications

Overview

Our Search & Applications segment consists of:

*  Websites, including Ask.com, About.com, Dictiopnaom and Citysearch.com (among other propertiegdugh which we provide
search services and content; and

» Applications, including our direct to consumemahloadable applications operations (“B2C") and partnership operations (“B2R”

Our Websites and Applications businesses providecheservices to our users. These search senécesally involve the generation and
display of a set of hyperlinks to websites deensbebant to search queries entered by users. Itiaddd these algorithmic search results, paic
listings are also generally displayed in responssearch queries. Paid listings are advertisentispdayed on search results pages that
generally contain a link to an advertiser's web$ttad listings are generally displayed based gnvkeds selected by the advertiser. The paid
listings we display are supplied to us by Google [(Google”) pursuant to a services agreement @ittogle that expires on March 31, 2016.

Websites

Our Websites business, through which we providecheaontent and other services, primarily congi$the following destination
websites:

» Ask.com, which provides general search serviaesyell as question and answer services thatgealirect answers to
natural-language questions;

*  About.com, which provides detailed informatiardacontent written by independent, freelance sulnjgtter experts across hundreds
of vertical categories;

» Dictionary.com, which provides online dictionargference, educational and learning services

e Citysearch.com, InsiderPages.com and Urbanspoom.through which consumers can access local raetéhformation and reviews
online.

Our Websites business also includes the resul@itgGrid, an advertising network that integratesdlocontent and advertising for
distribution to both affiliated and third party gishers across web and mobile platforms.

Applications

Our B2C operations develop, market and distributargety of downloadable applications that offeenssthe ability to access search
services, as well as engage in a number of othieitées online, such as play games, send e-casorate e-mails and web pages and explor
select vertical categories. The majority of our B&#plications are toolbars, which consist of a lsemsearch box and related technology
(which together enable users to run search quané®otherwise access search services directly theinweb browsers). Many of our toolbars
are coupled with other applications that we haweeliged that enable users to personalize theinerictivities and otherwise make them nr
expressive and fun. These applications include: iyFards, through which users can send online giggetirds; Popular Screensavers, thr
which users can personalize their desktops withgshamages and animations; and Retrogamer andr@aonderland, through which users
can access classic arcade, sports and action hedaaisual games directly from their web brows@teer B2C applications target users with a
special or passionate interest in select vertiatdgories (such as television programming, spshispping and gossip, among others) or prc
users with particular reference information or @sc® specific utilities (such as maps, weathexdasts or file conversion technology). These
applications include: Television Fanatic, throughiah users can browse and search for scheduliegniation, episode synopses and actor
profiles for television shows, as well as direebcess online episodes via media players and tinfedated third party services;
TotalRecipeSearch, through which users can achessands of recipes and cooking tips; Allin1Conwlrough which users can convert files
from one type of format into another type of forpaatd Coupon Alert, through which users can accespons and online promotions. We
distribute our B2C applications directly to consusiieee of charge.
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Our B2B operations work closely with partners ia software, media and other industries to desighdawvelop customized browstrase!
search applications to be bundled and distributi¢ldl these partners' products and services.

We also market and distribute a number of mobil@ieations through which we provide search and t@aithl services, including: the
Ask.com iOS and Android applications, which provigeneral search and naturl@nguage question and answer services, and the
Dictionary.com iOS and Android applications, whmtovide dictionary, reference, educational andrligey services.

Revenue

The Search & Applications segment’s revenue comgishcipally of advertising revenue, which is gexted primarily through the display
of paid listings in response to search queriesyedksas from advertisements appearing on its dastin search websites and portals and certai
third party websites and the syndication of seaeshilts generated by Ask-branded destination semeblsites. The substantial majority of the
paid listings we display are supplied to us by Gequirsuant to our services agreement with Google.

Pursuant to this agreement, we transmit searcheguier Google, which in turn transmits a set ofvaht and responsive paid listings back
to us for display in search results. This ad-seryirocess occurs independently of, but concurremitly, the generation of algorithmic search
results for the same search queries. Google pidds are displayed separately from algorithmarae results and are identified as sponsorec
listings on search results pages. When a user ssirsearch query through our Search & Applicatimeperties and services and clicks on a
Google paid listing displayed in response to therguGoogle bills the advertiser that purchasedbtiid listing directly and shares a portion of
its related paid listing fee with us. In cases weltbie user’s click is generated by a third partpsite, we recognize the amount due from
Google as revenue and record a revenue share tidotiga the third party website as traffic acqudsitcosts. To a lesser extent, we also
syndicate Google paid listings through third partiéth whom we enter into syndication agreemenge. ‘®#em 1A-Risk Factors-We depend
upon arrangements with Google and any adverse ehartis relationship could adversely affect ousihess, financial condition and results
of operations.”

Competition

We compete with a wide variety of parties in conimerwith our efforts to: (i) attract users to aarious Search & Applications properties
and services generally; (ii) develop, market arstritiute our Applications; (iii) attract third paes to distribute our Applications and related
technology; and (iv) attract advertisers. In theecaf our search services generally, our compstitmiude Google, Yahoo!, Bing and other
destination search websites and seatehtric portals (some of which provide a broad eaafjcontent and services and/or link to various
desktop applications), third party toolbar, conesite search and applications providers, otherlséactinology and convenience service
providers (including internet access providersjaounedia platforms, online advertising networkagditional media companies and companies
that provide online content). When we market oarce and content services, our competitors inctied#ination websites that primarily
acquire traffic through paid and algorithmic seameults.

Moreover, some of our current and potential conipeginave longer operating histories, greater brandgnition, larger customer bases
and/or significantly greater financial, technicatlamarketing resources than we do. As a resuly, lthgee the ability to devote comparatively
greater resources to the development and promofitreir products and services, which could resugireater market acceptance of their
products and services relative to those offeredsy

In the case of our Websites business, we belieateotlr ability to compete successfully will depgmamarily upon the relevance and
authority of our search results, answers and athetent, the functionality of our various websitibg quality of related content and features
and the attractiveness of the services provideduoywebsites generally to consumers relative tsehaf our competitors. We believe that we
differentiate Ask.com from its competitors througlrestion and answer services that provide accuaathoritative and direct answers to
natural-language questions (in the form of algorithmic sbaesults and/or responses from other Ask.consuasrwell as indexed question
and answer pairings from various websites and erdarvices). Our ability to continue to differetgidsk.com from its competitors in this
manner depends primarily upon our ability to deli@ethoritative and trustworthy content to usessyall as our ability to attract advertisers to
this initiative.

In the case of our Applications business, we beliéat our ability to compete successfully will dag primarily upon our continued
ability to create toolbars and other applicatidre resonate with consumers (which requires thatamtinue to bundle attractive features,
content and services, some of which may be owneatily parties, with quality search services), elifintiate our toolbars and other
applications from those of our competitors (priryattirough providing customized
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toolbars and access to multiple search and otlneices through our toolbars), secure cost-effedtiiggribution arrangements with third parties
and market and distribute our toolbars and othpliegtions directly to consumers in a cost-effegtimanner.

Match

Overview

Through the brands and businesses within our Msggment, we are a leading provider of subscriptiased and agupported online
personals services in North America, Europe, LAtimerica, Australia and Asia. We provide these smwithrough websites and applications
that we own and operate. Our European operatienearducted through Meetic, which is based in FraAs December 31, 2013, we
collectively provided online personals servicegpproximately 3.4 million subscribers. In additiare own a 20% interest in Zhenai, Inc., a
leading provider of online dating and matchmakiag/ees in China.

We refer to Match.com in the United States, Chamishd PeopleMedia (through which we operate deapgcally targeted dating
websites, such as OurTime.com and BlackPeopleMe®rj.as Match's “Core” operations, to OkCupid, Sjpsed, DateHookup, Twoo, Tinder
and Match’s international operations (excluding MBeas Match's “Developing” operations and to Buropean operations as “Meetic.”

Services

We provide online personals services through vartmanded websites that we own and operate (imgudieetic-branded websites in
Europe), all of which provide single adults witpr@vate and convenient environment for meeting ofliregle adults. These websites provide
online personals services to registered membeosdthstablishing usernames and passwords) andibebs¢those who establish a username
and password and pay a subscription fee).

Within our portfolio of websites, we have both stiiistion-based and ad-supported offerings. Our subscriptiased websites offer
registered members the ability to post a profilé ase any related searching and matching toolsofrebarge, while subscribers have access t
enhanced tools and a broader feature set, inclutlagbility to initiate, review and respond to ¢oomications with or from other users. Our
subscription programs consist of programs withhgls-month term, with discounts for programs with vagdonger terms. Our adupported
websites generally provide online personals seswiaéh basic functionality without the commitmeriteomonthly subscription, in some cases
making a variety of premium or add-on featureslabée for a fee. We also offer access to our sesviga various mobile devices through our
Match, OkCupid, Tinder and other branded mobildiapfions. We also provide live, local events for &atch.com members in certain
markets in North America and Europe.

Marketing

We market our services through a wide variety fifref and online marketing activities. Our offlinearketing activities generally consist
of traditional marketing and business developmetivities, including television, print and radioatising and related public relations efforts,
as well as events. Our online marketing activigieserally consist of the purchase of banner aneratisplay advertising, search engine
marketing and e-mail campaigns. In addition, weeintto a variety of alliances with third partiebavadvertise and promote our services.
Some alliances are exclusive and some, but nataltain renewal provisions.

Revenue

Match’s revenue is derived primarily from subsddptfees for our subscriptieihased online personals and related services. Mdgoh
earns revenue from online advertising and the @mselof add-on or premium features.

Competition

The personals business is very competitive andyhfghigmented and barriers to entry are minimal. 8@mpete primarily with online and
offline broad-based personals, dating and matchmaking serviodés gaid and free), social media platforms andiappbns, the personals
sections of newspapers and magazines, other coonahinedia companies that provide personals ses\and traditional venues where single
meet (both online and offline). We also competéwiimerous online and offline personals, datingmatthmaking services that cater to
specific demographic groups.
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We believe that our ability to compete successfwily depend primarily upon the following factors:

the size and diversity of our registered membersaibcriber bases relative to those of our congre

 the functionality of our websites and mobile igagions and the attractiveness of their featamss our services and offerings generally
to consumers relative to those of our competitors;

» how quickly we can enhance our existing technolaigy services and/or develop new features and ssrinaesponse |
* new, emerging and rapidly changing technolo
» the introduction of product and service offeringsooir competitor:
e evolving industry standards; ¢
» changes in consumer requirements and trends isirilgee community relative to our competitt

» our ability to engage in cost-effective markgtafforts, including by way of maintaining relatarips with third parties with which we
have entered into alliances; and

» the recognition and strength of our various branetigtive to those of our competitc
Local

Overview

Our Local segment consists of HomeAdvisor and FélomeAdvisor is a leading online marketplace fatching consumers with home
services professionals in the United States. Homestdd connects consumers, by way of patented petayi technologies, with home services
professionals, most of which are pre-screened astbmerrated. As of December 31, 2013, HomeAdvisor’'s nekvad home services
professionals consisted of more than 80,000 priafieaks in the United States providing services orerthan 500 categories ranging from
simple home repairs to home remodeling projects.

Through a majority investment, HomeAdvisor alsorapes businesses in the online home services ap&cance, the Netherlands and the
United Kingdom under various brands.

HomeAdvisor also operates Felix, a pay-per-calkeatising service that we acquired in August 201@ which was previously operated by
CityGrid Media.

HomeAdvisor Services

Matching and Other Consumer Services. When a consumer submits a request through the Hdrisdr marketplace, we generally match
that consumer with up to four home services pradesds from our network based on the type of sewidesired and the consumer's location.
Consumers can then review home services profedgioofdes and select the professional that thdieke best meets their specific needs. |
cases, if a match is made, the consumer is undebligation to work with home service professionaiferred by HomeAdvisor.

In addition to our matching services, consumers alsg access our CostGuide, which provides prajest information for more than 250
project types on a local basis, and our onlinalipiof servicerelated resources, which primarily includes ars@®out home improvement,
repair and maintenance, tools to assist consumigngive research, planning and management of phejects and general advice for working
with home services professionals.

HomeAdvisor also offers several mobile applicatijonsluding the HomeAdvisor.com, Home911 and Honw8a0S and Android
applications. Home911 matches consumers with h@mecgs professionals on an expedited basis igdbe of home repair emergencies and
through HomeSavvy, consumers can maintain a cugtzhfiome maintenance and repair schedule, togsttieproject reminders.

Subscription Services for Home Services Professionals. In 2013, HomeAdvisor introduced three new subsicnipbfferings for home
services professionals, each for a flat monthly Tée basic membership package includes membersttig HomeAdvisor network, as well
the inclusion of the home services professionaiistact information in HomeAdvisor’s online diregtowhich is posted on
www.homeadvisor.corand affiliated websites. Consumers may searcthottiiae directory in addition to (or in lieu of) smiitting a request
through the HomeAdvisor marketplace, with consunaétisiately
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selecting those home services professionals thely teiwork with (in lieu of HomeAdvisor providingatthes) and contacting such
professionals directly. The two additional membgrgfackages include all of the basic membershifxagge services, plus matches through the
HomeAdvisor marketplace and, in the case of on&gmpe, custom website and mobile development antihigoservices as well.

Since October 2013, HomeAdvisor has been markésrapbscription packages to existing home seryicefessionals within its network
and in the case of home services professionalsamhoew to HomeAdvisor , these professionals migstugp for one of the subscription
offerings described above (versus being able totjué network for free and only pay for matchesicivlwas the case prior to October 2013).
As of December 31, 2013, approximately 15,000 efrtiore than 80,000 home services professionalsnitik HomeAdvisor network had
purchased a membership package.

Marketing

We market our services to consumers primarily tghosearch engine marketing, as well as througheaffiagreements with third parties.
Pursuant to these agreements, third parties agr@gvertise and promote our services and thosardfi@me services professionals on their
websites and we agree to pay them a fixed fee wis@ors from their websites submit a valid serviequest through our website (on a cost-
per-acquisition basis) or click through to our wiehgon a cost-per-click basis). We also marketsmivices to consumers through the purchas
of paid listings displayed in yellow page direcés;i portals and contextual home improvement rekited and, to a lesser extent, through
traditional offline advertising, including televigi. We market our subscription packages to homacasrprofessionals through our sales force
as well as online through search engine market#igtionships with trade associations and affiliagrketing relationships.

Revenue

HomeAdvisor's revenue is derived primarily fromsgmid by members of our network of home serviecefepsionals for matches with
consumers made by HomeAdvisor (regardless of whéttleeprofessional ultimately provides the requistervice), as well as from
subscription fees for our new home services pradasas subscription offerings, fees for website lggservices and fees charged upon the
enrollment and activation of new home servicesgssibnals in our network. Fees for matches vargdapon the service requested and whei
the service is provided.

Competition

We currently compete with home services-related tpeneration services, as well as internet seargimes and directories and with other
forms of local advertising, including radio, direnairketing campaigns, yellow pages, newspaperotned offline directories. We also comg
with local and national retailers of home improvemngroducts that offer or promote installation segg. We believe that our ability to comp
successfully will depend primarily upon the follawgifactors:

» the size, quality (as determined, in part, Bgmn@nce to our pre-screening efforts and custoatérgs and reviews), diversity and
stability of our network of home services professils and the quality of the services provided lshqurofessionals;

e our continued ability to deliver service reqeestat convert into revenue for our network of haaerices professionals in a cost-
effective manner;

» whether our subscription products resonate witkl @ovide value to) our home services professiq

» the functionality of our websites and mobile apaiions and the attractiveness of their featuresoandervices generally to consurr
and home services professionals, as well as olityabiintroduce new products and services thabnate with consumers and home
services professionals; and

» our ability to build and maintain awareness of, &yalty to, the HomeAdvisor brand among consun

Media
Our Media segment consists primarily of Vimeo, Hls¢ DailyBurn and The Daily Beast.
Vimeo is a leading global video hosting platforniméo offers video creators simple, professionatigrols to share, distribute and

monetize content online, and provides viewers dethiree environment to watch content across &etaof internet connected devices. We
believe that Vimeo attracts a distinct audiencéntit best-in-class, customizable, high
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definition video player, proprietary uploading aemcoding infrastructure and uncluttered advertigxgerience. Vimeo's revenue is derived
primarily from subscription product offerings, aslihas on-demand transactions and advertising.

Electus is an integrated multimedia entertainmardis that unites producers, creators, advertigedsdistributors to produce video con
for distribution across a variety of platforms IretUnited States and various jurisdictions abré&dettus also operates Electus Digital, which
consists of the following websites and propertiéstiegeHumor.com, Dorkly.com, WatchLOUD.com, You&uthannels WatchLOUD,
Nuevon and Hungry and Big Breakfast (a productiomgany).

Our Media segment also includes Daily Burn and Dh#y Beast. DailyBurn is a health and fithess @ndy that provides streaming fitne
and workout videos across a variety of platformsluding iOS, Android, xBox and internet-enabledrinected" televisions. The Daily Beast
(formerly News_Beast) is a website dedicated tosp@emmentary, culture and entertainment that earand publishes existing and original
online content from its own roster of contributors.

Our Media segment revenue is derived primarily freiwertising, media production and subscriptions.
Other

Our Other segment consists primarily of ShoebuyButdr. Shoebuy is a leading internet retaileranftivear and related apparel and
accessories. Shoebuy generally passes purchasesomadstomers through its various websites ohaaelevant vendors for fulfillment and
shipping. Tutor is an online tutoring solution, wiiwas acquired in December 2012. Our Other segregahue is derived primarily from
merchandise sales and subscriptions.

Employees

As of December 31, 2013, IAC and its subsidiariepleyed approximately 4,000 full-time employeesClAelieves that it generally has
good employee relationships, including relationshifith employees represented by unions or otheitaimrganizations.

Additional Information

Company Website and Public Filings. The Company maintains a website at www.iac.ddeither the information on the Company's
website, nor the information on the website of W@ business, is incorporated by reference in dmisual report, or in any other filings with,
or in any other information furnished or submittedthe SEC.

The Company makes available, free of charge thraisghebsite, its Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Qerdy Reports on Form 10-Q and
Current Reports on Form 8-K (including related adreants) as soon as reasonably practicable aftghtinee been electronically filed with (or
furnished to) the SEC.

Code of Ethics. The Company's code of ethics, as amended it 2409, applies to all employees (including alllAC's executive
officers and senior financial officers (includin§@'s Chief Financial Officer and Controller)) anidetttors and is posted on the Company's
website at http://ir.iac.com/corporate-governanoetainent.cfm?DocumentlD=11373. This code of ethaamies with Item 406 of SEC
Regulation S-K and the rules of The Nasdaq Stockk®taAny changes to the code of ethics that atteetprovisions required by Item 406 of
Regulation S-K, and any waivers of such provisiofithe code of ethics for IAC's executive officesenior financial officers or directors, will
also be disclosed on IAC's website.
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ltem 1A. Risk Factors

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

This annual report on Form 10-K contains “forwdabking statementsivithin the meaning of the Private Securities Litiga Reform Ac
of 1995. The use of words such as “anticipatesstifieates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans” and “belies,” among others, generally identify
forward-looking statements. These forwatdoking statements include, among others, statesmetdting to: IAC's future financial
performance, IAC's business prospects and stratedigipated trends and prospects in the industmiggich IAC's businesses operate and
other similar matters. These forwatdoking statements are based on IAC managememtectations and assumptions about future events
the date of this annual report, which are inheyesitbject to uncertainties, risks and changesraunistances that are difficult to predict.

” w

Actual results could differ materially from thosentained in these forwartboking statements for a variety of reasons, inicigdamong
others, the risk factors set forth below. Othernown or unpredictable factors that could also asklgraffect IAC's business, financial
condition and results of operations may arise ftione to time. In light of these risks and uncertigis, the forwardlooking statements
discussed in this annual report may not prove tadoeirate. Accordingly, you should not place undili@nce on these forwartboking
statements, which only reflect the views of IAC mgement as of the date of this annual report. 1A€schot undertake to update these
forward-looking statements.

Risk Factors

Mr. Diller owns a significant percentage of the voting power of our stock and will be able to exercise significant influence over the
composition of our Board of Directors, matters subject to stockholder approval and our operations.

As of January 31, 2014, Mr. Diller owned 5,789,48@res of IAC Class B common stock representingdl0DIAC’s outstanding Class B
common stock and approximately 43.1% of the toté$tanding voting power of IAC. As of this date,.Nhiller also owned 855,734 vested
options to purchase IAC common stock and 150,00@sbted options to purchase IAC common stock.

In addition, under an amended and restated goveeragreement between IAC and Mr. Diller, for saglas Mr. Diller serves as IAC's
Chairman and Senior Executive, he generally hasighéto consent to limited matters in the evémattAC’s ratio of total debt to EBITDA (as
defined in the governance agreement) equals oreesdaur to one over a continuous twelrr@nth period. While Mr. Diller may not currently
exercise this right, no assurances can be givenhisaright will not become exercisable in theuit, and if so, that Mr. Diller will consent to
any of the limited matters at such time, in whiase IAC would not be able to engage in transactioiake actions covered by this consent
right.

As a result of Mr. Diller's ownership interest, irag power and the contractual rights described apbir. Diller currently is in a position
to influence, subject to our organizational docuteemd Delaware law, the composition of IAC’s Boafdirectors and the outcome of
corporate actions requiring stockholder approvathsas mergers, business combinations and dispusitif assets, among other corporate
transactions. In addition, this concentration aing power could discourage others from initiatingotential merger, takeover or other change
of control transaction that may otherwise be bemafto IAC, which could adversely affect the mdrgéce of IAC securities.

We depend on our key personnel.

Our future success will depend upon our continuglityto identify, hire, develop, motivate and aet highly skilled individuals, with the
continued contributions of our senior managemeintgoespecially critical to our success. Competifionwell-qualified employees across IAC
and its various businesses is intense and ourrz@diability to compete effectively depends, irtpgpon our ability to attract new employees.
While we have established programs to attract mepl@yees and provide incentives to retain exiséingployees, particularly our senior
management, we cannot assure you that we will leetalattract new employees or retain the servé@air senior management or any other
key employees in the future.

We depend upon arrangements with Google and any adverse change in thisrelationship could adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

A substantial portion of our consolidated reveraiattributable to a services agreement with Gothgleexpires on March 31, 2016.
Pursuant to this agreement, we display and syredait! listings provided by Google in responseetireh queries generated by users of our
Search & Applications properties. In exchange faking our search traffic available to Google, weeree a share of the revenue generated b
the paid listings supplied to us, as well as certdiner searctrelated services.
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The amount of revenue we receive from Google depapdn a number of factors outside of our coninaluding the amount Google
charges for advertisements, the efficiency of Gesglystem in attracting advertisers and servingaig listings in response to search queries
and parameters established by Google regardinguimder and placement of paid listings displayegtgponse to search queries. In addition,
Google makes judgments about the relative attraséiss (to the advertiser) of clicks on paid liggifrgm searches performed on our Search &
Applications properties and these judgments faatorthe amount of revenue we receive. Changesotm(®’s paid listings network efficienc
its judgment about the relative attractivenesdioks on paid listings from our Search & Applicat®properties or the parameters applicable t
the display of paid listings could have an advefféect on our business, financial condition andiitssof operations. Such changes could come
about for a number of reasons, including generakataonditions, competition or policy and opergtaecisions made by Google.

Our services agreement with Google requires thatameply with certain guidelines promulgated by Gedgr the use of its brands and
services, including the manner in which Google'slpiatings are displayed within search results] #rat we establish guidelines to govern
certain activities of third parties to whom we sirade paid listings, including the manner in whiblese parties drive search traffic to their
websites and display paid listings. Subject toaiedimitations, Google may unilaterally updateptdicies and guidelines, which could in turn
require modifications to, or prohibit and/or rendésolete certain of, our products, services arfuliginess practices, which could be costly to
address or otherwise have an adverse effect ohumimess, financial condition and results of openst Noncompliance with Google’s
guidelines by us or the third parties to whom wedsgate paid listings or through which we secusdritiution arrangements for our
applications could, if not cured, result in Googlsuspension of some or all of its services tonmlysites or the websites of our third party
partners, the imposition of additional restrictimmsour ability to syndicate paid listings or tleemination of the services agreement by Google

The termination of the services agreement by Godlgéecurtailment of IAC’s rights under the agreet@vhether pursuant to the terms
thereof or otherwise) or the failure of Google &fprm its obligations under the agreement woulehen adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. didiéion, our inability to obtain a renewal of olgraement with Google with substantially
comparable economic and other terms upon the diiraf our current agreement could have an adweffeet on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. If any of thesents were to occur, we may not be able todimather suitable alternate paid listings
provider (or if an alternate provider were fourttk Economic and other terms of the agreement anguality of paid listings may be inferior
relative to our arrangements with, and the patthlis supplied by, Google) or otherwise replaceldiserevenues.

General economic events or trends that reduce advertising spending could harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

A substantial portion of our consolidated reverasiatiributable to online advertising. Accordinghie are particularly sensitive to events
and trends that could result in decreased advagtesxpenditures. Advertising expenditures havehitslly been cyclical in nature, reflecting
overall economic conditions and budgeting and byipatterns, as well as levels of consumer confidemd discretionary spending.

Small and local businesses with which we do busiages particularly sensitive to these events amtls, given that they are not as well
situated to weather adverse economic conditionikeaslarger competitors, which are generally brattpitalized and have greater access to
credit. In the recent past, adverse economic coamdithave caused, and if such conditions weredarri@ the future they could cause, decre
and/or delays in advertising expenditures, whiclild@educe our revenues and adversely affect osinbss, financial condition and results of
operations.

Our success depends upon the continued growth and acceptance of online advertising, particularly paid listings, as an effective alternative to
traditional, offline advertising and the continued commercial use of the internet.

We continue to compete with traditional advertisimgdia, including television, radio and print, ofdéion to a multitude of websites with
high levels of traffic and online advertising netk&, for a share of available advertising expemd#glwand expect to face continued competitior
as more emerging media and traditional offline raedimpanies enter the online advertising marketb#lieve that the continued growth and
acceptance of online advertising generally will elegh, to a large extent, on its perceived effectgsrand the acceptance of related advertisin
models (particularly in the case of models thabiporate user targeting and/or utilize mobile desj¢the continued growth in commercial use
of the internet (particularly abroad), the extenwhich web browsers, software programs and/orrapplications that limit or prevent
advertising from being displayed become commonpdackthe extent to which the industry is able feaively manage click fraud. Any lack
of growth in the market for online advertising, foarlarly for paid listings, or any decrease in #ffectiveness and value of online advertising
(whether due to the passage of laws requiring mdait disclosure, an industry-wide move to selfulatpry
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principles that required additional disclosure anapt-in policies for advertising that incorpomiteser targeting or other developments) woulc
have an adverse effect on our business, finanoiaiton and results of operations.

We depend, in part, upon arrangements with third partiesto drive traffic to our various websites and distribute our products and services.

We engage in a variety of activities designed tet traffic to our various websites and convésttors into repeat users and customers.
How successful we are in these efforts dependsaiih upon our continued ability to enter into agements with third parties to drive traffic to
our various websites, as well as the continueddhiction of new and enhanced products and serthe¢sesonate with users and customers
generally.

For example, we have entered into, and expectrtraee to enter into, agreements to distribute &eé&rApplications search boxes,
toolbars and other applications to users throughl gharties. Most of these agreements are eitherexclusive and shorterm in nature or, in
the case of longerm or exclusive agreements, are terminable teeftarty in certain specified circumstances. lditaah, a few of these
agreements collectively represent a significant@etage of the revenue generated by our B2B apiplitsa Our inability to enter into new (or
renew existing) agreements to distribute our sebootes, toolbars and other applications througtd gharties for any reason would result in
decreases in website traffic, queries and advegti@venue, which could have an adverse effecuotasiness, financial condition and results
of operations.

In addition, in the case of the businesses withinatch segment, we have entered into a numbarrahgements with third parties to
drive traffic to our online personals websites.d2ant to these arrangements, third parties gepgnalmote our services on their websites or
through e-mail campaigns and we either pay a ffeedvhen visitors to these websites click througfot register with) our online personals
websites or pay a percentage of revenue we ref@inesuch visitors who pay us subscription feessenarrangements are generally not
exclusive, are shorterm in nature and are generally terminable byeeigfarty given notice. If existing arrangementshwftird parties are
terminated (or are not renewed upon their expimtamd we fail to replace this traffic and relatedenues, or if we are unable to enter into
arrangements with existing and/or new third paitie®sponse to industry trends, our businessnéiah condition and results of operations
could be adversely affected.

In the case of our HomeAdvisor business, our gtiitdrive traffic depends, in part, on the natanel number of home services
professionals who are members of our network. Whidse home services professionals are requiragrae that they will operate in
accordance with our terms and conditions, we daentgr into longterm agreements with them generally and subscnptiemberships may
be canceled at any time. In addition, a significannber of our home services professionals aremolarietorships and small businesses,
which are particularly sensitive to adverse ecoraroinditions, such as constrained liquidity and-eases in consumer spending. As a result,
our network of home services professionals expeesgiturnover from time to time. This turnover,igrsficant or recurring over a prolonged
period, could result in a decrease in traffic totéAdvisor.com and increased costs, all of whicHadadversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Even if we succeed in driving traffic to our profes, we may not be able to convert this traffiotirerwise retain users and customers
unless we continue to provide quality products serdices. For example, in the case of About.comralyeon independent, freelance subject
matter experts to generate quality content forumers. If we fail to recruit and retain such expgenerally and/or the experts ultimately
retained cannot provide us with quality contend icosteffective manner, the experience of our users wbalddversely affected, which wot
result in a decrease in users and adversely aftedbusiness, financial condition and results afrapions. In addition, we may not be able to
adapt quickly and/or in cost-effective manner tmfrent changes in user and customer preferences) wdn be difficult to predict, or
appropriately time the introduction of enhancememid/or new products or services to the market.i@ability to provide quality products and
services would adversely affect user and custoxgreences, which would result in decreases ingjserstomers and revenues and adversel
affect our business, financial condition and ressaftoperations.

As discussed below, our traffic building and comsi@n initiatives also involve the expenditure ohsmlerable sums for marketing, as well
as for the development and introduction of new potsl services and enhancements, infrastructureted related efforts.

Marketing efforts designed to drive traffic to our various websites may not be successful or cost-effective.
Traffic building and conversion initiatives involeensiderable expenditures for online and offlideeatising and marketing. We have

made, and expect to continue to make, significaperditures for search engine marketing (primanilthe form of the purchase of keywords,
which we purchase primarily through Google), onlitigplay advertising and traditional
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offline advertising in connection with these inii@s, which may not be successful or cost-effectin the case of our search engine marketin
efforts, our failure to respond successfully toidegnd frequent changes in the pricing and opagatimamics of search engines, as well as
changing policies and guidelines applicable to kayxadvertising (which may be unilaterally updabgdGoogle), could adversely affect the
placement of paid listings that appear in respéogeywords we purchase and the related user exprrj as well as adversely affect the
pricing of online advertising we purchase generalligich would increase our costs and adversely anghee effectiveness of our advertising
efforts overall. In the case of paid advertisingeally, the policies of sellers and publisherad¥ertising may limit our ability to purchase
certain types of advertising or advertise someunfwoducts and services, which could affect oulitglio compete effectively and, in turn,
adversely affect our business, financial conditiod results of operations.

One of the most cost-effective efforts we emplowpttoact and acquire new, and retain existing,suaad customers is commonly referred
to as search engine optimization, or SEO. SEO iegteveloping websites to rank well within seambine results. Search engines freque
update and change the logic that determines tleeplant and display of results of user searchesfailuee to successfully manage SEO
efforts across our businesses, including the timedgification of SEO efforts from time to time iesponse to periodic changes in search
engine algorithms, search query trends and rektgdns by providers of search services designethsare the display of unique offerings in
search results (which actions by search serviceigeos may result in algorithmic listings beingmesyed less prominently within search eng
results), could result in a substantial decreasmffic to our various websites, as well as insezhcosts if we were to replace free traffic with
paid traffic, which would adversely affect our messs, financial condition and results of operations

In addition, search engines have increasingly edganheir offerings into other, n@garch related categories, and have in certaiarinst
displayed their own integrated or related product service offerings in a more prominent mannen thase of third parties within their search
engine results. Continued expansion and competfit@n search engines could result in a substadéatease in traffic to our various websites
as well as increased costs if we were to replamethaffic with paid traffic, which would adversedjfect our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Lastly, as discussed above, we also enter int@yarrrangements with third parties in an effoihtwvease traffic, which arrangements are
generally more cost-effective than traditional nedirkg efforts. If we are unable to renew existinagd enter into new) arrangements of this
nature, sales and marketing costs as a percentageenue would increase over the long-term.

Any failure to attract and acquire new, and retadisting, traffic, users and customers in a cofgetize manner could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of openat

Our success depends, in part, on our ability to maintain and enhance our various brands.

Through our various businesses, we own and opamatenber of highly-recognizable brands with strbrend appeal within their
respective industries. We believe that our sucdepgnds, in part, upon our continuing ability tamtein and enhance these brands. Our br
could be negatively impacted by a number of fagtaduding product and service quality concermsisumer complaints, actions brought by
consumers, governmental or regulatory authoritiebralated media coverage and data protection equtity breaches. Moreover, the failure
to market our products and services successfutlin(a cost-effective manner), the inability to dap and introduce products and services th:
resonate with consumers and/or the inability tgpadaickly enough (and/or in a cost effective maipibe evolving changes in the internet and
related technologies, applications and deviceddcatversely impact our various brands, and in,taum business, financial condition and
results of operations.

The internet and related technologies and applications continue to evolve and we may not be able to adapt to these changes.

The development of new products and services porese to the evolving trends and technologiesofriternet, as well as the
identification of new business opportunities irsttiynamic environment, requires significant time egsources. We may not be able to adapt
quickly enough (and/or in a cost-effective mannerthese changes, appropriately time the introdnadf new products and services to the
market or identify new business opportunities timeely manner. Also, these changes could requirt® unsodify related infrastructures and our
failure to do so could render our existing websigggplications, services and proprietary techna@ggibsolete. Our failure to respond to any of
these changes appropriately (and/or in a costtéfeemanner) could adversely affect our busingagntial condition and results of operations.

In the case of certain of our applications, thiagties have introduced (and continue to introduesy or updated technologies, applicati
and policies that may interfere with the abilityusfers to access or utilize these applicationsrgéner otherwise make users less likely to use
these services (such as through the introductideattires and/or processes that disproportionatatyadversely impact the ability of
consumers to access and use these services rétathase of our
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competitors). For example, third parties contimuetroduce technologies and applications (inclgdiew and enhanced web browsers and
operating systems) that may limit or prevent cartgpes of applications from being installed andiave features and policies that significantly
lessen the likelihood that users will install opphcations or that previously installed applicasowill remain in active use. In addition, there
are technologies and applications that interfeté thie functionality of (or settings changes magedur applications. For example, there are
technologies and applications that interfere withrsh boxes embedded within our toolbars and thetemance of home page and web broy
search settings previously selected by our usérssd technologies, applications and policies adieisipact our ability to generate search
queries through our applications, which in turnexdely impacts our revenues. Technologies havebalen introduced that can block the
display of advertisements on web pages and thaigeasers with the ability to opt out of our adigng products. Our failure to successfully
modify our toolbars and other applications in at@ffective manner in response to the introductiod adoption of these new technologies an
applications could adversely affect our busindagicial condition and results of operations.

Our success also depends, in part, on our abdliletvelop and monetize mobile versions of our petgland services. While most of our
users currently access our products and servicesgh personal computers, users of (and usage eslwm) mobile devices, including tablets,
continue to increase relative to those of persoaalputers. While we have developed mobile versidreertain of our products and services
and intend to continue to do so in the future, weehlimited experience with mobile applicationsttbim terms of development and
monetization. Moreover, mobile versions of our prets and services that we develop may not be cdimpéb users and/advertisers. Even if
we are able to develop mobile applications thatmate with users and advertisers, the succes&sé hpplications is dependent on their
interoperability with various mobile operating ®ysis, technologies, networks and standards thabwetcontrol and any changes in any of
these things that compromise the quality or fumetidty of our products and services could adversalyact usage of our products and service
on mobile devices and, in turn, our ability to attradvertisers. Lastly, as the adoption of mathéleices becomes more widespread, the usage
of certain of our products and services may naistiete to mobile devices, which shift could advigraéfect our business, financial condition
and results of operations if we are unable to mpthe related revenues.

The processing, storage, use and disclosure of personal data could giveriseto liabilities as a result of governmental regulation, conflicting
legal requirements or differing views of personal privacy rights.

We receive, transmit and store a large volume cfqreal information and other user data (includireglit card data) in connection with t
processing of search queries, the provision ohentiroducts and services, transactions with usetg€astomers and advertising on our
websites. The sharing, use, disclosure and pioteof this information are determined by the resjpe privacy and data security policies of
our various businesses. These policies are, in suftject to federal, state and foreign laws agdlegions, as well as evolving industry
standards and practices, regarding privacy andttreng, sharing, use, disclosure and protectigpeo$onal information and user data (for
example, various state regulations concerning minindata security standards, industry seffulating principles that become standard pra
and more stringent contractual protections regargiivacy and data security (and related compliaitgations)).

In addition, if an online service provider failscomply with its privacy policy, it could becomebject to an investigation and proceeding
for unfair or deceptive practices brought by th& Federal Trade Commission under the Federal TCademission Act (and/or brought by a
state attorney general pursuant to a similar &ty as well as a private lawsuit under variouS.Uederal and state laws. In general, persona
information is increasingly subject to legislatiand regulation in numerous jurisdictions aroundvtieeld, the intent of which is to protect the
privacy of personal information that is collectpdycessed and transmitted in or from the goverjurigdiction.

U.S. legislators and regulators may enact new kvdsregulations regarding privacy and data secuntiFebruary 2012, the White House
released a proposed Consumer Privacy Bill of Rjghltsch is intended to serve as a framework for pewacy legislation. In March 2012, the
U.S. Federal Trade Commission released a stafftrepaking recommendations for businesses and polaiers in the area of consumer
privacy. Similarly, new privacy laws and regulasaat the state level, as well as new laws andtilresscabroad (particularly in Europe), are
being proposed and implemented. For example, ngisiétion in the state of California that becanfeafve on January 1, 2014 requires
companies that collect personal information toldse how they respond to web browser "Do Not Traighals. In addition, existing privacy
laws that were intended for brick-and-mortar busées could be interpreted in a manner that woukheixtheir reach to our businesses. New
laws and regulations (or new interpretations oftxg laws) in this area may make it more costlgpgerate our businesses and/or limit our
ability to engage in certain types of activities¢ls as targeted advertising, which could adverafgct our business, financial condition and
results of operations.
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As privacy and data protection have become morsitbanissues, we may also become exposed to paitéabilities as a result of
differing views on the privacy of consumer and othger data collected by our businesses. Alscam@ot guarantee that our security
measures will prevent security breaches. In tise c&security breaches involving personal crealitldata, credit card companies could curta
our ability to transact payments and impose fimeddilure to comply with Payment Card Industry (PBata Security Standards. Moreover,
any such breach could decrease consumer confidietite case of the business that experienced trechror our businesses generally, which
would decrease traffic to (and in turn, usage aaalsactions on) the relevant website and/or ououvamwebsites and which in turn, could
adversely affect our business, financial conditiod results of operations. The failure of any af lmusinesses, or their various third party
vendors and service providers, to comply with agglile privacy policies, federal, state or foreigwvacy laws and regulations or PCI standz
and/or the unauthorized release of personal infiomar other user data for any reason could a@¥eedfect our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

Our estimated income taxes could be materially different from income taxes that we ultimately pay.

We are subject to income taxes in both the UnitateS and numerous jurisdictions abroad. Signifiasigment and estimation is requi
in determining our provision for income taxes aalhted matters. In the ordinary course of our lrssinthere are many transactions and
calculations where the ultimate tax determinatiargsuncertain or otherwise subject to interpretatidur determination of our income tax
liability is always subject to review by applicaltéex authorities and we are currently subject witalin a number of jurisdictions. Although we
believe our income tax estimates and related d@tations are reasonable and appropriate, relesaimg authorities may disagree. The
ultimate outcome of any such audits and reviewsdcbe materially different from estimates and deti@ations reflected in our historical
income tax provisions and accruals. Any adverseamné of any such audit or review could have an sgveffect on our financial condition
and results of operations.

We may not be able to identify suitable acquisition candidates and even if we are able to do so, we may experience operational and financial
risksin connection with acquisitions. I n addition, some of the businesses we acquire may incur significant losses from operations or
experience impairment of carrying value.

We have made numerous acquisitions in the pastvantbntinue to seek to identify potential acquisittandidates that will allow us to
apply our expertise to expand their capabilitisswall as maximize our existing assets. As a resultfuture growth may depend, in part, on
acquisitions. We may not be able to identify suéadcquisition candidates or complete acquisitmmsatisfactory pricing or other terms and
we expect to continue to experience competitiocoinnection with our acquisition-related efforts.

Even if we identify what we believe to be suitabéguisition candidates and negotiate satisfactymg, we may experience operational
and financial risks in connection with acquisitipaad to the extent that we continue to grow thhoagquisitions, we will need to:

» successfully integrate the operations, as weetha accounting, financial controls, managemeftinmation, technology, human
resources and other administrative systems, ofigatjbusinesses with our existing operations aistesys;

» successfully identify and realize potential synesgamong acquired and existing busine
» retain or hire senior management and other keyopeed at acquired businesses;

» successfully manage acquisitioelated strain on the management, operations aaddial resources of IAC and its businesses and/(
acquired businesses.

We may not be successful in addressing these algaléeor any other problems encountered in conmeuwtith historical and future
acquisitions. In addition, the anticipated benaditene or more acquisitions may not be realizedifature acquisitions could result in increa
operating losses, potentially dilutive issuancesafity securities and the assumption of contingiebiiities. Also, the value of goodwill and
other intangible assets acquired could be impaayeahe or more continuing unfavorable events anéords, which could result in significant
impairment charges. The occurrence of any theseteweuld have an adverse effect on our businiess)dial condition and results of
operations.
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We operatein various international markets, somein which we have limited experience. As a result, we face additional risksin connection
with our international operations. Also, we may not be able to successfully expand into new, or further into our existing, international
markets.

We currently operate in various jurisdictions alofead may continue to expand our internationalgmes. In order for our products and
services in these jurisdictions to achieve widesg@cceptance, commercial use and acceptance ioténeet must continue to grow, which
growth may occur at slower rates than those expeeitin the United States. Moreover, we must cortio successfully tailor our products
and services to the unique customs and culturézeign jurisdictions, which can be difficult andstly and the failure to do so could slow our
international growth and adversely impact our bes# financial condition and results of operations.

Operating abroad, particularly in jurisdictions wh&e have limited experience, exposes us to additirisks. For example, we may
experience difficulties in managing internationpeoations due to distance, language and cultuif@reinces, including issues associated with
the establishment of management systems and infcaistes (including disclosure controls and procedand internal control over financial
reporting), the staffing of foreign operations, leaxnge rate fluctuations and online privacy andgmtidn of personal information. Our success
in international markets will also depend, in part,our ability to identify potential acquisitioamrdidates, joint venture or other partners, and 1
enter into arrangements with these parties on &blerterms and successfully integrate their busgsand operations with our own.

A variety of new laws, or new interpretations of existing laws, could subject usto claims or otherwise harm our business.

We are subject to a variety of laws in the U.S. abibad that are costly to comply with, can resuitegative publicity and diversion of
management time and effort and can subject usatmslor other remedies. Some of these laws, ssigicame, sales, use, vahaslded and
other tax laws and consumer protection laws, apiGgble to businesses generally and others aguertd the various types of businesses in
which we are engaged. Many of these laws weretadqpior to the advent of the internet and relagetinologies and, as a result, do not
contemplate or address the unique issues of tamittand related technologies. Laws that doeafar the internet are being interpreted by
courts, but their applicability and scope remaioertain.

For example, through our various businesses wegmubtink to third party content, including thirdnty advertisements, links and
websites. We also allow users to submit conterty 1 comments, photographs and videos. We coudlject to liability for posting, hostir
or linking to third party content, and while we geally require third parties to indemnify us folated claims, we may not be able to enforce
our indemnification rights. Some laws, including Bommunications Decency Act, or CDA, and the Rigulillennium Copyright Act, or
DMCA, limit our liability for posting or linking tahird party content. For example, the DMCA genlgrpfotects online service providers from
claims of copyright infringement based on the gjeraf third party content at the direction of tleey so long as certain statutory requirement
are satisfied. However, the scope and applicahifithe DMCA are subject to judicial interpretatiand, as such, remain uncertain, and the
U.S. Congress may enact legislation affecting (@téntially limiting) the protections afforded dyetDMCA to online service providers.
Moreover, similar protections may not exist in atheisdictions in which our various businessesrafe As a result, claims have been, and
could be, threatened and filed under both U.S.fareign laws based upon use of third party condsserting, among other things, negligence,
defamation, invasion of privacy or right or pultigicopyright infringement or trademark infringenhen

In addition, changing internet business practicag attract increased legal and regulatory attentfone example of such changing
practices is the advent of so-called “native” atigarg, a form of advertising in which sponsoreditemt is presented in a manner that some
may view as similar to traditional editorial contteThe U.S. Federal Trade Commission recentlycigid that it will be monitoring the use of
online native advertising to ensure that it is préed in a manner that is not confusing or decepitiwconsumers.

Any failure on our part to comply with applicabls may subject us to additional liabilities, whazhuld adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.atidition, if the laws to which we are currently gdb are amended or interpreted adversely to
our interests, or if new adverse laws are adomedproducts and services might need to be modiiebmply with such laws, which would
increase our costs and could result in decreasmadmit for our products and services to the exteaitwle pass on such costs to our customers
Specifically, in the case of tax laws, positionatttve have taken or will take are subject to imetgtion by the relevant taxing authorities.
While we believe that the positions we have takedate comply with applicable law, there can bessurances that the relevant taxing
authorities will not take a contrary position, ahdo, that such positions will not adversely affas. Any events of this nature could adversely
affect our business, financial condition and ressaftoperations.
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We may fail to adequately protect our intellectual property rights or may be accused of infringing the intellectual property rights of third
parties.

We regard our intellectual property rights, inchglirademarks, domain names, trade secrets, patepigights and other similar
intellectual property, as critical to our succeBsr example, the businesses within our princippbrting segments (Search & Applications,
Match and Local) rely heavily upon their trademajgmarily Ask.com, About.com, Dictionary.com, oarious toolbar brands, Match.com,
OkCupid.com, OurTime.com, Meetic.com and HomeAdwvisam and related domain names and logos), thredmeh they market their
products and services and seek to build and maibtaind loyalty and recognition. So long as thassnesses continue to use these trader
to identify their products and services and renaadmark registrations as required, they will awni to enjoy trademark protection
indefinitely under current laws, rules and regulas.

The businesses within our Search & Applicationsvsag also rely upon trade secrets, including allgovs for the generation, organizat
and presentation of search results. To a lessenigxhese businesses also rely upon patentedaadtpending proprietary technologies and
processes, primarily those relating to searelated products and services, with expiration sifde patented technologies ranging from 2017 t
2033, and copyrighted material, primarily emoticartgaracters and other content that is incorporiatedand used in connection with the
marketing of) toolbars generally.

Our Match segment also relies upon trade secretsamain paterfpending proprietary technologies relating to matghprocess systems
and related features, products and services. Halvieér relies heavily upon trade secrets, priméatily matching algorithm through which
members of its network of home services professsomi@ matched with consumers, as well as reladézhped proprietary technologies that
expire in 2020.

We rely on a combination of laws and contractusirretions with employees, customers, supplieffdjaes and others to establish and
protect our various intellectual property rightor example, we have generally registered and moatio apply to register and renew, or secur
by contract where appropriate, trademarks andsemiarks as they are developed and used, and éesegister and renew domain names as
we deem appropriate. Effective trademark proteatiay not be available or may not be sought inyegeuntry in which products and servit
are made available and contractual disputes magtafie use of marks governed by private contr&onilarly, not every variation of a dome
name may be available or be registered, even ifadle.

We also generally seek to apply for patents oofber similar statutory protections as and if werdeappropriate, based on then current
facts and circumstances, and will continue to dinghe future. No assurances can be given thapatent application we have filed (or will
file) will result in a patent being issued, or tlaty existing or future patents will afford adeauptotection against competitors and similar
technologies. In addition, no assurances canumnghat third parties will not create new produmtsnethods that achieve similar results
without infringing upon patents we own.

Despite these measures, our intellectual propgtys may still not be protected in a meaningfuhmer, challenges to contractual rights
could arise or third parties could copy or otheendbtain and use our intellectual property withauthorization. The occurrence of any of
these events could result in the erosion of oundisaand limitations on our ability to control matikg on or through the internet using our
various domain names, as well as impede our abdigffectively compete against competitors withitr technologies, any of which could
adversely affect our business, financial conditiod results of operations.

From time to time, we have been subject to legat@edings and claims in the ordinary course ofrfass, including claims of alleged
infringement of trademarks, copyrights, patents ather intellectual property rights held by thirarfles. In addition, litigation may be
necessary in the future to enforce our intellecfwaperty rights, protect our trade secrets orgi@eine the validity and scope of proprietary
rights claimed by others. Any litigation of thiatnre, regardless of outcome or merit, could reawdtibstantial costs and diversion of
management and technical resources, any of whighl @alversely affect our business, financial caadiaind results of operations. Patent
litigation tends to be particularly protracted angbensive.

Our success depends, in part, on the integrity of our systems and infrastructures and those of third parties. System interruptions and the lack
of integration and redundancy in our and third party information systems may affect our business.

To succeed, our systems and infrastructures mugtrpewell on a consistent basis. From time to time may experience occasional

system interruptions that make some or all of gstesns or data unavailable or that prevent us frooniding products and services, which
could adversely affect our business. Moreoverratfid to our websites, applications
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and online properties increases and the numbegwf(and presumably more complex) products and aes\that we introduce continues to
grow, we will need to upgrade our systems, infragtires and technologies generally to facilitate ginowth. If we fail to do so, users,
customers and third parties with whom we do busimeay not be able to access our products and ssreit an intermittent or prolonged ba
which could adversely affect the quality of theiperiences. In addition, we could experience icedficies and/or operational failures in
connection with these efforts, which could haveshme effect. Moreover, even if we do not encouamgrinefficiencies and/or operational
failures in connection with these efforts, thirdtpgs with whom we do business may not make thagas to their systems, infrastructures anc
technologies needed to access our products anidegion a timely basis, if at all. The occurrentary of these events could adversely affect
our business, financial condition and results adrafions.

We also rely on third party computer systems, datgers, broadband and other communications systathservice providers in
connection with the provision of our products aadvges generally, as well as to facilitate andcpes certain transactions with our users and
customers. Any interruptions, outages or delaysuinsystems or those of our third party providergjeterioration in the performance of these
systems, could impair our ability to provide ouogucts and services and/or process certain traosaatith users and customers. Furtherrr
data security breaches (as a result of actionsithkénackers or otherwise), fire, power loss, @hemunications failure, natural disasters, acts
of war or terrorism, acts of God and other siméaents or disruptions may damage or interrupt cderpdata, broadband or other
communications systems at any time. Any eventisfrihture could cause system interruptions, dedagsloss of critical data, and could
prevent us from providing services to users antbouers. While we have backup systems in placeddamn aspects of our operations, our
systems are not fully redundant and disaster ragqianning is not sufficient for all eventualitida addition, we may not have adequate
insurance coverage to compensate for losses fnoraj@r interruption.

In particular, our destination search websites tregdversely affected by fraudulent, surreptitiousther unwanted computer programs,
applications and activity that make changes tosisemputers and interfere with the overall expexeof our products and services, such a
hijacking queries to these websites or alteringeptacing search results generated. This typeteffarence often occurs without disclosure to
(or consent from) users, resulting in a negatiyeeeience that users may associate with us. Theseptive programs and applications may be
difficult or impossible to uninstall or disable, yneeinstall themselves and may circumvent effastblock or remove them.

In addition, downloadable applications through whice provide search services are also subjectdolkaby viruses, worms and other
malicious software programs, which could jeopardieesecurity of information stored in users' cotepmior in our systems and networks. No
assurances can be given that our efforts to cothbae malicious applications will be successfulanthat our products and services will not
have (or will not be perceived to have) vulneraiei in this regard.

If any of these events were to occur, it could dgenaur reputation and result in the loss of curesrtt potential users and customers, w
could have an adverse effect on our business,diabtondition and results of operations and otliegve costly to remedy.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.

Item 2. Properties

IAC believes that the facilities for its managemantl operations are generally adequate for itentiand near-term future needs. IAC's
facilities, most of which are leased by IAC's basises in various cities and locations in the Uriedes and various jurisdictions abroad,
generally consist of executive and administratiffices, operations centers, data centers and efess.

All of IAC's leases are at prevailing market ralé<C believes that the duration of each lease exjadte. IAC believes that its principal
properties, whether owned or leased, are currawliguate for the purposes for which they are usddee suitably maintained for these
purposes. IAC does not anticipate any future probleesnewing or obtaining suitable leases for anysgdrincipal properties. IAC's
approximately 202,500 square foot corporate heatiensan New York, New York houses offices for |1AGrporate and various IAC
businesses. For a discussion regarding the fingrafiand related mortgage interest in) IAC's coap® headquarters, see “ltenC8nsolidate:
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data-Nate 10
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business, the Companyitarslibsidiaries are parties to litigation invalyiproperty, personal injury, contract,
intellectual property and other claims. The amotimé$ may be recovered in such matters may be cLiojénsurance coverage.

Rules of the Securities and Exchange Commissionin@the description of material pending legal pextings, other than ordinary, rout
litigation incidental to the registrant's businemsd advise that proceedings ordinarily need natdseribed if they primarily involve claims for
damages for amounts (exclusive of interest andstost exceeding 10% of the current assets ofdbistrant and its subsidiaries on a
consolidated basis. In the judgment of Company mament, none of the pending litigation matters Wwhiee Company and its subsidiaries are
defending involves or is likely to involve amouwfsthat magnitude, nor do such matters involvedssur claims that may be of particular
interest to the Company's shareholders.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.

19




Table of Contents

PART Il
ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities
Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Sockholder Matters
IAC common stock is quoted on The Nasdaq Stock Btade "NASDAQ," under the ticker symbol "IACI." &he is no established public

trading market for IAC Class B common stock. THaddelow sets forth, for the calendar periodsdatid, the high and low sales prices per
share for IAC common stock as reported on NASDAQ.

High Low
Year Ended December 31, 2013
Fourth Quarter $ 70.4¢ % 50.1¢
Third Quarter 54.71 46.4¢
Second Quarter 52.2i 43.3(
First Quarter 48.7: 38.2(
Year Ended December 31, 2012
Fourth Quarter $ 55571 $ 41.8¢
Third Quarter 55.0( 45.1(
Second Quarter 52.7¢ 43.0(
First Quarter 51.0¢ 40.87

As of February 24, 2014, there were approximatelQ holders of record of the Company's commorksand the closing price of IAC
common stock on NASDAQ was $74.16. Because thetauotis majority of the outstanding shares of |1A@renon stock are held by brokers
and other institutions on behalf of shareholdek§; Is not able to estimate the total number of fierz shareholders represented by these
record holders. As of February 24, 2014, there evesholder of record of the Company's Class B comstock.

In 2012, IAC's Board of Directors declared four qedy cash dividends, the first two of which w&@ 12 per share of common and Class
B common stock outstanding and the last two of Whiere $0.24 per share of common and Class B constock outstanding. In 2013, IAC's
Board of Directors declared four quarterly cashd#ads, all of which were $0.24 per share of comiguoth Class B common stock outstand

In February 2014, IAC's Board of Directors declaaeguiarterly cash dividend of $0.24 per share ofroon and Class B common stock
outstanding, which is payable on March 1, 2014dcldolders of record as of the close of businesBabruary 15, 2014. While we currently
expect that comparable cash dividends will contitouige paid in the near future, any future declanatof dividends are subject to the
determination of IAC's Board of Directors.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2013, thegaosndid not issue or sell any shares of its comatook or other equity securities
pursuant to unregistered transactions.
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Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table sets forth purchases by the gany of its common stock during the quarter endedeinber 31, 2013:

(© (d)

Total Maximum
Number of Number of
Shares Shares that
Purchased May Yet Be
as Part of Purchased
(@) (b) Publicly Under Publicly
Total Average Announced Announced
Number of Shares Price Paid Plans or Plans or
Period Purchased Per Share Programs ® Programs
October 2013 — — — 10,207,60
November 2013 74453t % 56.3¢ 744,53t 9,463,071
December 2013 900,90( $ 59.8( 900,90( 8,562,170
1,645,431 ¢ 58.2¢ 1,645,43 8,562,170

Total

(1) Reflects repurchases made pursuant to repurchétseriaations previously announced in May 2012 apdil®2013

(2) Represents the total number of shares of camstark that remained available for repurchase &soember 31, 2013 pursuant to the
April 2013 repurchase authorization. IAC may pusshahares pursuant to this repurchase authorizaseman indefinite period of
time in the open market and/or privately negotidgtadsactions, depending on those factors IAC mamagt deems relevant at any

particular time, including, without limitation, rmeet conditions, share price and future outlook.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data for the fiwgars ended December 31, 2013 should be read jormdion with the consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes indihéeein.

Year Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Datd":

Revenue $ 3,022,98 $ 2,800,93° $ 2,059,44. $ 1,636,81! $ 1,346,69
Earnings (loss) from continuing operatidfs 281,79¢ 169,84 175,56 (9,399 (956,477
Earnings (loss) per common share from continuirgraions attributable to IAC shareholders:
Basic $ 34C $ 198 $ 208 $ (0.09 % (6.89)
Diluted $ 321 % 181 $ 18¢ $ (0.09 $ (6.89)
Cash dividends declared per share $ 09 % 07z $ 0.1z $ — ¢ —
December 31,
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(In thousands)
Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets $ 4,234,68. $ 3,805,821 $ 3,409,86! $ 3,329,07' $ 3,913,59
Long-term debt, including current maturities 1,080,001 595,84 95,84« 95,84+ 95,84

@ We recognized items that affected the comparalfiiesults for the years 2013, 2012 and 2011} lse@ 7—Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations.”

@ Included in 2009 is $1.0 billion in impairment chas at the Search & Applications segment (formigrdySearch segment) related to
the write-down of its goodwill and intangible asset
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations
MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW

IAC is a leading media and internet company coneprisf more than 150 brands and products, includsigcom, About.com,
Match.com, HomeAdvisor and Vimeo. Focused in tleasaiof search, applications, online dating, londlmedia, IAC's family of websites is
one of the largest in the world, with more tharilkom monthly visits across more than 100 courdrie

Sources of Revenue

Substantially all of the revenue from our SearcAgplications segment is derived from online adgénty. This revenue is primarily
attributable to our services agreement with Gotrgyte ("Google"). The revenue earned from our Mategment is derived primarily from
subscription fees for its subscription-based onfiaesonals services; Match also derives revenum fnaline advertising. Our Local segment
consists of HomeAdvisor and Felix. HomeAdvisor\gereue is derived from fees paid by members ofétsvark of home services professior
for consumer leads and from subscription salestdce professionals as well as from one-time wsged upon enrollment and activation of
new home services professionals in its networkixBalevenue is derived from online advertisingeThvenue earned by our Media segment i
derived from advertising, media production and stiption fees. The revenue earned by our Other segim derived principally from
merchandise sales and subscription fees.

Strategic Partnerships, Advertiser Relationships ad Online Advertising Spend

A significant component of the Company's revenuagdtisbutable to a services agreement with Googhéch expires on March 31, 2016.
For the years ended December 31, 2013 , 2012 ahit,2@venue earned from Google was $ 1.5 billi$ri.4 billion and $ 970.4 million ,
respectively. This revenue is earned by the busesesomprising the Search & Applications segment.

We market and offer our products and services tyréa consumers through branded websites and sipkisos, allowing consumers to
transact directly with us in a convenient mannee. Nlve made, and expect to continue to make, sulsst@vestments in online and offline
advertising to build our brands and drive trafbioour websites and consumers and advertisers tbusimesses.

We pay traffic acquisition costs, which consispafyments to partners who distribute our B2B custeshbrowser-based applications,
integrate our paid listings into their websiteslwect traffic to our websites. We also pay to nea&nd distribute our services on third party
distribution channels, such as internet portalsseaich engines. In addition, some of our busisesemage affiliate programs, pursuant to
which we pay commissions and fees to third patissed on revenue earned. These distribution chanmight also offer their own products
and services, as well as those of other third gg&rtvhich compete with those we offer.

The cost of acquiring new consumers through ordime offline third party distribution channels hasreased, particularly in the case of
online channels as internet commerce continueso gnd competition in the markets in which IACisimesses operate increases.

Factors Affecting Results

In 2013, we delivered 8% revenue growth, 21% Opegdhcome Before Amortization growth and 32% Opieglncome growth.
Results were primarily driven by our Search & Apptions and Match segments. The results of ourcB&aApplications segment benefited
from a full year contribution from The About Grouphich was acquired on September 24, 2012; and3tidyMedia, which has been moved
from the Local segment to the Search & Applicatisegment, effective July 1, 2013, following its ngamization. The results at our Match
segment benefited from increased subscribers; whidhe, in part, to recent acquisitions, the nsagtificant being Twoo, which was acquired
on January 4, 2013.

Other events affecting year-over-year comparabdity (i) the closure of the Newsweek print busireass subsequent sale of Newsweek

in August 2013 (reflected in the Media segment)itifie sale of the Rezbook assets in July 20138¢tfd in the Local segment); and (iii) the
acquisition of Tutor.com, acquired December 14,20#flected in the Other segment).
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Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011

Revenue
Years Ended December 31,
2013 $ Change % Change 2012 $ Change % Change 2011
(Dollars in thousands)

Search & Applications $ 1,604,951 $ 139,15! 9% $ 1,465,790 $ 425,28t 41% $ 1,040,50
Match 788,19 74,74¢ 1C% 713,44! 195,42. 38% 518,02°
Local 277,46t (45,167) (14)% 322,62 19,20¢ 6% 303,41¢
Media 193,73: 28,91( 18% 164,82: 94,66( 13=% 70,164
Other 159,49: 24,93¢ 19 % 134,55! 6,49( 5% 128,06!
Inter-segment elimination (859) (53€) A70% (317) 42C 57% (737)

Total $ 302298 $ 22205 80, $ 2,800,93 $ 741,48 36% $ 2,05944.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012

Search & Applications revenue increased 9% to $illién , reflecting strong growth from Websiteshieh includes Ask.com,
About.com, Dictionary.com and Citysearch.com (amotiger properties)) and Applications (which inclsdwir direct to consumer
downloadable applications operations (B2C) andpauinership operations (B2B)). Websites revenua gr&% to $786.9 million, reflecting
the contribution from The About Group, acquired t8egber 24, 2012, and CityGrid Media, which has bmemed from the Local segment and
included in the Search & Applications segment, @fie July 1, 2013, following its reorganizatiorhd About Group revenue increased $108.4
million to $138.6 million in 2013, as it was nottime full prior year period. Applications revenuew 8% to $818.0 million, driven by
increased contributions from existing and new B2@ipcts.

Match revenue increased 10% to $ 788.2 millionariby increases from Core, Meetic and Developitgatbers of 9%, 6% and 141%,
respectively. Core revenue (which consists of Matm in the U.S., Chemistry and People Media), Maetvenue and Developing revenue
(which includes OkCupid, SpeedDate, DateHookup, @wiander and Match's international operations)wekag Meetic) increased 6% to
$464.3 million; 9% to $225.0 million; and 48% to8%9 million, respectively. Meetic revenue in 20X26806.7 million was negatively
impacted by the write-off of $5.2 million of defed revenue in connection with its acquisition. Depig revenue further benefited from the
contribution of Twoo, which was acquired Januar2@1 3.

Local revenue decreased 14% to $ 277.5 milliontdubke move of CityGrid Media from the Local segminthe Search & Applications
segment, effective July 1, 2013, following its gamization, and a decline at HomeAdvisor. Partiaffgetting these declines is the contribu
from Felix, a pay-per-call advertising service doegh August 20, 2012. HomeAdvisor domestic revemas negatively impacted by an 11%
decrease in accepted service requests due priniaityy domain name change at the end of 2012.

Media revenue increased 18% to $ 193.7 million prily due to strong growth from Electus and Vimpartially offset by the closure of
the Newsweek print business in December 2012.

Other revenue increased 19% to $159.5 million prilmdue to the contribution from Tutor.com, an ioel tutoring solution acquired
December 14, 2012, and increased sales at Shoebuy.

For the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the year ended December 31, 2011

Search & Applications revenue increased 41% to Billibn , reflecting strong growth from both ApplicationsdaWebsites. Applicatior
revenue grew 39% to $759.7 million, driven by 16&&1y growth and year over year monetization gaitsch were driven by increased
contributions from existing and new partners armtpcts. Websites revenue grew 43% to $706.1 mijllieflecting 21% query growth driven
primarily by increased marketing and site optinimat The growth in Websites revenue also refldotsapntribution from The About Group,
acquired September 24, 2012, which had revenu8@fl$million.

Match revenue increased 38% to $ 713.4 million béng from the full year contribution of Meetic,hich was consolidated beginning
September 1, 2011, and growth within our Core djsrs, partially offset by a decrease in Developiegenue. Core revenue increased 10% t
$439.9 million driven by an increase in subscribBevenue at Meetic was $206.7 million and $46 lioniin 2012 and 2011, respectively;
revenue was negatively impacted by the write-off®2 million and $32.6 million, respectively, cfdrred revenue in connection with its
acquisition. Developing revenue decreased 9% ta$@dlion, despite strong growth from OkCupid, dodower subscription revenue from
our Latin America venture and Singlesnet. Excludifegtic in both years, revenue grew 7% to $50618ani
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Local revenue increased 6% to $ 322.6 million mpauily reflecting growth from HomeAdvisor's opemats. HomeAdvisor domestic
revenue grew due to higher average lead acceptaeseHomeAdvisor international revenue grew dug 25% increase in accepted service
requests and higher average lead acceptance fees. revenue further benefited from the contribuidd Felix, a pay-per-call advertising
service acquired August 20, 2012, and higher rexsedlvenue from CityGrid Media, partially offset &ydecline in direct sales revenue.

Media revenue increased 135% to $ 164.8 milbamarily due to the contribution from News_Beasinsolidated beginning June 1, 2!
following the Company's acquisition of a contradjimterest, as well as strong growth from Elecius ¥imeo.

Cost of revenue

Years Ended December 31,

2013 $ Change % Change 2012 $ Change % Change 2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Cost of revenue $1,000,101 $9,304 1% $990,797 $236,908 31% $753,889
As a percentage of
revenue 33% 35% 37%

Cost of revenue consists primarily of traffic agitidn costs, which consist of payments made ttnpas who distribute our B2B
customized browser-based applications, integratgaid listings into their websites or direct traffo our websites. These payments include
amounts based on revenue share and other arrange@est of revenue also includes Shoebuy's cqstanfucts sold and shipping and
handling costs, production costs related to meridyced by Electus and other businesses withitMmdia segment, content acquisition costs
expenses associated with the operation of the Coytgpdata centers, including compensation and etmgloyee-related costs (including
stock-based compensation) for personnel engagdaténcenter functions, rent, energy and bandwidsiisc

For the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012

Cost of revenue in 2013 increased from 2012 primdre to increases of $16.9 million from OtherQ#1million from Search &
Applications and $7.2 million from Match, partiathffset by a decrease of $23.2 million from Loddie increase in cost of revenue from O
was primarily due to an increase in the cost oflpots sold at Shoebuy resulting from increasedssatd content acquisition costs from
Tutor.com, which was acquired December 14, 2012t Gbrevenue from Search & Applications increagecharily due to an increase in
content acquisition costs resulting from the adtjais of The About Group and the inclusion of City6Media in the Search & Applications
segment, effective July 1, 2013, partially offsgtabdecrease of $7.7 million in traffic acquisiticosts driven primarily by decreased revenue
from Ask.com. The increase in cost of revenue fidaich is primarily due to recent acquisitions. Teerease in cost of revenue from Local i
principally due to the move of CityGrid Media tetBearch & Applications segment, partially offsg@ln increase in traffic acquisition costs
from Felix. As a percentage of revenue, cost oénexe in 2013 decreased from 2012 primarily dubédransition of Newsweek from a print
business to a digital only publication in Decemb@t2 (which was subsequently sold in August 2018)adecrease in traffic acquisition cc
due to an increase in the proportion of revenum fvdebsites that resulted from increased online etary.

For the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the year ended December 31, 2011

Cost of revenue in 2012 increased from 2011 primdre to increases of $125.8 million from SearcA@plications,$82.7 million from
Media and $17.4 million from Match. The increaseast of revenue from Search & Applications wasnarily due to an increase of $122.0
million in traffic acquisition costs driven by ireaised revenue from our B2B operations. As a peagertf revenue, traffic acquisition costs at
Search & Applications decreased compared to thoer pear due to an increase in the proportion oénere from Websites that resulted from
increased online marketing. Cost of revenue frondisléncreased primarily due to News_Beast, conatdid beginning June 1, 2012, and
increased production costs at Electus relatedadnitrease in its revenue. The increase from Miatdiie to Meetic, which was included for
only part of the prior year, partially offset bylacrease in customer acquisition costs.
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Selling and marketing expense

Years Ended December 31,

2013 $ Change % Change 2012 $ Change % Change 2011
(Dollars in thousands)

Selling and marketing

expense $964,131 $69,586 8% $894,545 $277,347 45% $617,198
As a percentage of
revenue 32% 32% 30%

Selling and marketing expense consists primarilgdhfertising and promotional expenditures and corsgion and other employee-
related costs (including stoddased compensation) for personnel engaged in sales, support and customer service functions. Aidugg anc
promotional expenditures include online marketingluding fees paid to search engines and thirtlgsathat distribute our B2C downloadable
applications, and offline marketing, which is prihatelevision advertising.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012

Selling and marketing expense in 2013 increased 2612 primarily due to increases of $42.7 millfosm Search & Applications, $16
million from Match and $9.4 million from Media. Thecrease in selling and marketing expense frommche& Applications is primarily due to
increases of $28.3 million and $13.8 million iniaelmarketing spend and compensation and otheroymeglirelated costs, respectively. The
increase in online marketing spend from Search &liations is primarily related to new B2C downlate applications and the inclusion of
The About Group beginning September 24, 2012.18plind marketing expense from Match increased pityrdue to increases of $11.0
million and $5.3 million in advertising and prommtil expenditures and compensation and other e@loslated costs, respectively. The
increase in advertising and promotional expenditisgrimarily due to an increase in offline maikgtspend. The increase in compensation
and other employee-related costs is primarily dugntincrease in headcount at Meetic and receniigitigns. The increase in selling and
marketing expense from Media is primarily due tréases of $5.7 million in online marketing spehWieneo and $1.4 million in TV spend at
DailyBurn.

For the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the year ended December 31, 2011

Selling and marketing expense in 2012 increased #0611 primarily due to increases of $187.8 millimm Search & Applications and
$80.4 million from Match. The increase in sellimgdanarketing expense from Search & Applicationgrimarily due to an increase of $180.6
million in online marketing related to Ask.com aexisting B2C downloadable applications. Selling amatketing expense at Match increased
primarily due to Meetic, which was included for pipart of the prior year, and an increase in offimarketing spend.

General and administrative expense

Years Ended December 31,

2013 $ Change % Change 2012 $ Change % Change 2011
(Dollars in thousands)

General and administrative
expense $372,470 $(13,618) (4)% $386,088 $65,026 20% $321,062

As a percentage of revenue 12% 14% 16%

General and administrative expense consists piliynarcompensation and other employee-related dasttuding stock-based
compensation) for personnel engaged in executiveagement, finance, legal, tax and human resouiaebties costs and fees for professic
services.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012

General and administrative expense in 2013 dealdas® 2012 primarily due to decreases of $25.3ionilfrom Corporate, $8.9 million
from Local and $4.4 million from Media, partiallyfset by increases of $12.4 million from Search gphications, $6.4 million from Match
and $6.2 million from Other. General and administeexpense from Corporate decreased primarilytduwedecrease of $25.5 million in non-
cash compensation expense related primarily tog¢séng of certain awards and an increase in timeteun of awards forfeited as compared to
the prior year. The decrease in general and admétise expense from Local is primarily due to thelusion of an $8.4 million gain on the s
of the Rezbook assets in July 2013. General andnéstnative expense from Media decreased primatlg to the inclusion in the prior year of
$7.0 million in restructuring costs related to trensition of Newsweek to a digital only publicatiand a $6.3 million gain related to the
subsequent sale of Newsweek in August 2013, pigroffset by increases in compensation and othgrleyee-related costs related to the
growth in Vimeo and DailyBurn. The increase in gahand administrative expense from Search &
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Applications is primarily due to the inclusion ofid About Group beginning September 24, 2012. Génathadministrative expense from
Match increased primarily due to recent acquisgtiand an increase in professional fees due, intparansaction fees related primarily to the
Meetic tender offer. The increase in general andiaidtrative expense from Other is primarily duehe inclusion of Tutor.com, which was
acquired December 14, 2012. As a percentage ohueygeneral and administrative expense in 201@&dsed from 2012 primarily due to the
gain on the sale of the Rezbook assets in July 26@i3he inclusion in the prior year of restruaigrcosts related to Newsweek and the gain
related to its subsequent sale in August 2013.

For the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the year ended December 31, 2011

General and administrative expense in 2012 incteftsen 2011 primarily due to increases of $29.9iomlfrom Media, $13.4 million
from Local, $11.2 million from Match and $7.7 milii from Search & Applications. As a percentageevBnue, general and administrative
expense in 2012 decreased from 2011 primarily dugpérating expense leverage. The increase in glegredl administrative expense from
Media resulted primarily from the inclusion of NevBeast, consolidated beginning June 1, 2012, wihdihdes $7.0 million in restructuring
costs related to its transition to a digital oniyppication, as well as an increase in operatingeagps at Electus. General and administrative
expense from Local increased primarily due to higlienpensation and employee-related expensestatooheAdvisor and CityGrid Media,
the inclusion of Felix, which was acquired on Aug2@, 2012, and an increase in bad debt expertderaeAdvisor. The increase in
compensation and employee-related expenses at @tjedia was primarily due to employee terminattmsts associated with a reduction in
workforce. The increase in general and administeatixpense from Match is primarily due to Meetibjeh was included for only part of the
prior year, partially offset by a decrease in pssfenal fees due, in part, to the inclusion infhier year of $4.0 million in transaction fees
associated with the Meetic acquisition. General aministrative expense from Search & Applicatiortseased primarily due to the
acquisition of The About Group, and increases imgensation and other employee-related costs arfdgsional fees.

Product development expense

Years Ended December 31,

2013 $ Change % Change 2012 $ Change % Change 2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Product development expense $141,330 $23,647 20% $117,683 $26,926 30% $90,757
As a percentage of revenue 5% 4% 4%

Product development expense consists primarilyofpensation and other employee-related costs @imgdustock-based compensation)
that are not capitalized for personnel engageterdesign, development, testing and enhancemgmbdfict offerings and related technology.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012

Product development expense in 2013 increased 2@ primarily due to increases of $16.3 millioonfr Search & Applications and
$4.9 million from Media. The increase in producvelepment expense from Search & Applications isprily due to an increase in
compensation and other employee-related costsiatsevith the inclusion of The About Group begmmniSeptember 24, 2012, and an
increase in headcount related to new B2C prod&ctaduct development expense from Media increasethply due to News_Beast,
consolidated beginning June 1, 2012.

For the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the year ended December 31, 2011

Product development expense in 2012 increased 2@ primarily due to increases of $12.6 millioonfr Match, $6.5 million from
Search & Applications and $4.2 million from Mediée increase in product development expense frotetMa primarily due to an increase
compensation and other employee-related costsmpeyt, to an increase in headcount and Meetiégchwvas included for only part of the
prior year. Product development expense from Se&arpplications increased primarily due to the aisifion of The About Group on
September 24, 2012. The increase from Media isgiiyndue to News_Beast.
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Depreciation
Years Ended December 31,
2013 $ Change % Change 2012 $ Change % Change 2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Depreciation $58,909 $6,428 12% $52,481 $(4,238) ()% $56,719
As a percentage of revenue 2% 2% 3%

For the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012

Depreciation in 2013 increased from 2012 resultingy the incremental depreciation associated vaghital expenditures made
subsequent to 2012, various acquisitions and tite-wff of $2.7 million in capitalized software desat The About Group during the second
quarter of 2013 primarily related to projects tbatnmenced prior to its acquisition, partially offbg certain fixed assets becoming fully
depreciated.

For the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the year ended December 31, 2011
Depreciation in 2012 decreased from 2011 resufinmarily from certain fixed assets becoming fullgpreciated in 2011 and the write-
off of $4.9 million in capitalized software costssaciated with the exit of the Company's direchspoed listings business in 2011, partially

offset by an increase in depreciation from Matefmarily related to Meetic, which was included forly part of the prior year.

Operating | ncome Before Amortization

Years Ended December 31,

2013 $ Change % Change 2012 $ Change % Change 2011
(Dollars in thousands)

Search & Applications $ 367,67: $ 54,52¢ 17% $ 313,14« $ 108,16t 53% $ 204,98(
Match 262,15¢ 36,39« 16 % 225,76! 69,491 44 % 156,27:
Local 13,02: (11,909 (48)% 24,93: (3,352 (12)% 28,28t
Media (28,157 16,67( 37% (44,827) (28,982 (18%)% (15,845
Other (6,13¢) (43) ()% (6,095) (3,596) (144 % (2,499
Corporate (69,167 (1,210 (2% (67,957 (5,170 (8)% (62,787)
Total $ 539,39: § 94,43( 21% $ 44496: $ 136,55 44% $ 308,40°

As a percentage of revenue __ 18% 16% 15%

For the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012

Search & Applications Operating Income Before Anzation increased 17% to $367.7 million , benefjtirom the higher revenue noted
above, partially offset by increases of $42.7 wiillin selling and marketing expense, $16.3 millimproduct development expense, $12.4
million in general and administrative expense ab@d.$ million in cost of revenue. The increase ifirsg and marketing expense is primarily
due to new B2C downloadable applications and thiigion of The About Group, beginning SeptemberZ?4,2. The increase in both product
development expense and general and administetivense is primarily due to an increase in compemsand other employee-related costs
related to the inclusion of The About Group. Prddievelopment expense was also impacted by anaser@ headcount related to new B2C
products. The increase in costs of revenue is piliyrdue to an increase in content acquisition sossulting from the acquisition of The About
Group and the inclusion of CityGrid Media in theaB# & Applications segment, effective July 1, 20A&rtially offset by a decrease of $7.7
million in traffic acquisition costs driven primfriby decreased revenue from Ask.com. Search & isppbns Operating Income Before
Amortization was further impacted in the currenaryby the writesff of $2.7 million in capitalized software costsTde About Group primari
related to projects that commenced prior to itsuaston.

Match Operating Income Before Amortization increh$6% to $262.2 million , primarily due to the reve growth noted above,
partially offset by increases of $16.8 million ills\g and marketing expense, $7.2 million in amistevenue and $6.4 million in general and
administrative expense. The increase in sellingraatketing expense is primarily due to increaseaxffime marketing spend and compensa
and other employee-related costs due, in parf) io@ease in headcount at Meetic and recent atiqns The increase in both cost of revenue
and general and administrative expense is primdtify to recent acquisitions. General and administraxpense was also impacted by an
increase in professional fees due, in part, to
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transaction fees related primarily to the Meetitdier offer. Operating Income Before Amortizatioe\grat a faster rate than revenue growth
primarily due to operating expense leverage.

Local Operating Income Before Amortization decrela$8% to $13.0 million reflecting the move of CitgéGMedia to the Search &
Applications segment, effective July 1, 2013, ad®$nillion in employee termination costs assodatéth the CityGrid Media reorganization
that took place in the second quarter of 2013 idroffsetting the decrease in Operating InconaédBe Amortization is the inclusion of an
$8.4 million gain on the sale of the Rezbook assefsily 2013.

Media Operating Income Before Amortization lossrdased 37% to a loss of $28.2 million primarily do¢he closure of the Newsweek
print business and the inclusion of a $6.3 millgain related to the sale of Newsweek in August 2013

For the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the year ended December 31, 2011

Search & Applications Operating Income Before Anzation increased 53% to $313.1 million , benefjtirom the higher revenue noted
above and a decrease of $10.5 million in deprexiapartially offset by increases of $187.8 milliorselling and marketing expense and
$122.0 million in traffic acquisition costs. Theadease in depreciation is due to certain fixedtadsecoming fully depreciated in 2011 and the
write-off of $4.9 million in capitalized softwarests associated with the exit of the Company'stsponsored listings business in 2011. The
increase in selling and marketing expense is dpranarily by increased online marketing expenditurelated to Ask.com and existing B2C
downloadable applications. The increase in traffiquisition costs is primarily due to increaseceraie from our B2B operations.

Match Operating Income Before Amortization increh4é% to $225.8 million , primarily due to the cabtition from Meetic and higher
Core revenue noted above. Operating Income Befarerfization, excluding Meetic, was impacted by @ases in selling and marketing
expense and product development expense, pauifdlgt by decreases in cost of revenue and geaptbhdministrative expense. The increas
in selling and marketing expense is primarily duarn increase in offline marketing spend. Prodesetbpment expense increased from 2011
primarily due to an increase in compensation ahdrotmployee-related costs due, in part, to areas® in headcount. The decrease in cost o
revenue is primarily due to lower customer acquisitosts. The decrease in general and administrakipense is primarily due to the
inclusion in the prior year of $4.0 million in treerction fees associated with the Meetic acquisition

Media Operating Income Before Amortization loss@ased by $29.0 million to a loss of $44.8 millrefiecting the consolidation of
News_Beast beginning June 1, 2012. Included imghelts of News_Beast is $7.0 million in restruictgrcosts related to its transition t
digital only publication.

Operating income (l0ss)

Years Ended December 31,

2013 $ Change % Change 2012 $ Change % Change 2011
(Dollars in thousands)

Search & Applications $ 340,11 $ 34,47 11% $ 30564 $ 101,63t 50% $ 204,00t
Match 245,55t 40,06 19% 205,49: 67,93° 49% 137,55!
Local (392) (22,127 NM 21,73t (3,799 (15)% 25,53
Media (29,860) 21,91¢ 42 % (51,77¢ (35,50 (218)% (16,27%)
Other (8,837) (1,14¢) (15)% (7,689 (3,799 (97)% (3,896
Corporate (120,38) 29,45° 20% (149,839 (677) — % (149,16)
Total $ 426,20 $ 102,63! 32% $ 32356( $ 125,80¢ 64% $ 197,76.

As a percentage of reven 14% 12% 10%

NM = not meaningfu

Refer to Note 15 to the consolidated financialestagnts for reconciliations of Operating Income Befamortization to operating income
(loss) by reportable segment.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012

Operating income in 2013 increased from 2012 prilndue to the increase of $94.4 million in Opengtincome Before Amortization
described above and a decrease of $32.6 milliomincash compensation expense, partially offsetrbincrease of $24.1 million in
amortization of intangibles. The decrease in nagh compensation expense is primarily a resuhlefesting of certain awards and an incr
in the number of awards forfeited as comparedémitiior year. The increase in amortization of igibles is primarily related to the acquisiti



of The About Group and a $3.4 million impairmenaade associated with an indefinite-lived intangisset related to the CityGrid
Media restructuring in the second quarter of 2013.
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At December 31, 2013, there was $86.2 million alangnized compensation cost, net of estimateeifares, related to all equity-based
awards, which is expected to be recognized ovesighted average period of approximately 2.2 years.

For the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to the year ended December 31, 2011

Operating income in 2012 increased from 2011 prilndoe to the increase of $136.6 million in Opéargtincome Before Amortization
described above and a decrease of $3.0 milliomimaash compensation expense, partially offsetbperease of $13.7 million in
amortization of intangibles. The increase in anzatton of intangibles is primarily related to Thedut Group and News_Beast.

Equity in losses of unconsolidated affiliates

Years Ended December 31,

2013 $Change % Change 2012 $ Change % Change 2011
(Dollars in thousands)

Equity in losses of unconsolidated affiliates $(6,615)  $18,730 74% $(25,345)  $10,955 30% $(36,300)

Equity in losses of unconsolidated affiliates irl20Gncludes a pre-tax non-cash charge of $18.6amitelated to the re-measurement of
the carrying value of our equity method investriamlews_Beast to fair value in connection with aaquisition of a controlling interest and
losses related to News_Beast through May 31, 2012.

Equity in losses of unconsolidated affiliates irl20ncludes losses related to our equity methoddtient in News_Beast and a pre-tax
non-cash charge of $11.7 million related to theneasurement of the carrying value of Match's 27%itgegnethod investment in Meetic to fair
value (i.e., the tender offer price of €15.00 gwars) in connection with our acquisition of a cotling interest. Partially offsetting these items
are earnings related to Meetic through August 81,12

I nterest expense

Years Ended December 31,

2013 $ Change % Change 2012 $ Change % Change 2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Interest expense $(33,596) $(27,447) (446)% $(6,149) $(719) (13)% $(5,430)

Interest expense in 2013 increased from 2012 piliyrdue to the 4.75% Senior Notes due DecembeP@82 (the "2012 Senior Notes")
on December 21, 2012 and the issuance of 4.875%619¢otes due November 30, 2018 (the "2013 Seniatesl) on November 15, 2013.

Interest expense in 2012 increased from 2011 piliynduwe to the issuance of the 2012 Senior Notes.

Other income (expense), net

Years Ended December 31,

2013 $ Change % Change 2012 $ Change % Change 2011
(Dollars in thousands)
Other income (expense), net $30,309 $33,321 NM $(3,012) $(18,502) NM $15,490

Other income, net in 2013 is primarily due to a.$3%illion pre-tax gain related to the sale of ldegm investments, consisting
principally of certain marketable equity securitipartially offset by a $5.0 million write-down afcost method investment to fair value.

Other expense, net in 2012 is primarily due to &7 $nillion other-than-temporary impairment chargkated to a long-term marketable
equity security. The Company evaluated the nean-fospects of the issuer in relation to the sgwarnd duration of its unrealized loss and
based on that evaluation recorded an impairmemgeha the fourth quarter of 2012. Partially offsed the impairment charge is $3.5 million
in interest income and a $3.3 million pre-tax ga&ikated to the sale of certain marketable equitysges.

Other income, net in 2011 is primarily due to $fiflion in interest income, $4.6 million in gainssociated with certain non-income tax
refunds related to Match Europe, which was sol2l0@9, a foreign currency exchange gain of $3.3ionill
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related to the funds that were held in escrowHerNeetic tender offer and a $2.0 million pre-taingelated to the sale of a marketable equity
security.

Income tax (provision) benefit

Years Ended December 31,

2013 $ Change % Change 2012 $ Change % Change 2011
(Dollars in thousands)

Income tax (provision)
benefit $(134,502) NM NM $(119,215) NM NM $4,047

In 2013, the Company recorded an income tax prawifr continuing operations of $134.5 millipwhich represents an effective inca
tax rate of 32%. The 2013 effective rate is lovimtthe statutory rate of 35% due primarily to igmencome taxed at lower rates. In 2012, the
Company recorded an income tax provision for caitig operations of $ 119.2 million , which repretsean effective income tax rate of 41%.
The 2012 effective rate is higher than the stayutate of 35% due primarily to an increase in reseffor and interest on reserves for income
tax contingencies, a valuation allowance on themedl tax asset created by the other-than-tempargirment charge related to a long-term
marketable equity security and state taxes, phrivdfiset by foreign income taxed at lower rates2011, the Company recorded an income ta
benefit for continuing operations of $ 4.0 millidespite pre-tax income of a $ 171.5 million . Theome tax benefit is due principally to the
reversal of a previously established deferreditbility described in the next sentence, reseriease due to the settlement of audits,
expirations of statutes of limitations and foreigpome taxed at lower rates. In connection withabeuisition of a controlling interest in
Meetic in 2011, the Company concluded that it id&to indefinitely reinvest the earnings of Matchiternational operations related to Mee
including the 2009 gain on sale of Match Européside of the United States, which resulted in theersal of a deferred tax liability of $43.7
million.

The Company recognizes interest and, if applicgi#eaalties related to unrecognized tax benefitsdame tax provision. Included in
income tax provision for continuing operations aiitontinued operations for the year ended Deceidbe2013 is a $4.8 million expense and
a $1.4 million expense, respectively, net of relateferred taxes, for interest on unrecognized&nefits. Included in the income tax provision
for continuing operations and discontinued openretifor the year ended December 31, 2012 is a $#idmexpense and a $2.8 million
benefit, respectively, net of related deferred safer interest on unrecognized tax benefits. Até&mrber 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company has
accrued $133.0 million and $117.5 milliprespectively, for the payment of interest. At Beber 31, 2013 and 2012, the Company has ac
$5.1 million and $5.0 million , respectively, foemalties.

The Company is routinely under audit by federalfestiocal and foreign authorities in the areanobme tax. These audits include
guestioning the timing and the amount of income dedlictions and the allocation of income and dediietamong various tax jurisdictions.
Various jurisdictions are currently under examioatithe most significant of which are France, @afifa, New York and New York City for
various tax years beginning with 2006. Income tgpasble include reserves considered sufficiepaipassessments that may result from
examination of prior year tax returns. Change®serves from period to period and differences betveamounts paid, if any, upon the
resolution of audits and amounts previously prodidey be material. Differences between the resdordacome tax contingencies and the
amounts owed by the Company are recorded in thiedptdrey become known.

On August 28, 2013, the Joint Committee of Taxatiompleted its review and approved the audit sa#l# previously agreed to with 1
Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") for the years endecember 31, 2001 through 2009. The statutarofdtions for the years 2001 through
2009 expires on July 1, 2014. The resolution of tRIS examination resulted in a net liability te RS of $7.1 million. At December 31, 2013
and 2012, the Company has unrecognized tax benéf275.8 million and $379.3 million, respectivelynrecognized tax benefits at
December 31, 2013 decreased $103.5 million fromeBwber 31, 2012 due principally to the settlemernhefaudit of the federal income tax
returns for the years ended December 31, 2001 ghr8009. The reduction of unrecognized tax benefits substantially offset by a reduction
of receivables related to the same period. The Gompelieves that it is reasonably possible tisafiiirecognized tax benefits could decrease
within twelve months of the current reporting date.estimate of changes in unrecognized tax benefitile potentially significant, cannot be
made.
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FINANCIAL POSITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At December 31, 2013, the Company had $1.1 billibcash and cash equivalents, $6.0 million of miatide securities, and $1.1 billion
of long-term debt. Domestically, cash equivalemtmprily consist of AAA rated money market fundsdazommercial paper rated A2/P2 or
better. Internationally, cash equivalents primacityisist of time deposits and AAA rated money mifikeds. Marketable securities consist of
equity securities and a short-to-medium-term debusty issued by an investment grade corporateeis§he Company invests in marketable
debt securities with active secondary or resal&katarto ensure portfolio liquidity to fund currevgerations or satisfy other cash requirements
as needed. The Company also invests in equity isesuass part of its investment strategy. Long-teleht is comprised of $500.0 million in
2013 Senior Notes due November 30, 2018, $5001@®mih 2012 Senior Notes due December 15, 2022%&@0d0 million in Liberty Bonds
due September 1, 2035. The proceeds received frenssuance of our 2013 and 2012 Senior Noteswillsed for general corporate purpc

At December 31, 2013, $313.4 million of the $ 1lillidm of cash and cash equivalents was held byGbmpany's foreign subsidiaries. If
needed for our operations in the U.S., most ottsh and cash equivalents held by the Companggfosubsidiaries could be repatriated to
the U.S. but, under current law, would be subjedf iS. federal and state income taxes and we haivgravided for any such tax. However,
Company currently does not anticipate a need tatrigpe these funds to finance our U.S. operatombit is the Company's intent to
indefinitely reinvest these funds outside of th&U.

In summary, the Company's cash flows attributadbleontinuing operations are as follows:

December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 410,96: $ 354,52 $ 372,38t
Net cash used in investing activities (80,017 (352,089 (25,18¢)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 17,92: 44,30: (372,23)

Net cash provided by operating activities attriblggto continuing operations consists of earningess from continuing operations
adjusted for non-cash items, including non-cashpaeation expense, depreciation, amortizationtahgibles, asset impairment charges,
excess tax benefits from stock-based awards, eéefémcome taxes, equity in earnings or losses obusolidated affiliates, acquisition-related
contingent consideration fair value adjustmentsyalas gain on sales of long-term investmentsgaid on sales of assets, and the effect of
changes in working capital activities. Net cashvjted by operating activities attributable to cantng operations in 2013 consists of earnings
from continuing operations of $281.8 million , astilments for non-cash items and gains on salegftierm investments and assets totaling $
110.8 million , and cash provided by working capdetivities of $18.4 million . Adjustments for na@ash items and sales of long-term
investments and assets primarily consist of $59l8mof amortization of intangibles, $58.9 milticof depreciation, $53.0 million of non-cash
compensation expense, partially offset by $32.%ianilof excess tax benefits from stock-based aw&85.9 million of gain on sales of long-
term investments and $14.8 million of gain on salesssets. The increase in cash from changesikingpcapital activities primarily consists
of an increase in income taxes payable of $49.komiand a decrease in accounts receivable of $hlibn , partially offset by an increase of
$34.6 million in other assets. The increase innedaxes payable is due to current year incomadasuals in excess of current year income
tax payments. The decrease in accounts receivaplemarily due to a $14.8 million decrease in arts receivable related to Newsweek's
transition to a digital only publication and oundees agreement with Google; the related recee/éloim Google was $112.3 million and
$125.3 million at December 31, 2013 and 2012, retspaly. These decreases were partially offsetrbjnarease in accounts receivable at
Electus due to higher revenue. The increase irr @tbgets is primarily due to an increase in stertitand long-term production costs at certair
of our media businesses that are capitalized aekysion program, video or film is being proddce

Net cash used in investing activities attributableontinuing operations in 2013 includes cash iciamation used in acquisitions and
investments of $91.8 million , which includes tlogaisition of Twoo, and capital expenditures of $8@illion , which includes $23.6 million
related to the purchase of a 50% ownership inténest aircraft, partially offset by net maturitiasd sales of marketable debt securities and
sales of long-term investments of $82.5 million .

Net cash provided by financing activities attrithiéato continuing operations in 2013 includes $6@fillion in proceeds from the
issuance of our 2013 Senior Notes and excess tafitefrom stock-based awards of $32.9 milliomrtlly offset by $264.2 million for the
repurchase of 4.5 million shares of common stodnadverage price of $50.63 per share, $79.2 mitbtated to the payment of cash divide
to IAC shareholders, $71.5 million held in escralated to the Meetic tender offer, $67.9 million fiee purchase of noncontrolling interests ir
Meetic and a subsidiary of HomeAdvisor,
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$15.8 million for the payment of our 2002 Seniort&s which were due January 15, 2013, and $7.4omidif debt issuance costs associated
with our 2013 Senior Notes.

Net cash provided by operating activities attrilblégto continuing operations in 2012 consists ohegs from continuing operations of $
169.8 million , adjustments for non-cash items 2042 million and cash used in working capitahatiés of $ 19.5 million . Adjustments for
non-cash items primarily consists of $ 85.6 milliohnon-cash compensation expense, $ 52.5 milibdepreciation, $37.1 millioaf deferrec
income taxes, $35.8 million of amortization of imgbles and $ 25.3 million of equity in lossesuatonsolidated affiliates, which includes a
non-cash charge of $18.6 million to re-measurectreying value of our investment in News_Beastio ¥alue in connection with our
acquisition of a controlling interest, partiallyfegt by $57.1 million of excess tax benefits fraiwc&-based awards. The deferred income tax
provision primarily relates to the vesting of regtrd stock units, the exercise of stock optiors e accelerated payment of 2012 bonuses.
The decrease in cash from changes in working dagutavities primarily consists of an increase @50 million in accounts receivable, an
increase of $ 23.0 million in other assets, aeese in accounts payable and other current ligsildf $ 14.4 million , partially offset by an
increase in income taxes payable of $ 47.0 millidhe increase in accounts receivable is primalulg to the growth in revenue at Search &
Applications earned from our services agreemerit Bivogle; the related receivable from Google wag% 3 million and $ 105.7 million at
December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. WhileMaiich and HomeAdvisor businesses experienced grdatw accounts receivable at these
businesses are principally credit card receivaltel accordingly, are not significant in relatiorthe revenue of these businesses. The increa
in other assets is primarily related to a receigdbt insurance claims related to Hurricane Saadyincrease in capitalized downloadable
search toolbar costs and an increase in shortyteoduction costs at certain of our Media businefisgisare capitalized as the television
program, video or film is being produced. The daseein accounts payable and other current ligslis primarily due to a decrease in accrue
employee compensation and benefits, partially bffigean increase in accrued advertising expense d€rease in accrued employee
compensation and benefits is due to the paymeteo2012 and 2011 bonuses in 2012. The increasecinied advertising expense is prima
due to an increase in advertising and promotioxpérditures at Search & Applications. The incraasacome taxes payable is due to current
year income tax accruals in excess of current iyemme tax payment

Net cash used in investing activities attributableontinuing operations in 2012 includes cash ictamation used in acquisitions and
investments of $447.1 million primarily relatedtbe acquisition of The About Group, and capitalendgtitures of $51.2 million primarily
related to the internal development of softwarsupport our products and services, partially offsehet maturities and sales of marketable
debt securities and sales of long-term investmein$s155.7 million .

Net cash provided by financing activities attribaléato continuing operations in 2012 includes $804illion in proceeds from the
issuance of our 2012 Senior Notes, proceeds refattiik issuance of common stock, net of withhadaxes, of $262.8 million , and excess
tax benefits from stock-based awards of $57.1 onilli partially offset by $691.8 million for the taghase of 15.5 million shares of common
stock at an average price of $46.09 per share2$68lion related to the payment of cash dividet@l$AC shareholders and $11.0 million of
debt issuance costs associated with our 2012 SHoies. Included in the proceeds related to theaisse of common stock are proceeds of
$284.1 million from the exercise of warrants towiog 11.7 million shares of IAC common stock, sashehich were exercised on a cashless
or net basis. The weighted average strike pridbefvarrants was $28.40 per share.

Net cash provided by operating activities attriblegto continuing operations in 2011 consists ohiegs from continuing operations of $
175.6 million , adjustments for non-cash items a58&.7 million and cash provided by working cap#elivities of $42.1 million . Adjustments
for non-cash items primarily consists of $ 88.6limil of non-cash compensation expense, $ 56.7anithf depreciation, $ 36.3 million of
equity in losses of unconsolidated affiliates, vhiecludes a non-cash charge of $11.7 million tmeasure the carrying value of our
investment in Meetic to fair value in connectiortmour acquisition of a controlling interest an®&2million of amortization of intangibles,
partially offset by $ 35.5 million of deferred inoe taxes and $22.2 million of excess tax benefits fstock-based awards. The deferred
income tax benefit primarily relates to the reveoda previously established deferred tax liabilit connection with the acquisition of a
controlling interest in Meetic. The increase intcd®m changes in working capital activities prihaconsists of an increase of $ 57.2 million
in accounts payable and other current liabilitied an increase of $48.9 million in deferred revemaetially offset by an increase in accounts
receivable of $ 58.3 million . The increase in aods payable and other current liabilities is priilgadue to an increase in accrued advertising
expense, an increase in accrued employee compamsaitil benefits and an increase in accrued reva@rare expense. The increase in accrue
advertising expense is primarily due to an incréasalvertising and promotional expenditures ar&e& Applications. The increase in
accrued employee compensation and benefits is phyndaie to the increase in the 2011 bonus acométh was paid entirely in the first
quarter of 2012 as compared to the 2010 bonus @oshich was partially paid in December of 2010 &melremainder in the first quarter of
2011. The increase in accrued revenue share expepsmarily due to an increase in traffic acquiisi costs at Search & Applications. The
increase in deferred revenue is primarily due édgtowth in subscription revenue at Match, whidtdes an increase of $29.5 million in
deferred revenue at Meetic, as well as growth ettids, Vimeo and Notional. The increase in accorgusivable is primarily due to the growth
in revenue earned from our services agreement®@dtbgle;
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the related receivable from Google was $ 105.7ioniland $ 70.5 million at December 31, 2011 and2@dspectively. While our Match,
Media and HomeAdvisor businesses experienced sggmwth, the accounts receivable at these busisesseprincipally credit card
receivables and, accordingly, are not significarelation to the revenue of these businesses.

Net cash used in investing activities attributableontinuing operations in 2011 includes cash iciemation used in acquisitions and
investments of $368.7 million primarily relatedth® acquisitions of Meetic and OkCupid and the &tweent in Zhenai Inc. and capital
expenditures of $ 40.0 million primarily relatedthe internal development of software to suppartgroducts and services, partially offset by
net maturities and sales of marketable debt séesidind sales of long-term investments of $396I2omi.

Net cash used in financing activities attributableontinuing operations in 2011 includes $ 507iion for the repurchase of
13.6 million shares of common stock at an averaige pf $38.20 per share and $10.7 million relatethe payment of cash dividends to IAC
shareholders, partially offset by proceeds relatetie issuance of common stock, net of withholdags, of $ 132.8 million , and excess tax
benefits from stock-based awards of $ 22.2 millitmcluded in the proceeds related to the issuahcemmon stock are proceeds of
$76.0 million from the exercise of warrants to aog3.2 million shares of IAC common stock. The grged average strike price of the
warrants was $26.90 per share.

The Company's principal sources of liquidity asegash and cash equivalents and marketable seswagiwell as its cash flows generate
from operations. The Company has a $300.0 millewolving credit facility, which expires on Decemt®r, 2017, and is available as an
additional source of financing. At December 31, 2here were no outstanding borrowings underekelving credit facility.

The Company anticipates that it will need to ma&gital and other expenditures in connection withdbvelopment and expansion of its
operations. The Company expects that 2014 capiperalitures will be lower than 2013. At December&113, IAC had 8.6 million shares
remaining in its share repurchase authorizatio May purchase shares over an indefinite periduna on the open market and in privately
negotiated transactions, depending on those fakd@snanagement deems relevant at any particutag,tincluding, without limitation, mark
conditions, share price and future outlook. On Eabr 4, 2014, IAC declared a quarterly cash divideh$0.24 per share of common and C
B common stock outstanding payable on March 1, 20 5tockholders of record on February 15, 2014urieudeclarations of dividends are
subject to the determination of IAC's Board of Diaes.

The Company believes its existing cash, cash etpnteaand marketable securities, together witkxisected positive cash flows
generated from operations and available borrowagacity under its $300.0 million revolving creditflity, will be sufficient to fund its
normal operating requirements, including capitgenditures, share repurchases, quarterly cashedigl and investing and other
commitments for the foreseeable future. Our ligyidbuld be negatively affected by a decrease mat® for our products and services. The
Company may make acquisitions and investmentscthdt reduce its cash, cash equivalents and ménlketacurities balances and as a resul
the Company may need to raise additional capitaligh future debt or equity financing to provide @oeater financial flexibility. Additional
financing may not be available at all or on terangofable to us.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS

Payments Due by Period

Less Than 1-3 3-5 More Than
Contractual Obligations @ 1 Year Years Years 5 Years Total
(In thousands)
Long-term debf” $ 53,14. $ 104,25( $ 604,25( $ 743,000 $ 1,504,64
Operating leases 26,29t 51,63} 42,40: 197,84t 318,18:
Purchase obligatiorg 8,563¢ 3,00¢ — — 11,54
Total contractual cash obligations $ 8797( $ 158,89t $ 646,65 $ 940,84¢ $% 1,834,36!

@  The Company has excluded $294.7 million in unreceghtax benefits and related interest from théetabove as we are unable to
make a reasonably reliable estimate of the periaghich these liabilities might be paid. For adutial information on income taxes,

see Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements

®  Represents contractual amounts due including isitt

The purchase obligations primarily include adverjscommitments, which commitments are reducibleeominable such that these

commitments can never exceed associated revenaen@aningful amount. Purchase obligations alsadechinimum payments due
under telecommunication contracts related to datssmission lines.

Other Commercial Commitments@

Letters of credit and surety bonds

C)
third parties or contingent events.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

Less Than 1-3
1 Year Years Total
(In thousands)
$ 2937 $ 68 $ 3,00¢

Commercial commitments are funding commitments ¢oatd potentially require registrant performantéhie event of demands by

Other than the items described above, the Compaey dot have any off-balance sheet arrangemewfsecember 31, 2013.
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IAC'S PRINCIPLES OF FINANCIAL REPORTING

IAC reports Operating Income Before Amortizatioreasupplemental measure to generally accepted atiegiprinciples ("GAAP").
This measure is one of the primary metrics by whiehevaluate the performance of our businessesh@h our internal budgets are based
by which management is compensated. We believarthastors should have access to, and we are tédxdiga provide, the same set of tools
that we use in analyzing our results. This non-GAA&asure should be considered in addition to iepudtpared in accordance with GAAP,
but should not be considered a substitute for pesar to GAAP results. IAC endeavors to compengat¢he limitations of the non-GAAP
measure presented by providing the comparable Gia&sure with equal or greater prominence, finastéEements prepared in accordance
with GAAP, and descriptions of the reconciling igrncluding quantifying such items, to derive tloan-GAAP measure. We encourage
investors to examine the reconciling adjustmenteden the GAAP and non-GAAP measure, which we distelow.

Definition of IAC's Non-GAAP Measure

Operating Income Before Amortization is defined as operating income excluding, if agle: (1) non-cash compensation expense,
(2) amortization and impairment of intangibles, g@pdwill impairment, (4) acquisition-related cargént consideration fair value adjustments
and (5) one-time items. We believe this measuusé$ul to investors because it represents the tidased operating results from IAC's
segments, taking into account depreciation, whietbelieve is an ongoing cost of doing businessekaluding the effects of any other non-
cash expenses. Operating Income Before Amortizdtéancertain limitations in that it does not tak®iaccount the impact to IAC's statement
of operations of certain expenses, including nashadmpensation and acquisition-related accounting.

One-Time Items

Operating Income Before Amortization is presentefbie one-time items, if applicable. These itengstarly one-time in nature and non-
recurring, infrequent or unusual, and have not eclin the past two years or are not expecteddorrin the next two years, in accordance
with the Securities and Exchange Commission r@&@$AP results include one-time items. For the pesiptesented in this report, there are no
adjustments for one-time items.

Non-Cash Expenses That Are Excluded From IAC's NoiGGAAP Measure

Non-cash compensation expense consists principally of expense assocwitbdhe grants, including unvested grants assuimed
acquisitions, of stock options, restricted stocku(fRSUs") and performandeased RSUs. These expenses are not paid in cakteanclude
the related shares in our fully diluted sharestantsing which, for stock options and RSUs, areuded on a treasury method basis, and for
performance-based RSUs are included on a treaseityoah basis once the performance conditions areWpein the exercise of certain stock
options and vesting of RSUs and performabased RSUs, the awards are settled, at the Conspdiagtetion, on a net basis, with the Comj
remitting the required tax-withholding amount fracurrent funds.

Amortization of intangibles (including impairment of intangibles, if applicable) and goodwill impairment (if applicable) are non-cash
expenses relating primarily to acquisitions. At tinee of an acquisition, the identifiable definlteed intangible assets of the acquired
company, such as content, technology, customsr aslvertiser and supplier relationships, are whhred amortized over their estimated lives.
Value is also assigned to acquired indefinite-liirgdngible assets, which comprise trade namedraddmarks, and goodwill that are not
subject to amortization. An impairment is recoredten the carrying value of an intangible assetomdgill exceeds its fair value. While it is
likely that we will have significant intangible amiaation expense as we continue to acquire conggamie believe that intangible assets
represent costs incurred by the acquired compabuitd value prior to acquisition and the relatedoatization and impairment charges of
intangible assets or goodwill, if applicable, aot angoing costs of doing business.

Acquisition-related contingent consideration fair value adjustments are accounting adjustments to record contingensidenation
liabilities at fair value. These adjustments carhiggly variable and are excluded from our asseaswfeperformance because they are
considered non-operational in nature and, thergfoeenot indicative of current or future perforroamr ongoing costs of doing business.

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME BEFORE AMORTIZAT ION

For a reconciliation of Operating Income Before Atimation to operating income (loss) by reportasgment for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, see Note 1®tootfsolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The following disclosure is provided to supplemera descriptions of IAC's accounting policies corgd in Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements in regard to significant arefgsdgment. Management of the Company is requioedake certain estimates, judgments
and assumptions during the preparation of its dadeged financial statements in accordance with. \geherally accepted accounting
principles. These estimates, judgments and assongpitinpact the reported amount of assets, liadsliievenue and expenses and the related
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitiesfatie date of the consolidated financial statesefttual results could differ from those
estimates. Because of the size of the financi&stant elements to which they relate, some of ocoanting policies and estimates have a
more significant impact on our consolidated finahstatements than others. What follows is a disionsof some of our more significant
accounting policies and estimates.

Recoverability of Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets,igthconsist of the Company's acquired trade nameddrademarks, are assessed
annually for impairment as of October 1 or morgérently if an event occurs or circumstances changewould more likely than not reduce
the fair value of a reporting unit or the fair valof an indefinite-lived intangible asset belowdsrying value. The annual assessments
identified no impairment charges in 2013, 2012@tR2 The value of goodwill and indefinite-livedangible assets that is subject to annual
assessment for impairment is $ 1.7 billion and $3Téillion, respectively, at December 31, 2013.

In 2012, the Company adopted Accounting Standapifaté ("ASU") 2011-08, "Testing Goodwill for Impaient,” which gives
companies the option to qualitatively assess whéthemore likely than not that the fair valueafeporting unit is less than its carrying value
If the Company elects to perform a qualitative assent and concludes it is not more likely thanthat the fair value of the reporting unit is
less than its carrying value, no further assesswfdtiat reporting unit's goodwill is necessanhestvise goodwill must be tested for
impairment using a twetep process. The first step involves a compaii$ahe estimated fair value of each of the Commargporting units t
its carrying value, including goodwill. In perforng the first step, the Company determines thevlire of a reporting unit using a discounted
cash flow ("DCF") analysis. Determining fair valtegjuires the exercise of significant judgment,udahg judgment about the amount and
timing of expected future cash flows and appropréiscount rates. The expected cash flows usdiDCF analyses are based on the
Company's most recent budget and, for years beyfundudget, the Company's estimates, which aradbaspart, on forecasted growth rates.
The discount rates used in the DCF analyses abdet to reflect the risks inherent in the expefiteate cash flows of the respective repor
units. Assumptions used in the DCF analyses, imatuthe discount rate, are assessed annually masttk reporting units' current results and
forecast, as well as macroeconomic and industrgifipéactors. The discount rates used in the Camfsaannual goodwill impairment
assessment ranged from 13% to 25% in both 2012@12. If the estimated fair value of a reportingt exceeds its carrying value, goodwill
the reporting unit is not impaired and the secdegd sf the impairment test is not necessary. Ificdmeying value of a reporting unit exceeds its
estimated fair value, then the second step of tloelgill impairment test must be performed. The selcstep of the goodwill impairment test
compares the implied fair value of the reporting'sigoodwill with its carrying value to measure thmount of impairment, if any. The impli
fair value of goodwill is determined in the samenmer as the amount of goodwill recognized in artess combination. In other words, the
estimated fair value of the reporting unit is adlted to all of the assets and liabilities of thait (including any unrecognized intangible assets)
as if the reporting unit had been acquired in artess combination and the fair value of the repgrtinit was the purchase price paid. If the
carrying value of the reporting unit's goodwill eeds the implied fair value of that goodwill, arpeirment is recognized in an amount equ:
that excess.

At October 1, 2013, the date of our most recentiahimpairment assessment, the fair value of sihefCompany's eight reporting units
significantly exceed their carrying values, andfiievalue of Tutor and Felix, both of which wexequired in 2012, approximates their
carrying value. Any impairment charge that migtsulein the future would be determined based upereixcess of the carrying value of
goodwill over its implied fair value using the sadostep of the impairment analysis that is desdrédgve but, in any event, would not be
expected to be lower than the excess of the carmatue of the reporting unit over its fair valdwe primary driver in the DCF valuation
analyses and the determination of the fair valdéseoCompany's reporting units is the estimatiitafre revenue and profitability. Generally,
the Company would expect to record an impairmefarécasted revenue and profitability are no loreggrected to be achieved and as a resul
the carrying value of a reporting unit(s) exceasl$dir value. This assessment would be basedrin ppon the performance of its businesses
relative to budget, the Company's assessment afomeenomic factors, industry and competitive dyranaind the strategies of its businesses
in response to these factors.

In 2012, the Company adopted ASU 2012-02, "Tedtidgfinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairmentyhich gives companies the
option to qualitatively assess whether it is mdeely than not that the fair value of an indefirliteed intangible asset is less than its carrying
value. If the Company elects to perform a qualimissessment and concludes it is not more likely hot that the fair value of an indefinite-
lived intangible asset is less than its carryinlyeathe fair value of the asset does not neea tatermined; otherwise the fair value of the
indefinite-lived intangible asset must be deterrdinad
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compared to its carrying value. If the carryingueabf the intangible asset exceeds its fair vadnémpairment loss is recognized in an amoun
equal to that excess. The estimates of fair valuedefinite-lived intangible assets are determinsithg an avoided royalty DCF valuation
analysis. Significant judgments inherent in thialgsis include the selection of appropriate royailtyl discount rates and estimating the am
and timing of expected future cash flows. The distoates used in the DCF analyses are intendeflezt the risks inherent in the expected
future cash flows generated by the respective gibd@ assets. The royalty rates used in the DCF/s@siare based upon an estimate of the
royalty rates that a market participant would pajidense the Company's trade names and tradenfesksmptions used in the avoided royalty
DCF analyses, including the discount rate and tgyate, are assessed annually based on the aciigrojected cash flows related to the
asset, as well as macroeconomic and industry spémitors. The discount rates used in the Comgaamniual indefinite-lived impairment
assessment ranged from 10% to 18% in both 2012@1h2, and the royalty rates used ranged from 1984an both 2013 and 2012.

Recoverability of Long-Lived Assets

We review the carrying value of all long-lived asseomprising property and equipment and defilived intangible assets, for
impairment whenever events or changes in circurnstaimdicate that the carrying value of an assgtmotbe recoverable. The carrying value
of a long-lived asset is not recoverable if it eed®the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expéategbult from the use and eventual
disposition of the asset. If the carrying valudégmed not to be recoverable, an impairment logc@ded equal to the amount by which the
carrying value of the long-lived asset exceedfaitsvalue. During 2013 and 2011 the Company wodteertain capitalized software costs.
These charges are more fully described above isUlReof Operations for the Years Ended Decembg2@13, 2012 and 2011Depreciation.
The carrying value of property and equipment arfahde-lived intangible assets is $363.0 millioncember 31, 2013.

Income Taxes

Estimates of deferred income taxes and the sigmifitems giving rise to the deferred assets afidliies are shown in Note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements, and reflect mameent's assessment of actual future taxes toide@patems reflected in the consolidated
financial statements, giving consideration to ktotling and the probability of realization. As of @smber 31, 2013, the balance of deferred ta
liabilities, net, is $286.6 million. Actual incontaxes could vary from these estimates due to futhamges in income tax law, state income tax
apportionment or the outcome of any review of axrreturns by the various tax authorities, as a&lactual operating results of the Company
that vary significantly from anticipated results.

We recognize liabilities for uncertain tax positdmased on the two-step process. The first stepagaluate the tax position for
recognition by determining if the weight of availalevidence indicates it is more likely than natttthe position will be sustained on audit,
including resolution of related appeals or litigatiprocesses, if any. A tax position that meetsnbee likely than not recognition threshold is
then measured for purposes of financial stateneaugnition as the largest amount of benefit whiciore than 50% likely of being realized
upon ultimate settlement. This measurement stegherently difficult and requires subjective esttinas of such amounts to determine the
probability of various possible outcomes. We coesitiany factors when evaluating and estimatingaxipositions and tax benefits, which
may require periodic adjustments and which mayagotirately anticipate actual outcomes. At DecerBheR013, the Company has
unrecognized tax benefits of $408.8 million, indhglinterest. Changes to reserves from period togend differences between amounts g
if any, upon resolution of issues raised in auaiitd amounts previously provided may be materidfeBnces between the reserves for incom
tax contingencies and the amounts owed by the Coynai@ recorded in the period they become known.

Stock-Based Compensation

As disclosed in the notes to the consolidated fir@rstatements, the Company estimated the fairevaf stock options issued in 2013,
2012 and 2011 using a Black-Scholes option priaigiel with the following weighted average assumpiaisk-free interest rates of 1.0%,
0.6% and 2.3%, respectively, a dividend yield @P2, 1.2% and zero, respectively, volatility factof29%, 31% and 30%, respectively, base
on the historical stock price volatilities of IA@@a weighted average expected term of the stot&regpof 6.2 years, 4.4 years and 6.1 years,
respectively. For stock options, including unvesttmtk options assumed in acquisitions, the vafukeostock option is measured at the grant
date (or acquisition date, if applicable) at faifue and expensed over the remaining vesting fEh@impact on non-cash compensation
expense for the year ended December 31, 2013, agpami % increase in the rigkee interest rate, a 10% increase in the vokatitictor, and
one year increase in the weighted average expeatedof the outstanding options would be an in@ad#s52.0 million, $9.2 million, and
$3.9 million, respectively. The Company also issB&&Js and performance-based RSUs. For RSUs isedalue of the instrument is
measured at the grant date as the fair value ofd&@mon stock and expensed as non-cash compensapense over the vesting term. For
performance-based RSUs issued, the value of theiment is measured at the grant date as thedhievof IAC common stock and expensed
as non-cash compensation over the vesting term ttgeperformance targets are considered probatidein§y achieved.
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Marketable Securities and Long-term Investments

Marketable securities consist of equity securiied a short-to-mediurterm debt security issued by an investment gradgocate issuel
Long-term investments include equity securitiesoaoted for under the equity and cost methods anttetable equity securities. The
Company invests in marketable debt securities adtive secondary or resale markets to ensure iortiguidity to fund current operations or
satisfy other cash requirements as needed. The &grglso invests in marketable equity securitiggsaaisof its investment strategy.

Marketable securities are adjusted to fair valushepuarter, and the unrealized gains and lossesf tex, are included in accumulated
other comprehensive income as a separate compohgimareholders' equity. The specific-identificatimethod is used to determine the cost o
securities sold and the amount of unrealized gaslosses reclassified out of accumulated othe@peehensive income into earnings. The
Company recognizes unrealized losses on markesablgities in net earnings when the losses aremdigted to be other-than-temporary.
Additionally, the Company evaluates each cost ayity method investment for indicators of impairrhen a quarterly basis, and recognizes
an impairment loss if the decline in value is deéntebe other-than-temporary. Future events mayltresreconsideration of the nature of
losses as other-than-temporary and market and fattters may cause the value of the Company's imeggs to decline.

The Company employs a methodology that consideadadole evidence in evaluating potential other-ttemporary impairments of its
investments. Investments are considered to be megharhen a decline in fair value below the amodizest basis is determined to be other-
than-temporary. Such impairment evaluations inclldé are not limited to: the length of time andieent to which fair value has been less thar
the cost basis, the current business environmaeitiding competition; going concern consideratisnsh as financial condition, the rate at
which the investee company utilizes cash and thesitee company's ability to obtain additional ficiag to achieve business plan; the need fo
changes to the investee company's existing busmeds! due to changing business environments arabitity to successfully implement
necessary changes; and comparable valuations.2@ib3, the Company recognized an impairment chair§e.0 million related to a cost
method investment and during 2012, the Companyrdeciban impairment charge of $8.7 million relatedne of its long-term marketable
equity securities. These charges are more fullgritesd above in "Results of Operations for the ¥damded December 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011 - Other income (expense), net."
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

The Company's exposure to market risk for chang@sérest rates relates primarily to the Compaog&h equivalents, marketable debt
securities and long-term debt.

The Company invests its excess cash in certain@gsivalents and marketable debt securities, wbictsist of money market funds and
a short-to-medium-term debt security issued byngestment grade corporate issuers. The Companyogmplmethodology that considers
available evidence in evaluating potential impaining its investments. Investments are considesdgetimpaired when a decline in fair value
below the amortized cost basis is determined totber-than-temporary. If a decline in fair valueletermined to be other-than-temporary, an
impairment charge is recorded and a new cost ba#iie investment is established. During 2013 ,Gbenpany did not record any other-than-
temporary impairment charges related to its casiivatents and marketable debt securities.

Based on the Company's total investment in market#dbt securities at December 31, 2013, a 103 Ipasit increase or decrease in the
level of interest rates would, respectively, deseear increase the fair value of these securitideds than $0.1 million. Such potential increast
or decrease in fair value is based on certain iyl assumptions, including a constant level aag of debt securities and an immediate
across-the-board increase or decrease in thedéugkerest rates with no other subsequent chafugghe remainder of the period. Conversely,
since almost all of the Company's cash and casivaquts balance of $ 1.1 billion is invested imgkerm fixed or variable rate money mar
instruments, the Company would also earn more)(lagsrest income due to such an increase (degr@asderest rates.

At December 31, 2013, the Company's outstandingjidefi.1 billion, all of which pays interest at fixed rates. If ketrrates decline, tt
Company runs the risk that the related requiredmats on the fixed rate debt will exceed those thasemarket rates. A 100 basis point
increase or decrease in the level of interest ratedd, respectively, decrease or increase thevédire of the fixed-rate debt by $67.5 million.
Such potential increase or decrease in fair vallmased on certain simplifying assumptions, inclgdi constant level and rate of fixed-rate
debt for all maturities and an immediate acrosshib@rd increase or decrease in the level of inteadss with no other subsequent changes fo
the remainder of the period.

Equity Price Risk
The Company is exposed to market risk as it rekamteanges in the market value of its investments.

At December 31, 2013, the Company has three inv@dhrin equity securities of publicly traded companThese available-for-sale
marketable equity securities are reported at faliner based on their quoted market prices with amgalized gain or loss, net of tax, include:
a component of "Accumulated other comprehensiv&' lmsthe accompanying consolidated balance shaaistments in equity securities of
publicly traded companies are exposed to signifilastuations in fair value due to the volatilibf the stock market. During 2013, the
Company did not record any other-than-temporaryaimmpent charges related to its available-gate marketable equity securities. During 2
the Company recorded an $8.7 million other-thanpmary impairment charge related to one of itslabée-for-sale marketable equity
securities. The other-than-temporary impairmentghas included in "Other income (expense), nethmaccompanying consolidated
statement of operations.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

The Company conducts business in certain foreigikets, primarily in the European Union. The Compamyimary exposure to foreign
currency exchange risk relates to investmentsngida subsidiaries that transact business in atifumal currency other than the U.S. Dollar,
primarily the Euro and British Pound Sterling. Hawee the exposure is mitigated since the Compasygkaerally reinvested cash flows from
international operations in order to grow the bassges. The statements of operations of the Congpatginational businesses are translated
into U.S. dollars at the average exchange ratea¢h applicable period. To the extent the U.Sadaslrengthens against foreign currencies, th
translation of these foreign currency denominatedsactions results in reduced revenue and opgnasults. Similarly, the Company's
revenue and operating results will increase foriot@arnational operations if the U.S. dollar weakagainst foreign currencies. The Compal
also exposed to foreign currency exchange riskaélto its assets and liabilities denominated énraency other than the functional currency.

The economic impact of foreign currency exchange movements on the Company is often linked toalmlity in real growth, inflation,
interest rates, governmental actions and otheoifacThese changes, if material, could cause tmep@ay to adjust its financing and operating
strategies. Foreign currency exchange gains asédage not material to the Company's earning81i3,22012 and 2011. As foreign currency
exchange rates change, translation of the statsméoperations of the Company's internationaltesses into U.S. dollars affects year-over-
year comparability of operating results. Historigalhe Company has not hedged foreign currenchaxge risks because cash flows fi
international operations are generally reinvesbedlly. However, the Company periodically reviewgsstrategy for hedging foreign currency
exchange risks. The
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Company's objective in managing its foreign curyeeechange risk is to minimize its potential expesto the changes that foreign currency
exchange rates might have on its earnings, casls fimd financial position.

41




Table of Contents

Iltem 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and $plementary Data

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of IACHattiveCorp

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineet of IAC/InterActiveCorp and subsidiarie®Becember 31, 2013 and
2012, and the related consolidated statementserhtipns, comprehensive income, shareholders'ye@uitl cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2013. Glitsaalso included the financial statement schetistied in the Index at Item 15(a). The
financial statements and financial statement sdeeahe the responsibility of the Company's managegng@ur responsibility is to express an
opinion on these financial statements and schdzhded on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &dndbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Blasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digds in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenenelaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@alove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated financial position of
IAC/InterActiveCorp and subsidiaries as of Decemigr2013 and 2012, and the consolidated resultseaf operations and their cash flows
for each of the three years in the period endeceBber 31, 2013, in conformity with U.S. generallgepted accounting principles. Also, in
our opinion, the related financial statement schedushen considered in relation to the basic cadatdd financial statements taken as a wt
presents fairly in all material respects the infation set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States),
IAC/InterActiveCorp's internal control over finaatireporting as of December 31, 2013, based oeriiestablished in the Internal Control-
Integrated issued by the Committee of Sponsorirgp@irzations of the Treadway Commission (1992 fraorépand our report dated February
26, 2014 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

New York, New York
February 26, 2014
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IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

December 31,

2013 2012

(In thousands, except share data)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,100,44 $ 749,97
Marketable securities 6,00/ 20,60
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $8,540 $htl 088, respectively 207,40¢ 229,83(
Other current assets 161,53( 156,33¢

Total current assets 1,475,38 1,156,75
Property and equipment, net 293,96 270,51:
Goodwill 1,675,32. 1,616,15.
Intangible assets, net 445,33t 482,90
Long-term investments 179,99( 161,27¢
Other non-current assets 164,68! 118,23(
TOTAL ASSETS $ 4,234,68. $ 3,805,82:

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES:
Current maturities of long-term debt $ — $ 15,84
Accounts payable, trade 77,65 98,31«
Deferred revenue 158,20t 155,49¢
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 351,03t 355,23:

Total current liabilities 586,89 624,88
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 1,080,001 580,00(
Income taxes payable 416,38 479,94!
Deferred income taxes 320,74¢ 323,40:
Other long-term liabilities 58,39 31,83(
Redeemable noncontrolling interests 42,86 58,12¢

Commitments and contingencies

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Common stock $.001 par value; authorized 1,6000@@shares; issued 250,982,079 shares and

outstanding 76,404,552 and 78,471,784 shares,ataplyg 251 251
Class B convertible common stock $.001 par valuth@ized 400,000,000 shares; issued 16,157,4!
shares and outstanding 5,789,499 shares 16 1€
Additional paid-in capital 11,562,56 11,607,36
Accumulated deficit (32,73%) (318,519
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (13,04¢) (32,169
Treasury stock 184,945,527 and 182,878,295 shagmctively (9,830,31) (9,601,21)
Total IAC shareholders' equity 1,686,73 1,655,72
Noncontrolling interests 42 ,66" 51,90°
Total shareholders' equity 1,729,40 1,707,63!
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 4,234,68.  $ 3,805,82i

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetke8tents are an integral part of these statements.
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IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenue $ 3,022,98 % 2,800,93. $ 2,059,44.
Costs and expenses:

Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation showasately below) 1,000,10. 990,79 753,88¢

Selling and marketing expense 964,13: 894,54! 617,19¢

General and administrative expense 372,47( 386,08t 321,06:

Product development expense 141,33( 117,68: 90,75"

Depreciation 58,90¢ 52,48 56,71¢

Amortization of intangibles 59,84 35,77 22,05
Total costs and expenses 2,596,78 2,477,36! 1,861,68;

Operating income 426,20: 323,56¢ 197,76.
Equity in losses of unconsolidated affiliates (6,615 (25,345 (36,300
Interest expense (33,59¢) (6,149 (5,430
Other income (expense), net 30,30¢ (3,019 15,49(
Earnings from continuing operations before incomes$ 416,30: 289,06: 171,52.
Income tax (provision) benefit (134,50 (119,214 4,04
Earnings from continuing operations 281,79¢ 169,84 175,56¢
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, rféto 1,92¢ (9,05)) (3,999
Net earnings 283,72 160,79¢ 171,57
Net loss (earnings) attributable to noncontrollimigrests 2,05¢ (1,530 2,65¢
Net earnings attributable to IAC shareholders $ 285,78: § 159,26t $ 174,23
Per share information attributable to IAC shareholders:

Basic earnings per share from continuing operations $ 34C $ 198 $ 2.05

Diluted earnings per share from continuing operegio $ 327 % 181 $ 1.8¢

Basic earnings per share $ 34z % 1.8t $ 2.01

Diluted earnings per share $ 3.2¢ % 171 1.8t

Dividends declared per share $ 0.9¢ $ 07z % 0.1z

Non-cash compensation expense by function:

Cost of revenue $ 2,86 $ 6,21¢ $ 5,35¢

Selling and marketing expense 2,81: 4,76( 4,807

General and administrative expense 42,48’ 68,64( 70,89

Product development expense 4,84: 6,00¢ 7,52¢
Total non-cash compensation expense $ 53,00 $ 85,62 $ 88,58t

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetke8tents are an integral part of these statements.
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IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Net earnings $ 283,72' % 160,79t $ 171,57
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment 7,35z 712 (49,439
Change in net unrealized gains (losses) on avedfmnisale securities
(net of tax benefits of $3,050 in 2013 and $3,982012 and tax provision of
$5,460 in 2011) 15,44. (19,82)) 11,21:
Total other comprehensive income (loss) 22,79¢ (29,11% (38,226)
Comprehensive income 306,52( 141,68: 133,35:
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to nomodiimtg interests (1,619 (2,147 10,89:
$ 304,900 $ 139,54 $ 144,24.

Comprehensive income attributable to IAC sharehslde

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetk8tents are an integral part of these statements.
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IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

IAC Shareholders' Equity

Class B
Convertible
Common Common
Stock $.001 Stock $.001
Par Value Par Value
Accumulated
Redeemable Additional Other Total IAC Total
Noncontrolling Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive  Treasury Shareholders' Noncontrolling ~ Shareholders'
Interests $ Shares $ Shares Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Stock Equity Interests Equity
(In thousands)
Balance as of December 31, 2010 $ 59,86¢ $22€ 225,87 $16 16,150 $11,047,88 $ (652,01 $ 17,54¢ $(8,363,58) $ 2,050,06: $ — $ 2,050,06!
Net (loss) earnings for the year ended
December 31, 2011 (239) — — - — — 174,23: — — 174,23: (2,417) 171,81t
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax (2,96¢) — —_ - — — — (29,989 — (29,989 (5,26¢) (35,25%)
Noncontrolling interests related to acquisition of
Meetic S.A. 36,65¢ — - - — — — — — — 64,83: 64,83:
Decrease in redeemable noncontrolling interesas ir
consolidated Latin American venture resulting from
the acquisition of Meetic (37,91°) — —_ - — — — — — — — —
Non-cash compensation expense — — - — — 86,72¢ — — — 86,72¢ 1,04¢ 87,77«
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock
options, vesting of restricted stock units and pthet
of withholding taxes — 5 501 — — 56,73: — — — 56,73¢ — 56,73¢
Income tax benefit related to the exercise of stock
options, vesting of restricted stock units and pthe — — —_ — — 28,36° — — — 28,36° — 28,36:
Issuance of common stock upon the exercise of
warrants — 3 3217 — — 76,03¢ — — — 76,04: — 76,042
Dividends — — - - — (11,29¢ — — — (11,29¢ (3,109 (14,399
Purchase of treasury stock — — —_ - — — — — (518,63Y) (518,63) — (518,63)
Purchase of noncontrolling interests (5,779 — - — — — — — — — — —
Adjustment of redeemable noncontrolling interests
fair value 4,27 — - — — (4,279 — — — (4,279 — (4,279
Other (3,54¢) — - - — — — — (2,929 (2,929 — (2,929
Balance as of December 31, 2011 $ 50,34¢ $234 234,10: $16 16,15% $11,280,17 $ (477,78) $ (12,449 $(8,885,14) $ 1,905,04 $ 55,09: $ 1,960,141
Net (loss) earnings for the year ended
December 31, 2012 (1,11¢) — - - — — 159,26t — — 159,26t 2,64¢ 161,91«
Other comprehensive income (loss), net
tax 207 — - = — — — (19,72¢) — (19,726 404 (19,32)
Non-cash compensation expense — — —_ — — 82,807 — — — 82,807 2,81¢ 85,62¢
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock
options, vesting of restricted stock units and pthet
of withholding taxes — 5 515: — — (16,507 — — — (16,499 — (16,49¢)
Income tax benefit related to the exercise of stock
options, vesting of restricted stock units and othe — — - — — 49,96° — — — 49,967 — 49,967
Issuance of common stock upon the exercise of
warrants — 12 11,72¢ — — 284,09¢ — — — 284,11: — 284,11
Dividends — — - = — (68,90:) — — — (68,90:) — (68,907)
Purchase of treasury stock — — - — — — — — (716,079 (716,077) — (716,07)
Purchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests (2,955 — —_ - — — — — — — — —
Adjustment of redeemable noncontrolling interests
fair value 4,27¢ — - = — (4,275 — — — (4,27 — (4,275
Transfer from noncontrolling interests to redeeraabl
noncontrolling interests 10,04¢ — - — — — — — — — (10,049 (10,049
Other (2,68) — - = — — — — — — 99t 99t
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 58,12¢ $251 250,98: $16 16,15% $11,607,36 $ (318,519 $ (32,169 $(9,601,21) $ 1,655,72 $ 51,907 $ 1,707,63!
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IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (Con tinued)

IAC Shareholders' Equity

Class B
Convertible
Common Common
Stock $.001 Stock $.001
Par Value Par Value Accumulated
Redeemable Additional Other Total IAC Total
Noncontrolling Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive  Treasury Shareholders' Noncontrolling Shareholders'
Interests $ Shares $ Shares Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Stock Equity Interests Equity
(In thousands)
Net (loss) earnings for the year ended ended
December 31, 2013 (3,269 — - = — — 285,78« — — 285,78 1,20t 286,98¢
Other comprehensive income, net of tax 2,30% — —_ — — — — 19,12 — 19,12: 1,367 20,49(
Non-cash compensation expense — — —_ - — 51,88 — — — 51,88 1,122 53,00
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stock
options, vesting of restricted stock units and pthe
net of withholding taxes — — - — — (9,899 — — 2 (9,897) — (9,897)
Income tax benefit related to the exercise of sto
options, vesting of restricted stock units and pth — — —_ - — 30,98t — — — 30,98t — 30,98¢
Dividends — — - = — (77,83() — — — (77,83() — (77,83()
Purchase of treasury stock — — - — — — — — (229,10) (229,10) — (229,10)
Purchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests (55,57¢) — —_ - — — — — — — — —
Purchase of noncontrolling interests — - — - — — — — — — — (12,37) — (12,377
Adjustment of redeemable noncontrolling interests
and noncontrolling interests to fair value 40,63¢ — - — — (42,94°) — — — (42,94 2,30¢ (40,63¢)
Transfer from noncontrolling interests to
redeemable noncontrolling interests 2,87¢ — —_ - — — — — — — (2,879 (2,879
Other (2,247) — - - — 3,001 — — — 3,001 — 3,007
Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ 42,86: $251 250,98: $16 16,150 $11,56256 $ (32,73) $ (13,046 $(9,830,31) $ 1,686,73 $ 42,66¢ $ 1,729,40

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetk8tents are an integral part of these statements.
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IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

(In thousands)
Cash flows from operating activities attributable © continuing operations:

Net earnings $ 283,72' % 160,79t $ 171,57
Less: earnings (loss) from discontinued operatinaspf tax 1,92¢ (9,057 (3,999
Earnings from continuing operations 281,79¢ 169,84" 175,56¢

Adjustments to reconcile earnings from continuipgrations to net cash provided by operating aivit
attributable to continuing operations:

Non-cash compensation expense 53,00¢ 85,62¢ 88,58¢
Depreciation 58,90¢ 52,48: 56,71¢
Amortization of intangibles 59,84! 35,77: 22,057
Impairment of long-term investments 5,26¢ 8,68¢ —
Excess tax benefits from stock-based awards (32,89) (57,10) (22,16¢)
Deferred income taxes (9,096 37,07¢ (35,489
Equity in losses of unconsolidated affiliates 6,61¢ 25,34¢ 36,30(
Acquisition-related contingent consideration fafue adjustments 343 — —
Gain on sales of long-term investments (35,85¢) (3,326 (1,979
Gain on sales of assets (14,759 (250) (1,339
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effet&cquisitions:
Accounts receivable 10,42: (30,99) (58,31
Other assets (34,63)) (22,99) 1,287
Accounts payable and other current liabilities (76€) (14,389 57,22¢
Income taxes payable 49,19: 47,01( (7,049
Deferred revenue (5,84)) 1,86¢ 48,95(
Other, net 19,40: 19,86¢ 12,01
Net cash provided by operating activities attributdle to continuing operations 410,96: 354,52 372,38t
Cash flows from investing activities attributable b continuing operations:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (40,69() (411,03Y) (278,469
Capital expenditures (80,31) (51,20) (39,959
Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketalile seurities 12,50: 195,50: 584,93!
Purchases of marketable debt securities — (53,959 (203,970)
Proceeds from sales of long-term investments 69,96¢ 14,19 15,21«
Purchases of long-term investments (51,080 (36,099 (90,244
Other, net 9,59 (9,507 (12,69
Net cash used in investing activities attributabléo continuing operations (80,017 (352,089 (25,18¢)
Cash flows from financing activities attributable to continuing operations:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 500,00( 500,00( —
Principal payments on long-term debt (15,849 — —
Purchase of treasury stock (264,21 (691,83() (507,76%)
Dividends (79,189 (68,167) (10,66%)
Issuance of common stock, net of withholding taxes (5,077 262,84: 132,78!
Excess tax benefits from stock-based awards 32,89: 57,10: 22,16¢
Purchase of noncontrolling interests (67,94°) (4,89)) (3,849
Funds transferred to escrow for Meetic tendermoffe (71,519 — —
Debt issuance costs (7,399 (112,007 —
Other, net (3,787) 244 (4,909
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitieattributable to continuing operations 17,92 44,30: (372,23)
Total cash provided by (used in) continuing operatins 348,86t 46,74( (25,039
Total cash used in discontinued operations (1,877 (3,472 (8,417

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casiaénts 3,47¢ 2,55¢ (4,49¢)




Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivakent 350,46 45,82« (37,94¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 749,97 704,15: 742,09¢

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 1,100,44 $ 749,977 $ 704,15

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetke8tents are an integral part of these statements.
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IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1—ORGANIZATION

IAC is a leading media and internet company coneprisf more than 150 brands and products, includsigcom, About.com,
Match.com, HomeAdvisor and Vimeo. Focused in tleasaiof search, applications, online dating, londlmedia, IAC's family of websites is
one of the largest in the world, with more tharilkom monthly visits across more than 100 courtriAC includes the businesses comprising
its Search & Applications, Match, Local, Media a@ther segments, as well as investments in uncatzeli affiliates.

All references to "IAC," the "Company," "we," "ouot "us" in this report are to IAC/InterActiveCorp.
Search & Applications

Our Search & Applications segment consists of: Wiebsincluding Ask.com, About.com, Dictionary.camnd Citysearch.com (among
other properties), through which we provide seamtvices and content; and Applications, includingdirect to consumer downloadable
applications operations ("B2C") and our partnerggprations ("B2B").

Match

Through the brands and businesses within our Msggment, we are a leading provider of subscripbiased and ad-supported online
personals services in North America, Europe, LAtimerica, Australia and Asia. We provide these smwithrough websites and applications
that we own and operate. Our European operatiensarducted through Meetic S.A. ("Meetic"), whistbased in France.
Local

Our Local segment consists of HomeAdvisor and Felix

HomeAdvisor is a leading online marketplace forehatg consumers with home services professionalsdariJnited States, as well as in
France, the Netherlands and the United Kingdom uwaleous brands.

Felix, which was acquired in August 2012, is a pay-call advertising service that powers local caroa by connecting consumers to
local businesses at the moment they are ready lte maurchase decision.

Media
Our Media segment consists primarily of Vimeo, Els¢ Daily Burn and The Daily Beast.

Vimeo is a leading global video hosting platforniméo offers video creators simple, professionatigrimols to share, distribute and
monetize content online, and provides viewers #ethiree environment to watch content across &etaof internet connected devices.

Electus is an integrated multimedia entertainmandis that unites producers, creators, advertiaedsdistributors to produce video
content for distribution across a variety of platis in the United States and various jurisdictiabnsoad. Electus also operates Electus Digital,

which consists of the following websites and preipsr CollegeHumor.com, Dorkly.com, WatchLOUD.cormuTube channels WatchLOUD,
Nuevon and Hungry and Big Breakfast (a productiomgany).

DailyBurn is a health and fitness property thatjies streaming fithess and workout videos acrosariaty of platforms, including iOS,
Android, Xbox and internet-enabled "connected"uwsiens.

The Daily Beast (formerly News_Beast) is a webdédicated to news, commentary, culture and entenimt that curates and publishes
existing and original online content from its ovaster of contributors.

Other

Our Other segment consists primarily of Shoebugading internet retailer of footwear and relatpgarel and accessories, and Tutor, ar
online tutoring solution, which was acquired in Betber 2012.

NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES



Basis of Consolidation and Accounting for Investmets

The consolidated financial statements include te®ants of the Company, all entities that are whoWned by the Company and all
entities in which the Company has a controllingfinial interest. Intercompany transactions andwaaschave been eliminated.

Investments in the common stock or in-substancenvamstock of entities in which the Company hasathiéity to exercise significant
influence over the operating and financial matt#rthe investee, but does not have a controllingrftial
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IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

interest, are accounted for using the equity methnestments in the common stock or in-substancencon stock of entities in which the
Company does not have the ability to exercise Sagmit influence over the operating and financialttars of the investee are accounted for
using the cost method. Investments in companig¢dAt@adoes not control, that are not in the forntofmmon stock or in-substance common
stock, are also accounted for using the cost methadcounting. The Company evaluates each cosequitly method investment for
impairment on a quarterly basis and recognizesngrairment loss if a decline in value is determitebte other-than-temporary. Such
impairment evaluations include, but are not limitedthe current business environment, includingpgetition; going concern considerations
such as financial condition, the rate at whichitihvestee company utilizes cash and the investeg@anys ability to obtain additional financi
to achieve its business plan; the need for chattge investee company's existing business madeta changing business environments an
its ability to successfully implement necessaryngfes; and comparable valuations. If the Companybaglentified events or changes in
circumstances that may have a significant advefseten the fair value of a cost method investm#rn the fair value of such cost method
investment is not estimated, as it is impracticabldo so.

Accounting Estimates

Management of the Company is required to makeicegtimates, judgments and assumptions duringrigyearation of its consolidated
financial statements in accordance with U.S. gdlyemacepted accounting principles ("U.S. GAAP"heBe estimates, judgments and
assumptions impact the reported amounts of adiddsities, revenue and expenses and the relatadodure of contingent assets and
liabilities. Actual results could differ from thosstimates.

On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates itmat&s and judgments including those related tofdineralues of marketable securit
and other investments; the recoverability of godidavid indefinite-lived intangible assets; the wsdifzes and recovery of definite-lived
intangible assets and property and equipment;ahiag value of accounts receivable, includingdietermination of the allowance for
doubtful accounts and revenue reserves; the faiewvaf acquisition-related contingent consideratitie reserves for income tax contingencies
the valuation allowance for deferred income taxesssand the fair value of and forfeiture ratessfock-based awards, among others. The
Company bases its estimates and judgments onibatexperience, its forecasts and budgets and édbtors that the Company considers
relevant.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue when persuasivermgdf an arrangement exists, services are rahderaerchandise is delivered
customers, the fee or price charged is fixed ogrd@hable and collectability is reasonably assubsferred revenue is recorded when
payments are received in advance of the Compagnytering of services or delivery of merchandise.

Search & Applications

The Search & Applications segment's revenue canpratcipally of advertising revenue, which is gexted primarily through the displi
of paid listings in response to search queriesyedsas from advertisements appearing on its dastin search websites and portals and certai
third party websites and the syndication of seaeshilts generated by Ask-branded destination seeetisites. The Company obtains the
substantial majority of its paid listings from tthiparty providers, primarily Google Inc. ("GooglePaid listings are priced on a price per click
and when a user submits a search query and clicks@oogle paid listing displayed in response ¢odhery, Google bills the advertiser that
purchased the paid listing directly and sharesrtigroof its related paid listing fee with the Coamy. The Company recognizes paid listing
revenue from Google when it delivers the usertkclin cases where the user's click is generateithird party website, the Company
recognizes the amount due from Google as revendieezords the revenue share obligation to the-{émtly website as traffic acquisition
costs.

Match

Match's revenue is derived primarily from subsaoiptfees for subscription-based online personadsrafated services. Subscription fee
revenue is recognized over the terms of the aggkcsubscriptions, which primarily range from onesix months. Deferred revenue at Match
is $116.5 million and $103.9 million at December 2013 and 2012, respectively. Match also earnsme® from online advertising, which is
recognized when an ad is displayed, and the pueobfaadd-on or premium features.

Local

HomeAdvisor's lead acceptance revenue is genesatddecognized when an in-network home serviceepgibnal is delivered a



consumer lead. HomeAdvisor's membership subscnipégenue is generated through subscription salservice
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IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

professionals and is deferred and recognized dneepériod of the membership. HomeAdvisor's welisitgting revenue is deferred and
recognized over the period of the hosting agreentémineAdvisor's activation revenue is generatedudh the enroliment and activation of a
new home service professional. Activation reversuaitially deferred and recognized over twentyffanonths. Deferred revenue at
HomeAdvisor is $4.0 million and $3.0 million at Deuber 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Media

Revenue of media businesses included in this segsgenerated primarily through advertising, megatiaduction and subscriptions.
Advertising revenue is recognized when an ad iglaygd or over the period earned, media productgeenue is recognized based on delivery
and acceptance and subscription fee revenue igmexam over the terms of the applicable subscmgtiovhich are one month or one year.

Other

Shoebuy's revenue consists of merchandise satks;ae by incentive discounts and sales returnsisaretognized when delivery to the
customer has occurred. Delivery is considered t@ loecurred when the customer takes title and asstine risks and rewards of ownership,
which is on the date of shipment. Accruals for me¢al merchandise are based on historical experi@mipping and handling fees billed to
customers are recorded as revenue. The costs @ssbaiith shipping goods to customers are recoadezbst of revenue.

Tutor's revenue consists of subscription feesdbatrally entitle the subscriber to a certain anofitutor sessions over a certain period
of time. The subscription revenue is recognized tive term of the subscription based on usage.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and shiortiteestments, with maturities of less than 9ysdaom the date of purchase.
Domestically, cash equivalents primarily consisf@fA rated money market funds and commercial paptrd A2/P2 or better. Internationa
cash equivalents primarily consist of time depaaitd AAA rated money market funds.

Marketable Securities

The Company invests in certain marketable secsritidich primarily consist of equity securities andhort-to-medium-term debt
security issued by investment grade corporate is3ine Company invests in marketable debt secanti¢h active secondary or resale market
to ensure portfolio liquidity to fund current opgoas or satisfy other cash requirements as neddedCompany also invests in marketable
equity securities as part of its investment stnatédl marketable securities are classified as labdeé-for-sale and are reported at fair value. Th
unrealized gains and losses on marketable se®nité of tax, are included in accumulated othemgrehensive income as a separate
component of shareholders' equity. The specificdifieation method is used to determine the costemfurities sold and the amount of
unrealized gains and losses reclassified out afractated other comprehensive income into earnings.

The Company employs a methodology that consideadadole evidence in evaluating potential other-ttemporary impairments of its
investments. Investments are considered to be megharhen a decline in fair value below the amodizest basis is determined to be other-
than-temporary. Factors considered in determinihgtier a loss is other-than-temporary include ¢hgth of time and extent to which fair
value has been less than the amortized cost blasifnancial condition and near-term prospectthefissuer, and whether it is not more likely
than not that the Company will be required to gl security before the recovery of the amortizest basis, which may be maturity. If a
decline in fair value is determined to be othemth@mporary, an impairment charge is recorded ireci earnings and a new cost basis in the
investment is established.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at amounts due dumtomers, net of an allowance for doubtful acceantd revenue reserves. Accounts
receivable outstanding longer than the contragiagent terms are considered past due. The Congsagmines its allowance by
considering a number of factors, including the targf time accounts receivable are past due, thp@ay's previous loss history, the specific
customer's ability to pay its obligation to the Gmany and the condition of the general economy haeatistomer's industry. The Company
writes off accounts receivable when they becomellextible. The Company also maintains allowancaeserve for potential credits issues
customers or other revenue adjustments. The anobtinése reserves are based, in part, on histaigadrience.
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Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, including significant imgrments, are recorded at cost. Repairs and mamterests are expensed as
incurred. Depreciation is computed using the shtalige method over the estimated useful liveshef assets.

Estimated
Asset Category Useful Lives
Buildings and leasehold improvements 3to 39 Years
Computer equipment and capitalized software 2to 3 Years
Furniture and other equipment 3to 10 Years

The Company capitalizes certain internal use saéweasts including external direct costs utilizedlieveloping or obtaining the software
and compensation and other employee-related oarspefsonnel directly associated with the develagroéthe software. Capitalization of
such costs begins when the preliminary projectestagomplete and ceases when the project is sutadhacomplete and ready for its intended
purpose. During the second quarter of 2013, the 2oy wrote off $2.7 million in capitalized softwazests at The About Group primarily
related to projects that commenced prior to itsuaition. During 2011, the Company wrote off $4.8lion in capitalized software costs
associated with the exit of the Company's direohspred listings business. The net book value pital&Zzed internal use software is $30.9
million and $33.4 million at December 31, 2013 &20d 2, respectively.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

Goodwill acquired in business combinations is assigto the reporting unit(s) that are expectecetrefit from the combination as of the
acquisition date. The Company assesses goodwilirgiedinite-lived intangible assets for impairmaniually as of October 1, or more
frequently if an event occurs or circumstances ghahat would more likely than not reduce the Yaiue of a reporting unit or the fair value
an indefinite-lived intangible asset below its garg value.

In 2012, the Company adopted Accounting Standamifaté ("ASU") 2011-08, "Testing Goodwill for Impaient”, which gives
companies the option to qualitatively assess whetle more likely than not that the fair valueafeporting unit is less than its carrying value
If the Company elects to perform a qualitative asse=nt and concludes it is not more likely thanthat the fair value of the reporting unit is
less than its carrying value, no further assesswofahiat reporting unit's goodwill is necessanhasivise, the fair value of the reporting unit has
to be determined and if the carrying value of arépg unit's goodwill exceeds its implied fair ual an impairment loss equal to the excess is
recorded. The Company also adopted Accounting &tdsdJpdate 2012-02 "Testing Indefinite-Lived Igdnhe Assets for Impairment” in
2012, which gives companies the option to qualitdyi assess whether it is more likely than not thatfair value of an indefinite-lived
intangible asset is less than its carrying valfithd Company elects to perform a qualitative essest and concludes it is not more likely than
not that the fair value of an indefinite-lived intible asset is less than its carrying value, #irevialue of the asset does not need to be
determined; otherwise, the fair value of the incdiéi-lived intangible asset has to be determinetlifits carrying value exceeds its estimated
fair value, an impairment loss equal to the exéesscorded.

The Company determines the fair values of its répgunits using discounted cash flow ("DCF") asaly, and typically corroborates the
concluded fair value using a market based valuatjgproach. Determining fair value requires the @serof significant judgment, including
judgment about the amount and timing of expectéaréucash flows and appropriate discount rates.ekipected cash flows used in the D
analyses are based on the Company's most recegeetoard, for years beyond the budget, the Compastiimates, which are based, in part
forecasted growth rates. The discount rates us#eiDCF analyses reflect the risks inherent inetkigected future cash flows of the respective
reporting units. Assumptions used in the DCF areaymcluding the discount rate, are assessed Bybaaed on each reporting unit's current
results and forecast, as well as macroeconomidératustry specific factors. The discount rates usdtie Company's annual goodwill
impairment assessment ranged from 13% to 25% im2@13 and 2012 .

The Company determines the fair values of its iimiteflived intangible assets using avoided roy8it9F analyses. Significant
judgments inherent in these analyses include tleetsen of appropriate royalty and discount rated astimating the amount and timing
expected future cash flows. The discount rates sttt DCF analyses reflect the risks inhererth@expected future cash flows generated b
the respective intangible assets. The royalty nasesl in the DCF analyses are based upon an estirhtite royalty rates that a market
participant would pay to license the Company'sdamaames and trademarks. Assumptions used in theeavmyalty DCF analyses, including
the discount rate and royalty rate, are assessathfiy based on the actual and projected cash fielased to the asset, as well as



macroeconomic and industry specific
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factors. The discount rates used in the Companyiga indefinite-lived impairment assessment rarfgah 10% to 18% in both 2013 and
2012 , and the royalty rates used ranged from 1984dn both 2013 and 2012 .

The Company's reporting units are consistent wétldétermination of its operating segments. Goddsviested for impairment at the
reporting unit level. The Company's operating segsaeporting units and reportable segments afellasvs:

Operating Segment

and Reportable
Reporting Unit Segment
Search & Applications Search & Applications
Match Match
HomeAdvisor Local
Felix Local
Connected Ventures Media
DailyBurn Media
Shoebuy Other
Tutor Other

Media and Other include other operating segmerasdh not have goodwill. See Note 15 for additianfdrmation regarding the
Company's method of determining operating and tapta segments.

There were no material impairment charges recoml@013 , 2012 or 2011 . At October 1, 2013, thee @é our most recent annual
impairment assessment, the fair value of six ofGbepany's eight reporting units significantly exdeheir carrying values, and the fair value
of Tutor and Felix, both of which were acquire®bil2, approximates their carrying value.

Long-Lived Assets and Intangible Assets with Defité Lives

Long-lived assets, which consist of property andigment and intangible assets with definite livaa®, reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdibat the carrying value of an asset may not beverable. The carrying value of a long-
lived asset is not recoverable if it exceeds tha efithe undiscounted cash flows expected to résartt the use and eventual disposition of the
asset. If the carrying value is deemed not to beverable, an impairment loss is recorded equddgé@mount by which the carrying value of
the long-lived asset exceeds its fair value. Amzation of definite-lived intangible assets is conggleither on a straight-line basis or based ot
the pattern in which the economic benefits of theeawill be realized.

Fair Value Measurements

The Company categorizes its financial instrumergasared at fair value into a fair value hierardiat prioritizes the inputs used in
pricing the asset or liability. The three leveldlud fair value hierarchy are:

. Level 1: Observable inputs obtained from indepehdenrces, such as quoted prices for identicaksissal liabilities in active marke

. Level 2: Other inputs that are observable diyeat indirectly, such as quoted prices for simaasets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets abilities in markets that are not active and inpliég are derived principally from or
corroborated by observable market data. The fairevaf the Company's Level 2 financial assets araarily obtained from observable
market prices for identical underlying securitieattmay not be actively traded. Certain of thesersges may have different market
prices from multiple market data sources, in whiake an average market price is used.

. Level 3: Unobservable inputs for which therdtite or no market data and require the Compangeteelop its own assumptions, based ol
the best information available in the circumstaneesut the assumptions market participants wosédini pricing the assets or liabilities.
See Note 9 for a discussion of fair value measuntésmaade using Level 3 inputs.

The Company's non-financial assets, such as golpdhtingible assets and property and equipmentigdisas equity and cost method
investments, are adjusted to fair value only wheimgpairment charge is recognized. Such fair vaheasurements are based predominant



Level 3 inputs.
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Traffic Acquisition Costs

Traffic acquisition costs consist of payments midpartners who distribute our B2B customized brerasased applications, integrate
our paid listings into their websites or direcfficato our websites. These payments include an®based on revenue share and other
arrangements. The Company expenses these paymnsemtmponent of cost of revenue in the accompgrgonsolidated statement of
operations.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed in the period imtli(when the advertisement first runs for produrctiosts that are initially capitalized)
and represent online marketing, including fees pagskarch engines and third parties that distiloutr B2C downloadable applications, and
offline marketing, which is primarily television eektising. Advertising expense is $828.8 millidh7,74.1 million and $499.5 million for the
years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 ctasgpe.

The Company capitalizes and amortizes the costei@sed with certain distribution arrangements tieguire it to pay a fee per access
point delivered. These access points are genenaihe form of downloadable applications associatétl our B2C operations. These fees are
amortized over the estimated useful lives of theeas points to the extent the Company can reasoaatinate a probable future economic
benefit and the period over which such benefit bdlirealized (generally 18 months). Otherwise féles are charged to expense as incurred.

Legal Costs
Legal costs are expensed as incurred.
Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under thditiamethod, and deferred tax assets and liagdiare recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences betweefirthncial statement carrying values of existingeds and liabilities and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are unedsising enacted tax rates in effect for the yrearhich those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. A valuatitowalince is provided on deferred tax assets ifdeiermined that it is more likely than not that
the deferred tax asset will not be realized. Then@any records interest, net of any applicable edl&aiicome tax benefit, on potential income
tax contingencies as a component of income taxresge

The Company recognizes liabilities for uncertaipasitions based on a two-step process. Thestiegt is to evaluate the tax position for
recognition by determining if the weight of availalevidence indicates it is more likely than natttthe position will be sustained on audit,
including resolution of related appeals or litigatiprocesses, if any. The second step is to mettsaitax benefit as the largest amount which i
more than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimaéttlement.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share ("Basic EPS") is comployedividing net earnings attributable to IAC sharielers by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during thegeBiluted earnings per share ("Diluted EPS")aett the potential dilution that could
occur if stock options and other commitments taegssommon stock were exercised or equity awardedessulting in the issuance of
common stock that could share in the earningsefXbmpany.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transaction Gainsand Losses

The financial position and operating results ofstabtially all foreign operations are consolidatisthg the local currency as the
functional currency. Local currency assets andlitéds are translated at the rates of exchang# #se balance sheet date, and local currency
revenue and expenses are translated at averagefaechange during the period. Translation gaiglosses are included in accumulated
other comprehensive income as a component of shldiexs' equity. Transaction gains and losses tiaguttom assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the functionadency are included in the consolidated statémeoperations as a component of other
income (expense), net.

Translation gains and losses relating to foreidities that are liquidated or substantially liquieh are reclassified out of accumulated
other comprehensive income into earnings. Suctsgataled $9.2 million during the year ended Decen®1, 2011, and are included in



"Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations,afetx” in the accompanying consolidated stateroéoperations.
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Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation is measured at the gatmbedsed on the fair value of the award and isrgdlg expensed over the requisite
service period. See Note 14 for a further desaniptif the Company's stock-based compensation plans.

Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests

In connection with the acquisition of certain sudlisiies, management of these businesses has e&inavnership interest. The
Company is party to fair value put and call arrangets with respect to these interests. These putalharrangements allow management of
these businesses to require the Company to purtiheisénterests or allow the Company to acquirehsaterests at fair value, respectively.
The put arrangements do not meet the definitiom dérivative instrument as the put agreements tipnowide for net settlement. These put
call arrangements become exercisable by the Comgashyhe counter-party at various dates over tketa® years. During 2013, two of these
arrangements became exercisable. There are nogud arrangements that became exercisable d2@ifg. During 2011, one of these
arrangements became exercisable. These put arrantgeare exercisable by the counter-party outsideontrol of the Company.
Accordingly, to the extent that the fair value loése interests exceeds the value determined byahaoncontrolling interest accounting, the
value of such interests is adjusted to fair valith & corresponding adjustment to additional paidapital. During the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 , the Compamyded adjustments of $40.6 million , $4.3 millemd $4.3 million , respectively, to
increase these interests to fair value. Fair vedkterminations require high levels of judgment arelbased on various valuation techniques,
including market comparables and discounted casth ffirojections.

Noncontrolling interests in the consolidated sulasids of the Company should ordinarily be repodadhe consolidated balance sheet
within shareholders' equity, separately from thenBany's equity. However, securities that are redédemat the option of the holder and not
solely within the control of the issuer must besslfied outside of shareholders' equity. Accordinglredemption of the noncontrolling
interests is outside the control of the Comparw ititerests are included outside of shareholdgtstyein the accompanying consolidated
balance sheet.

Redeemable noncontrolling interests at Decembe2@13 and 2012 relate to certain operations indudehe Match, Media and Other
segments.

Noncontrolling Interests
Noncontrolling interests at December 31, 2013 &ittR2elate principally to Meetic.
Certain Risks and Concentrations

A substantial portion of the Company's revenueecisvéd from online advertising, the market for whis highly competitive and rapidly
changing. Significant changes in this industry lmarges in advertising spending behavior or in ecastdouying behavior could adversely afi
our operating results. Most of the Company's ordideertising revenue is attributable to a servaggeement with Google, which expires on
March 31, 2016. Our services agreement requirdsatba@omply with certain guidelines promulgatedGgyogle. Subject to certain limitations,
Google may unilaterally update its policies anddglines, which could require modifications to, oolgbit and/or render obsolete certain of
products, services and/or business practices, wduald be costly to address or otherwise have aarad effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. For the yeaded December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 , revemmnedefrom Google is $1.5 billion , $1.4
billion and $970.4 million , respectively. This enwe is earned by the businesses comprising threfS&aApplications segment. Accounts
receivable related to revenue earned from Goodgdetd $112.3 million and $125.3 million at DecemB&r 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

The Company's business is subject to certain gskisconcentrations including dependence on thirty pachnology providers, exposure
to risks associated with online commerce security @edit card fraud.

Financial instruments, which potentially subje@ ompany to concentration of credit risk, congigharily of cash and cash equivale
and marketable securities. Cash and cash equisaeatmaintained with financial institutions and ar excess of Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation insurance limits.

Reclassifications



Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiesbbform to the current year presentation.
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NOTE 3—CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT DETAILS

December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)
Other current assets:
Deferred income taxes $ 34,38, $ 20,34:
Prepaid expenses 23,94 22,87"
Capitalized downloadable search toolbar costs, net 21,17: 22,20:
Production costs 17,71 20,09¢
Income taxes receivable 12,24 27,43;
Other 52,071 43,37¢
Other current assets $ 161,53 $ 156,33
December 31,
2013 2012
(In thousands)
Property and equipment, net:
Buildings and leasehold improvements $ 246,28. $ 238,65:
Computer equipment and capitalized software 214,76:. 197,40:.
Furniture and other equipment 78,45 42,94¢
Projects in progress 14,64¢ 19,30:
Land 5,115 5,117
559,26 503,42:
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (265,299 (232,91)
Property and equipment, net $ 293,96« $ 270,51
December 31,
2013 2012
(In thousands)
Other non-current assets:
Restricted cash - funds held in escrow for Meaialer offer $ 7151: $ —
Production costs 22,42 —
Income taxes receivable 19,21° 79,13(
Other 51,53 39,10(
Other non-current assets $ 164,68 $ 118,23
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Accrued expenses and other current liabilities:
Accrued employee compensation and benefits
Accrued revenue share expense

Accrued advertising expense

Income taxes payable

Unsettled treasury stock purchases

Other

Accrued expenses and other current liabilities

Revenue:
Service revenue
Product revenue

Revenue

Cost of revenue:
Cost of service revenue
Cost of product revenue

Cost of revenue

Other income (expense), net:

Gain on sales of long-term investments
Interest income

Foreign currency exchange (losses) gains, net
Impairment of long-term investments

Non-income tax refunds related to Match Europectvhvas sold in 2009

Other
Other income (expense), net

December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)
$ 85,00t $ 51,537
72,27¢ 78,19¢
63,40t 73,38:
16,15¢ 17,67¢
— 35,11
114,19: 99,32¢
$ 351,03 $ 355,23.
Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
2,869,82. % 2,639,400 $ 1,932,28
153,16! 161,52 127,15!
3,022,98 % 2,800,93 $ 2,059,44.
Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
883,73( % 835,44( $ 659,06
116,37: 155,35 94,82(
1,000,10 $ 990,79 $ 753,88¢
Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
35,85¢ % 3,32¢  $ 1,974
2,60¢ 3,462 5,20¢
(2,882 (1,050) 3,66(
(5,26¢) (8,68¢) —
_ — 4,63(
(4) (65) 21
30,30¢ $ (3,012 $ 15,49(
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NOTE 4—INCOME TAXES

U.S. and foreign earnings from continuing operatibafore income taxes are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
U.S. $ 331,52( $ 214,678 $ 142,62:
Foreign 84,78: 74,38 28,89¢
Total $ 416,30. $ 289,06. $ 171,52.

The components of the provision (benefit) for ineotaxes attributable to continuing operations arfobows:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Current income tax provision (benefit):

Federal $ 115,25 $ 56,43¢ $ 49,45(
State 13,94¢ 9,20¢ (26,510
Foreign 14,40: 16,49¢ 8,49¢
Current income tax provision 143,59¢ 82,13¢ 31,43¢
Deferred income tax (benefit) provision:

Federal (821) 40,41 (23,299
State (2,119 1,97¢ 63¢
Foreign (6,15¢) (5,31¢) (12,829
Deferred income tax (benefit) provision (9,09¢) 37,07¢ (35,487
Income tax provision (benefit) $ 134,50 $ 119,21 § (4,049

The current income tax payable was reduced by $82l&n , $57.1 million and $22.2 million for theears ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011, respectively, for excess tax dégzhgattributable to stock-based compensation.rélaed income tax benefits are recorded
as increases to additional paid-in capital.

58




IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

Income taxes (payable) receivable and deferreditbilities) assets are included in the followicgptions in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2013GH#:

December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)

Income taxes (payable) receivable:

Other current assets $ 12,24: % 27,43
Other non-current assets 19,217 79,13(
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (16,159 (17,679
Income taxes payable (416,38, (479,94Y
Net income taxes payable $ (401,08) $ (391,05)

Deferred tax (liabilities) assets:

Other current assets $ 34,38. $ 20,34:
Other non-current assets 26 8%
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (25%) —
Deferred income taxes (320,749 (323,40)
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (286,591 $ (302,979

The tax effects of cumulative temporary differenttes give rise to significant portions of the dedel tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities are presented below. The valuationwafiace is related to deferred tax assets for whishmore likely than not that the tax benefit
will not be realized.

December 31,
2013 2012

(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Accrued expenses $ 28,00f $ 13,70¢
Net operating loss carryforwards 52,33t 27,17"
Tax credit carryforwards 6,13¢ 5,09t
Stock-based compensation 69,10: 66,96
Income tax reserves, including related interest 62,85: 60,59¢
Fair value investments 1,151 12,18¢
Equity method investments 13,58¢ 13,80¢
Other 11,44 13,37-
Total deferred tax assets 244,61: 212,91
Less valuation allowance (62,359 (60,787)
Net deferred tax assets 182,25¢ 152,12
Deferred tax liabilities:

Property and equipment (1,749 (6,019
Investment in subsidiaries (377,48) (373,65))
Intangible and other assets (69,530 (60,830)
Other (20,099 (14,607)
Total deferred tax liabilities (468,859 (455,10

Net deferred tax liability $ (286,59) $ (302,97Y)
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At December 31, 2013, the Company has federabtatd net operating losses ("NOLs") of $54.9 milland $77.2 million ,
respectively. If not utilized, the federal NOLs Mékpire at various times between 2023 and 2038 tlaa state NOLs will expire at various
times between 2014 and 2033. Utilization of fed®@lLs will be subject to limitations under Sect®82 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended. In addition, utilization of derttate NOLs may be subject to limitations undateslaws similar to Section 382 of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986. At December 31, 2048 Company has foreign NOLs of $98.2 milliomiéable to offset future income. Of
these foreign NOLs, $93.0 million can be carriedhviard indefinitely and $5.2 million will expire &arious times between 2014 and 2033.
During 2013, the Company recognized tax benefitded to NOLs of $10.6 million . Included in thisiaunt is $10.4 million of tax benefits of
acquired attributes, which was recorded as a remuit goodwill. At December 31, 2013 , the Compéag $34.4 million of state capital
losses. If not utilized, the federal and state tedyinsses will expire between 2014 and 2017. k#tion of capital losses will be limited to the
Company's ability to generate future capital gains.

At December 31, 2013, the Company has tax cregdiyforwards of $11.9 million . Of this amount, $%nillion relates to federal credits
for foreign taxes, $5.2 million relates to state ¢eedits for research activities, and $1.2 millietates to various state and local tax credits. Of
these credit carryforwards, $6.4 million can beiedrforward indefinitely and $5.5 million will ex within ten years.

During 2013, the Company's valuation allowana@eeased by $1.6 million primarily due to an inceeasforeign net operating losses,
partially offset by realized gains in long-term ketable equity securities. At December 31, 204& ,Gompany has a valuation allowance of
$62.4 million related to the portion of tax lossrgéorwards and other items for which it is moreely than not that the tax benefit will not be
realized.

A reconciliation of the income tax provision (beitjeto the amounts computed by applying the stayutederal income tax rate to
earnings from continuing operations before incoaxes is shown as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Income tax provision at the federal statutory Ht85% $ 145,70 $ 101,17: $ 60,03:
Reversal of deferred tax liability associated viithhestment in Meetic — — (43,696
Change in tax reserves, net 1,791 17,70: (15,499
Foreign income taxed at a different statutory e r (17,429 (16,240 (11,779
Net adjustment related to the reconciliation obime tax provision accruals to ta:

returns (5,237) (3,876 (7,299
Federal valuation allowance on equity method invesits 214 97¢ 4,59¢
State income taxes, net of effect of federal tanefie 7,46¢ 7,65( 5,592
Other, net 1,98¢ 11,82% 3,99¢
Income tax provision (benefit) $ 134,50. § 119,21 § (4,047)

No income taxes have been provided on indefinitellyvested earnings of certain foreign subsidisaggregating $517.4 million at
December 31, 2013 . The amount of the unrecogrieésired income tax liability with respect to swearnings is $119.5 million .
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoeaininrecognized tax benefits, excluding interissgs follows:

December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Balance at January 1 $ 379,28. $ 351,56. $ 389,90¢
Additions based on tax positions related to theentryear 2,881 6,27¢ 1,74¢
Additions for tax positions of prior years 3,18¢ 45,28’ 9,56(
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (17,116 (17,54% (26,595
Settlements (78,95¢) (5,349 (16,810
Expiration of applicable statute of limitations (13,479 (957) (6,257
Balance at December 31 $ 275,81 % 379,28: $ 351,56:

The Company recognizes interest and, if applicgi#aalties related to unrecognized tax benefitsdome tax provision. Included in the
income tax provision for continuing operations tloe years ended December 31, 2013 , 2012 and i2@1$%4.8 million expense, $5.2 million
expense and $1.4 million expense, respectivelyohetlated deferred taxes of $2.8 million , $3.llion and $0.9 million , respectively, for
interest on unrecognized tax benefits. Includeidd@ome tax provision for discontinued operationstfe years ended December 31, 2013,
2012 and 2011 is a $1.4 million expense, $2.8onilbenefit and $6.7 million expense, respectivest, of related deferred taxes of $0.8
million , $1.7 million and $4.2 million , respectly, for interest on unrecognized tax benefitsDétember 31, 2013 and 2012 , the Company
has accrued $133.0 million and $117.5 million pesgively, for the payment of interest. At DecemBg&r 2013 and 2012 , the Company has
accrued $5.1 million and $5.0 million , respectyédbr penalties.

The Company is routinely under audit by federalfestiocal and foreign authorities in the areanobme tax. These audits include
questioning the timing and the amount of income dedilictions and the allocation of income and dediietamong various tax jurisdictions.
Various jurisdictions are currently under examioatithe most significant of which are France, @afifa, New York and New York City for
various tax years beginning with 2006. Income tgpasble include reserves considered sufficiepaipassessments that may result from
examination of prior year tax returns. Change®serves from period to period and differences betveamounts paid, if any, upon the
resolution of audits and amounts previously prodidey be material. Differences between the resdordacome tax contingencies and the
amounts owed by the Company are recorded in thiedpdrey become known.

On August 28, 2013, the Joint Committee of Taxatompleted its review and approved the audit sa#la previously agreed to with
the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") for the yesarded December 31, 2001 through 2009. The statlitaitations for the years 2001 through
2009 expires on July 1, 2014. The resolution of tRIS examination resulted in a net liability te RS of $7.1 million . ADecember 31, 201
and 2012, unrecognized tax benefits, includingrest, are $408.8 million and $496.8 million pedively. Unrecognized tax benefits,
including interest, for the year ended Decembe2B13 decreased by $88.0 million due principall{hi® settlement of the audit of the federal
income tax returns for the years ended Decembe2(@®11 through 2009. The reduction of unrecogniaedienefits was substantially offset by
a reduction of receivables related to the samege®f the total unrecognized tax benefits at Ddmam31, 2013 , $405.5 million is included in
"Income taxes payable,” $3.0 million relates toedefd tax assets included in "Deferred income taaxed $0.3 million is included in "Accrued
expenses and other current liabilities" in the ageanying consolidated balance sheet. Included ieangnized tax benefits at December 31,
2013 is $44.7 million relating to tax positions fehich the ultimate deductibility is highly certaiout for which there is uncertainty about the
timing of such deductibility. If unrecognized tagrefits at December 31, 2013 are subsequently nezaxdy $120.9 million and $173.8 millign
net of related deferred tax assets and interestldveduce income tax expense from continuing djmers.and discontinued operations,
respectively. The comparable amounts as of DeceBhe2012 are $ 110.8 million and $ 222.3 milliaespectively. The Company believes
that it is reasonably possible that its unrecoghize benefits could decrease within twelve mowfithe current reporting date. An estimate of
changes in unrecognized tax benefits, while padéintsignificant, cannot be made.

NOTE 5—BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
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Acquisition of Twoo

On January 4, 2013, Meetic S.A., a Match subsidjamychased all the outstanding shares of Massigdi&¥NV, which operates Twoo, a
social discovery website that allows its users &ztmew people. The purchase price was $25.0 milli@cash, plus potential additional
consideration of up to €83.2 million (or $113.8lmit using the December 31, 2013 exchange raté)stentingent upon a combination of
earnings performance and user growth through DeeeBih 2015. The fair value of the contingent cdasation arrangement at the acquisit
date was $40.8 millionSee Note 9 for additional information relatedhe fair value measurement of the contingent camaitbn arrangemei

Acquisition of About, Inc.

On September 24, 2012, IAC completed its purchésd the outstanding shares of About, Inc. (“Thieoit Group”), an online content
and reference library offering expert, quality anttacross 90,000 topics. The purchase price was $idlion in cash, plus an amount equal to
the net working capital of $17.1 million at closinighe financial results of The About Group are iiigld in IAC's consolidated financial
statements, within the Search & Applications segimagginning October 1, 2012.

The unaudited pro forma financial information i tlable below summarizes the combined results 6fd4Ad The About Group as if the
acquisition of The About Group had occurred on dayd, 2012. The pro forma financial informatioglindes adjustments required under the
acquisition method of accounting and is presendeihformational purposes only and is not necebsanilicative of what the results would
have been had the acquisition occurred on Jany&91R. For the year ended December 31, 2012 fppnwa adjustments reflected below
include an increase of $13.4 million in amortizatif intangible assets.

Year Ended December 31, 2012

(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenue $ 2,875,90:
Net earnings attributable to IAC shareholders 166,86
Basic earnings per share attributable to IAC shadehns 1.9:
Diluted earnings per share attributable to IAC shalders 1.7¢

NOTE 6—GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company assesses goodwill and indefinite-liméghgible assets for impairment annually or moegiently if an event occurs or
circumstances change that would more likely tharreduce the fair value of a reporting unit or thie value of an indefinite-lived intangible
asset below its carrying value. The Company als@wes definite-lived intangible assets for impaimhevhenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value définite-lived intangible asset may not be recabé. The Company performs its annual
assessment for impairment of goodwill and indediiived intangible assets as of October 1 in cotimeavith the preparation of its annual
financial statements. See Note 2 for further disitusof the Company's impairment assessment préeegsodwill and intangible assets.

The balance of goodwill and intangible assetsjsas follows:

December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)
Goodwill $ 1,67532. $ 1,616,15.
Intangible assets with indefinite lives 376,32¢ 378,96
Intangible assets with definite lives, net 69,00" 103,94(
Total goodwill and intangible assets, net $ 2,120,65' $ 2,099,05i
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The following table presents the balance of goddwilreporting unit, including the changes in tlaerging value of goodwill, for the ye
ended December 31, 2013 :

Balance at Foreign Balance at
December 31, Transfers In/ Exchange December 31,
2012 Additions (Deductions) (Out) Translation 2013
(In thousands)
Search & Applications $ 723,65( $ — 3 (160) $ 1457 $ — 738,06
Match 683,93! 62,41¢ — — 4,87¢ 751,23.
HomeAdvisor 111,65¢ 5,31i — — 524 117,49¢
Felix — — — 14,37 — 14,37
CityGrid Media 32,12 — (3,179 (28,94%) — —
Local 143,78. 5,313 (3,179 (14,579 524 131,87.
Connected Ventures 8,261 — — — — 8,261
DailyBurn 7,328 — — — — 7,32%
Media 15,59( — — — — 15,59(
Shoebuy 21,71¢ — — — — 21,71¢
Tutor 27,47¢ 45 (20,675 — — 16,84¢
Other 49,19° 45 (10,675 — — 38,56’
Total $ 161615 $ 67,78 $ (14,019 $ — $ 540 $ 1,67532

Additions primarily relate to the acquisition of da. Deductions primarily relate to the establishtredra deferred tax asset at Tutor
arising from pre-acquisition net operating los§egansfers in/(out) relate to the reorganizatiol©afGrid Media in the third quarter of 2013.

The following table presents the balance of goddwilreporting unit, including the changes in tlaerging value of goodwill, for the year
ended December 31, 2012 :

Balance at Foreign Balance at
December 31, Exchange December 31,
2011 Additions (Deductions) Translation 2012
(In thousands)

Search & Applications $ 526,44. $ 197,45¢ $ (252) $ — $ 723,65l
Match 667,07: 23,25( (555) (5,832 683,93!
HomeAdvisor 109,94 1,88( — (169) 111,65¢
CityGrid Media 17,75: 14,37: — — 32,12«
Local 127,69¢ 16,25: — (169 143,78
Connected Ventures 8,26 — — — 8,261
DailyBurn 7,328 = — — 7,32:
Media 15,59( — —_ — 15,59(
Shoebuy 21,71¢ — — — 21,71¢
Tutor — 27,47¢ —_ — 27,47¢
Other 21,71¢ 27,47¢ — — 49,19;
Total $ 1,358,522 $ 26443¢ $ (807 $ (6,00 $ 1,616,15

Additions primarily relate to the acquisition of @ About Group.

The December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 goodwill kaélaimclude accumulated impairment losses of $9h@l®n , $28.0 million and

$11.6 million at Search & Applications, Shoebuy &whnected Ventures, respectively.

Intangible assets with indefinite lives are tradenes and trademarks acquired in various acquisiti@hDecember 31, 2013, intangible

assets with definite lives are as follows:



63




IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

Gross Weighted-Average
Carrying Accumulated Useful Life
Amount Amortization Net (Years)

(In thousands)

Content $ 47,80C $ (22,379 $ 25,42 4.0
Technology 41,69 (25,329 16,37( 2.9
Trade names 29,28: (16,427 12,85¢ 3.0
Customer lists 22,58¢ (13,116 9,46¢ 2.5
Advertiser and supplier relationships 10,95¢ (6,070 4,88¢ 2.9

Total $ 152,31 % (83,31 % 69,007 3.2

At December 31, 2012, intangible assets with defilives are as follows:

Gross Weighted-Average
Carrying Accumulated Useful Life
Amount Amortization Net (Years)

(In thousands)

Content $ 47,80( $ (4,73) $ 43,067 4.0
Technology 37,54¢ (11,667) 25,88: 2.9
Trade names 22,74 (7,049 15,69¢ 3.6
Advertiser and supplier relationships 16,44¢ (7,676 8,77( 4.4
Customer lists 11,80( (1,277) 10,52: 3.7

Total $ 136,33! $ (32,399 $ 103,94( 3.7

At December 31, 2013, amortization of intangitdeets with definite lives for each of the next fjigars and thereafter is estimated to be
as follows:

Years Ending December 31, (In thousands)
2014 $ 38,23¢
2015 19,13:
2016 8,141
2017 2,75¢
2018 49¢
Thereafter 241
Total $ 69,00"

NOTE 7—MARKETABLE SECURITIES

At December 31, 2013, current available-for-satgkatable securities are as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(In thousands)
Corporate debt security $ 1,00¢ $ 4 9 —  $ 1,00¢
Total debt security 1,004 4 — 1,00¢
Equity securities 21¢ 4,78C — 4,99¢

Total marketable securities $ 1,22C $ 4,78 % — 3 6,00




The contractual maturity of the debt security dféext as current available-for-sale at December281,3 is less than one year.
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At December 31, 2012 , current available-for-safekatable securities are as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(In thousands)

Corporate debt securities $ 13,60¢ $ 19 $ —  $ 13,62}
Total debt securities 13,60¢ 19 — 13,621
Equity security — 6,971 — 6,971
Total marketable securities $ 13,60¢ $ 6,99¢ $ — 8 20,60¢

The net unrealized gains in the tables above atedad in "Accumulated other comprehensive losgh@éaccompanying consolidated
balance sheet.

The following table presents the proceeds from niteda and sales of current and non-current avhstédr-sale marketable securities and
the related gross realized gains and losses:

December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
Proceeds from maturities and sales of availablesée marketable securities $ 82,16( $ 205,94 $ 600,14¢
Gross realized gains 35,69: 4,07t 2,48
Gross realized losses — (5) (42)

Gross realized gains and losses from the matudtidssales of available-for-sale marketable seearitre included in "Other income
(expense), net" in the accompanying consolidaizte istent of operations.

NOTE 8—LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

The balance of long-term investments is comprifed o

December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)
Cost method investments $ 137,28t $ 113,83(
Equity method investments 22,07 8,10¢
Long-term marketable equity securities 11,71 31,24«
Auction rate security 8,92( 8,10(C
Total long-term investments $ 179,99 $ 161,27

Cost method investments

In the third quarter of 2011, the Company acqua&d% interest in the voting common stock of Zhénai ("Zhenai"), a leading
provider of online matchmaking services in Chinar @oting power is limited by a shareholders agreeimin light of this limitation and the
significance of our interest relative to other gfeniders, we do not have the ability to exercigaificant influence over the operating and
financial matters of Zhenai and this investmerstdsounted for as a cost method investment.

In the fourth quarter of 2013, the Company recora&®.0 million write-down of a cost method investrhto fair value. The decline in
value was due to the investees continued lossgatime working capital and significant debt finawgei The valuation of this investment refle
the Company's assessment of these factors. The @yngstimated the fair value of this investmenhgsi multiple of revenue approach.
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Equity method investments

In 2012 and 2011, the Company recorded pre-taxcash-charges of $18.6 million and $11.7 millioaspectively, related to the re-
measurement of the carrying value of our equityhm@tinvestments in News_Beast and Meetic, respagtito fair value in connection with
the acquisitions of controlling interests. The reasurement charges are included in "Equity in bs$enconsolidated affiliates" in the
accompanying consolidated statement of operations.

The comparability of the summarized aggregatechfired information presented below is affected bgraes in ownership of our various
equity method investments over the three-year garimled December 31, 2013 . The operating dat20fbt is primarily comprised of Meetic
and News_Beast; the operating data for 2012 isgtiyncomprised of News_Beast; and the operatirtg f& 2013 is primarily comprised of
our equity method investments other than Meeticldeds Beast. The balance sheet data at Decemb20383 and 2012 is comprised of our
equity method investments other than Meetic and$\&east. Through August 31, 2011 we accountedubR@% ownership interest in
Meetic as an equity method investment. In 2011 eegiimed a controlling interest in Meetic and agsuit, Meetic is included within our
consolidated financial statements beginning Sepéerhp2011. During 2011 and through May 31, 2012ae@unted for our 50% ownership
interest in News_Beast as an equity method invedtnie 2012we acquired a controlling interest in News_Beast ama result, News_Beas
included within our consolidated financial statemsdmeginning June 1, 2012.

Summarized aggregated financial information for@menpany's equity method investments is as follows:

December 31,
2013 2012

(In thousands)

Balance sheet dafa:

Current assets $ 17,16: $ 10,60
Non-current assets 24,53¢ 25,47:
Current liabilities (24,48°) (20,227
Non-current liabilities (14,119 (5,962

Twelve Months Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

(In thousands)

Operating dat&:

Net sales $ 5153 $ 78,05¢ $ 368,43

Gross profit 10,32¢ 16,77 105,74¢

Net loss (12,529 (30,767 (17,63¢
(@) Summarized financial information for the Comya equity method investments is presented fopén®ds during which the Company holds or heléguty

ownership interest. The summarized financial infation for certain equity method investments is @nésd on a one quarter lag.

Long-term marketable equity securities

The cost basis of the Company's long-term marketatpliity securities at December 31, 2013 is $8l8omi, with gross unrealized gains
of $3.0 million included in "Accumulated other corapensive loss" in the accompanying consolidatéahloe sheet. The cost basis of the
Company's long-term marketable equity securitid3eatember 31, 2012 is $ 42.1 million , with a grossealized loss of $ 10.8 million
included in "Accumulated other comprehensive lasghe accompanying consolidated balance sheddesember 31, 2013, all the
Company's long-term marketable equity securitiesman unrealized gain position. At December 31,22, the Company's long-term
marketable equity securities were both in an uiredlloss position. The Company evaluated the texar-prospects of the issuers in relatio
the severity and duration of the unrealized loslse2012 , the Company recorded an $8.7 millioreptihan-temporary impairment charge
related to the security that was in a continuougalized loss position for more than one year, thasethe Company's evaluation of the near-
term prospects of the issuer in relation to theeggy(fair value was 50 percent less than costl) guration of the unrealized loss. The
impairment charge is included in “Other income @ng®e), net” in the accompanying consolidated sta¢mf operations. The Company did



not consider the second security to be other-tearporarily impaired at December
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31, 2012 based on the Company's evaluation oféhe-term prospects of the issuer in relation tostheerity and duration, less than two
months, of the unrealized loss and the Companjlisyadind intent to hold this security for a reaabie period of time sufficient for an expec

recovery of fair value.

Auction rate security

See Note 9 for information regarding the auctide security.

NOTE 9—FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND FINANCIAL INSTRU MENTS

The following tables present the Company's findringtruments that are measured at fair value m@tarring basis:

Assets:

Cash equivalents:
Money market funds
Commercial paper
Time deposits

Marketable securities:
Corporate debt security
Equity securities

Long-term investments:
Auction rate security
Marketable equity securities

Total

Liabilities:
Contingent consideration arrangement

December 31, 2013

Quoted Market Significant
Prices in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable Total
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs Fair Value
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Measurements
(In thousands)
$ 698,30 — 3 — % 698,30
— 12,00( — 12,00(
— 32,32t — 32,32t
— 1,00¢ — 1,00¢
4,99¢ — — 4,99¢
— — 8,92( 8,92(
11,71 — — 11,71
$ 715,01 4533: $ 8,92( $ 769,26
$ — — 3 (43,62 $ (43,625
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December 31, 2012

Quoted Market Significant
Prices in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable Total
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs Fair Value
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Measurements
(In thousands)
Assets:
Cash equivalents:
Money market funds $ 54529( $ — 3 — 3 545,29(
Time deposits — 11,99 — 11,99«
Marketable securities:
Corporate debt securities — 13,627 — 13,621
Equity security 6,97 — — 6,97
Long-term investments:
Auction rate security — — 8,10( 8,10(
Marketable equity securities 31,24 — — 31,24+
Total $ 583,51. $ 25,62. $ 8,10 $ 617,23.

The following table presents the changes in the @omy's financial instruments that are measurediavélue on a recurring basis using
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

For the Year Ended

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Contingent Contingent
Auction Rate Consideration Auction Rate Consideration
Security Arrangement Security Arrangement
(In thousands)
Balance at January 1 $ 8,10C $ — $ 5,87( $ (10,000
Total net gains (losses):

Included in earnings (unrealized) — (343 — — —
Included in other comprehensive income (loss) 82C (2,445 2,23( —
Fair value at date of acquisition — (40,83Y) — —
Settlements — — — 10,00(
Balance at December 31 $ 892( $§  (43,62Y) $ 8,10¢ $ —

There are no gains or losses included in earnimgthé year ended December 31, 2011 , relatinggcCompany's financial instruments
that are measured at fair value on a recurringsh&sing significant unobservable inputs.

Auction rate security

The Company's auction rate security is valued bgalinting the estimated future cash flow streante@&ecurity over the life of the
security. Credit spreads and other risk factorsafge considered in establishing fair value. The basis of the auction rate security is $10.0
million , with gross unrealized losses of $1.1 milland $1.9 million at December 31, 2013 and Ddiam31, 2012 , respectively. The
unrealized losses are included in "Accumulatedratbenprehensive loss" in the accompanying constaiibalance sheet. At December 31,
2013, the auction rate security is rated A-/WR aradures in 2035. The Company does not consideaubgon rate security to be other-than-
temporarily impaired at December 31, 2013, duiéstbigh credit rating and because the Company doemtend to sell this security, and it is
not more likely than not that the Company will leguired to sell this security, before the recowadrigs amortized cost basis, which may be
maturity.

Contingent consideration arrangement



The contingent consideration arrangement entettednr2013 arose from the acquisition of Twoo (Ske¢e 5 for additional information
The fair value of the contingent consideration mgement was determined using a probability-

68




IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

weighted analysis, and reflects a discount ratE5é6 , which captures the risks associated wittotiligiation. The probability-weighted
analysis consists of the Company's multi-scenaniedasts of Twoo's earnings and the number of wddr&voo.com in accordance with the
contingent consideration arrangement through Deeer®b, 2015, and the Company's estimate of thegpibity of each scenario occurring.
The discounted liability of the contingent consateén arrangement ranges from $34.2 million to 5tillion in these scenarios at December
31, 2013. These multi-scenario forecasts and latebability assessments were based primarily anagement's internal projections and
strategic plans, with limited additional considaratgiven to growth trends of similarly situatedsmesses. The fair value of the contingent
consideration arrangement is sensitive to charmgt®idiscount rate and changes in the forecastarofngs and website u2sers. The Compar
remeasures the fair value of the contingent conaib®m arrangement each reporting period, and afmage recognized in “General and
administrative expense” in the accompanying codatdid statement of operations. The contingent deresion arrangement liability at
December 31, 2013 includes a current portion of $7illion and non-current portion of $36.5 milliorvhich are included in “Accrued
expenses and other current liabilities” and “Otlbag-term liabilities,” respectively, in the accoamying consolidated balance sheet.

The contingent consideration arrangement in 20E2e@ to OkCupid, which was acquired in Januaryl201
Financial instruments measured at fair value only ér disclosure purposes

The following table presents the carrying value tredfair value of financial instruments measurefhi value only for disclosure
purposes:

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value

(In thousands)
Current maturities of long-term debt $ — 3 — (15,849 $ (15,875
Long-term debt, net of current maturities (1,080,001 (1,058,39)) (580,000 (581,999

The fair value of long-term debt, including currematurities, is estimated using market prices dices for similar liabilities and taking
into consideration other factors such as creditiguand maturity, which are Level 3 inputs.

NOTE 10—LONG-TERM DEBT

The balance of long-term debt is comprised of:

December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)

7.00% Senior Notes due January 15, 2013 (the "Za0or Notes"); interest payable each January

and July 15, which commenced July 15, 2003 $ — ¢ 15,84«
4.875% Senior Notes due November 30, 2018 (the3'&hior Notes"); interest payable each May 30

and November 30, which commences May 30, 2014 500,00( —
4.75% Senior Notes due December 15, 2022 (the "S@hior Notes"); interest payable each June 1

and December 15, which commenced June 15, 2013 500,00( 500,00t
5% New York City Industrial Development Agency LibeBonds due September 1, 2035 (the "Liberty

Bonds"); interest payable each March 1 and Septefnhehich commenced March 1, 2006 80,00( 80,00(
Total long-term debt 1,080,00! 595,84
Less current maturities — (15,849
Long-term debt, net of current maturities $ 1,080,000 $ 580,00(

On November 15, 2013, the Company issued $500omifiggregate principal amount of 4.875% Senior 8ldtee November 30, 2018.
The 2013 Senior Notes were issued at par. At ang firior to November 30, 2014, we may redeem ti&8 Zenior Notes at a redemption p
equal to the sum of the principal amount therelofs pccrued and unpaid interest and a make-whelmipm. Thereafter, we may redeem the
2013 Senior Notes at the redemption prices sdt fuetow, together
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with accrued and unpaid interest thereon to thdicggipe redemption date, if redeemed during thduesnonth period beginning on Novemt
30 of the years indicated below:

Year Percentage

2014 104.87%
2015 103.25(%
2016 101.62%
2017 and thereafter 100.00(%

On December 21, 2012, the Company issued $50mmiiggregate principal amount of 4.75%nior Notes due December 15, 2022.
2012 Senior Notes were issued at par. At any tirige o December 15, 2017, we may redeem the 2@hoENotes at a redemption price
equal to the sum of the principal amount therelofs pccrued and unpaid interest and a make-whelmipm. Thereafter, we may redeem the
2012 Senior Notes at the redemption prices sdt fuetow, together with accrued and unpaid intettessteon to the applicable redemption date
if redeemed during the twelve-month period begigran December 15 of the years indicated below:

Year Percentage

2017 102.37%
2018 101.58%
2019 100.79%
2020 and thereafter 100.00(%

The 2013 and 2012 Senior Notes are unconditiogaifyranteed by certain domestic subsidiaries, wéiietdesignated as guarantor
subsidiaries. The guarantor subsidiaries are e dar the 2013 and 2012 Senior Notes. See Noferafliarantor and non-guarantor financial
information.

The indentures governing the 2013 and 2012 ServtedNcontain identical covenants that would linuit ability to pay dividends or ma
other distributions and repurchase or redeem ogksh the event a default has occurred or we aténncompliance with the financial ratio set
forth in the indenture. At December 31, 2013, theeee no limitations pursuant thereto. There aditaxhal covenants that limit our ability a
the ability of our subsidiaries to, among othendfs, (i) incur indebtedness, make investmentselbassets in the event we are not in
compliance with the financial ratio set forth iretimdenture, and (ii) incur liens, enter into agneats restricting our subsidiaries' ability to pay
dividends, enter into transactions with affiliatesl consolidate, merge or sell all or substant&llpf our assets.

On December 21, 2012, the Company entered int®@ B8llion revolving credit facility, which expiresn December 21, 2017. The
annual fee to maintain the revolving credit fagilg 25 basis points. At December 31, 2013 and 202e are no outstanding borrowings
under the revolving credit facility. IAC's obligati under the revolving credit facility is unconditally guaranteed by the same domestic
subsidiaries that guarantee the 2013 and 2012 ISipies and is also secured by the stock of cedfatur domestic and foreign subsidiaries.

IAC's payment obligation under the Liberty Bondsadlateralized by a mortgage interest in the coafmoheadquarters building.

Long-term debt maturities are as follows:

Years Ending December 31, (In thousands)

2018 $ 500,00(
2022 500,00t
2035 80,00(
Total $ 1,080,001
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NOTE 11—SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Description of Common Stock and Class B Convertibl€ommon Stock

With respect to matters that may be submitteduota or for the consent of IAC's shareholders gaherincluding the election of
directors, each holder of shares of IAC commonkstoal IAC Class B common stock vote together daglesclass. In connection with any
such vote, each holder of IAC common stock is lextito one vote for each share of IAC common stealld and each holder of IAC Class B
common stock is entitled to ten votes for eacheslbb&tAC Class B common stock held. Notwithstandimg foregoing, the holders of shares of
IAC common stock, acting as a single class, andl@mto elect 25% of the total number of IAC'seditors, and, in the event that 25% of the
total number of directors shall result in a frantaf a director, then the holders of shares of Bs@mon stock, acting as a single class, are
entitled to elect the next higher whole numberAE directors. In addition, Delaware law requittest certain matters be approved by the
holders of shares of IAC common stock or holderA@f Class B common stock voting as a separatesclas

Shares of IAC Class B common stock are converiititeshares of IAC common stock at the option efhlolder thereof, at any time, on
a share-for-share basis. Such conversion ratiomdll events be equitably preserved in the eeémainy recapitalization of IAC by means of a
stock dividend on, or a stock split or combinatidnoutstanding shares of IAC common stock or IA@SS B common stock, or in the event of
any merger, consolidation or other reorganizatibiA€ with another corporation. Upon the conversairshares of IAC Class B common
stock into shares of IAC common stock, those shafrésC Class B common stock will be retired andlwbt be subject to reissue. Shares of
IAC common stock are not convertible into shareBA@f Class B common stock.

Except as described herein, shares of IAC comnmokstnd IAC Class B common stock are identical. Ablelers of shares of IAC
common stock and the holders of shares of IAC (Bassmmon stock are entitled to receive, sharaliare, such dividends as may be dec
by IAC's Board of Directors out of funds legallyadtable therefore. In the event of a liquidatioissdlution, distribution of assets or winding-
up of IAC, the holders of shares of IAC common ktand the holders of shares of IAC Class B comntocksare entitled to receive, share for
share, all the assets of IAC available for distiitruto its stockholders, after the rights of ttedders of any IAC preferred stock have been
satisfied.

At December 31, 2013, Mr. Diller, Chairman of ®eard and Senior Executive of the Company, hol8siillion shares, representing
100% of IAC's outstanding Class B common stockDAtember 31, 2013, Mr. Diller held shares reprisgd3.1% of the outstanding total
voting power of the Company.

Description of Preferred Stock

IAC's Board of Directors has the authority to desig, by resolution, the powers, preferences,sightl qualifications, limitations and
restrictions of preferred stock issued by IAC withany further vote or action by the sharehold&rs; shares of preferred stock so issued
would have priority over shares of IAC common stackl shares of IAC Class B common stock with restoedividend or liquidation rights ¢
both. At December 31, 2013 and 2012 there is nfepea stock issued and outstanding.
Reserved Common Shares

In connection with equity compensation plans, 2dillion shares of IAC common stock are reserveDetember 31, 2013 .
Warrants

No warrants were outstanding at December 31, 20dBwarrants were issued during the years endeémkeer 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011 . During the years ended December 31, 2012@h#l , 14.3 million and 3.9 million warrants wepeercised, respectively. Some of those
warrants were exercised on a cashless or net lfasithe years ended December 31, 2012 and 2@4 rdceived proceeds of $284.1 million
and $76.0 million , respectively.

Common Stock Repurchases

During 2013 and 2012, the Company purchased 4ltom#énd 15.5 million shares of IAC common stock#ggregate consideration, on
a trade date basis, of $229.1 million and $716lliani, respectively.

On April 30, 2013, IAC's Board of Directors auttmail the repurchase of up to 10 million shares & bbmmon stock. At December 31,



2013, the Company has approximately 8.6 millioarsh remaining in its share repurchase authorizatio
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NOTE 12—ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
The following table presents the components of exdated other comprehensive loss and items refiedsiut of accumulated other

comprehensive loss into earnings:

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Foreign Currency Unrealized (Losses)

Translation Gains On Available-  Accumulated Other
Adjustment For-Sale Securities Comprehensive Loss
(In thousands)
Balance at January 1 $ (25,079 $ (7,096 $ (32,169
Other comprehensive income before reclassificatinesof tax provision of $3.9
million related to unrealized gains 4,721 43,23t 47,95¢
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comgmslve loss, net of tax
provision of $6.9 million related to unrealized mgi — (28,839 (28,837)
Net current period other comprehensive income 4,721 14,40: 19,12
Balance at December 31 $ (20,35) $ 7,30€  $ (13,049

Unrealized gains, net of tax, reclassified out@afianulated other comprehensive loss related tontiterities and sales of available-for-
sale securities are included in "Other income (agpg net" in the accompanying consolidated statéofeoperations. Unrealized gains, net of
tax, reclassified out of accumulated other compmsive loss into other income (expense), net folytars ended December 31, 2012 and 201

were $2.1 million and $2.8 million , respectively.
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NOTE 13—EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation asiz and diluted earnings per share attributablé@shareholders.

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011

Basic Diluted Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

(In thousands, except per share data)

Numerator:
Earnings from continuing operations $ 281,79¢ $ 281,7%¢ $ 169,847 $ 169,84 $ 17556¢ $ 175,56
Net loss (earnings) attributable to noncontrolli
interests 2,05¢ 2,05¢ (1,530 (1,530 2,65¢€ 2,65¢
Earnings from continuing operations attributable
to IAC shareholders 283,85¢ 283,85t 168,31° 168,31 178,22! 178,22
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations
attributable to IAC shareholders 1,92¢ 1,92¢ (9,05)) (9,05)) (3,997 (3,999

Net earnings attributable to IAC shareholders $ 285,78 $ 285,78 $ 159,26t $ 159,26t $ 174,230 § 174,23

Denominator:

Weighted average basic shares outstanding 83,48( 83,48( 86,24 86,24 86,75¢ 86,75¢
Dilutive securities including stock options,

warrants and RSU3® — 3,26: — 6,842 — 7,56¢
Denominator for earnings per share—weighte

average sharéd® 83,48( 86,74: 86,24 93,08t¢ 86,75¢ 94,32:

Earnings (loss) per share attributable to IAC sharéolders:

Earnings per share from continuing operations$ 34C $ 327 % 198 % 181 $ 20 % 1.8¢
Discontinued operations 0.0z 0.0z (0.10 (0.10 (0.049) (0.04)
Earnings per share $ 34z $ 3.2¢ $ 18 % 1.71 % 201 $ 1.8

(@) If the effect is dilutive, weighted averagemroon shares outstanding include the incrementaéstifat would be issued upon the assumed exerfcsteck
options and warrants and vesting of restrictedkstmits ("RSUs"). As of May 8, 2012, there are rernants outstanding. For the years ended Decenlh@033 ,
2012 and 2011 approximately 0.4 million , 0.8 moitliand 1.0 milliorshares, respectively, related to potentially ditiSecurities are excluded from the calcule
of diluted earnings per share because their immusiould have been anti-dilutive.

(b)  Performance-based stock units ("PSUs") aredied in the denominator for earnings per shafig the applicable performance condition(s) hashbeet and (ii)
the inclusion of the PSUs is dilutive for the respee reporting periods. For the year ended Decer@be2013 , all PSUs that were considered to bbatle of
vesting are included in the calculation of dilueainings per share as their performance conditiad$een met. For the years ended December 31 2212011
approximately 0.1 million and 3.1 million PSUs, pestively, that were probable of vesting were edetlifrom the calculation of diluted earnings pearsh
because the performance conditions had not been met

NOTE 14—STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

IAC currently has three active plans under whiclaals have been granted. These plans cover stodnspb acquire shares of IAC
common stock, RSUs, PSUs and restricted stockelisae/ provide for the future grant of these artboequity awards. These plans authorize
the Company to grant awards to its employees,a8iadirectors and consultants. At December 313 2@ere are 13.9 millioghares availab
for grant under the Company's stock-based compengalans.

The plans were adopted in 2005, 2008 and 2013, havated term of ten years , and provide thagxeecise price of stock options
granted will not be less than the market pricenef€ompany's common stock on the grant date. Tareslo not specify grant dates or vesting
schedules of awards as those determinations haredsegated to the Compensation and Human ResoGoramittee of IAC's Board of



Directors (the "Committee"). Each grant agreemefiécts the vesting
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schedule for that particular grant as determinetheyCommittee. Broatased stock option awards issued to date havealynessted in equ
annual installments over a four -year period antd R&ards currently outstanding generally vest ino 88% installments over a three and four
year period, in each case, from the grant date. &&tds issued to date generally cliff vest atethe of stwo to three -year period from the
date of grant. In addition to equity awards outdtag under the three plans, stock options and abeity awards outstanding under terminate:
plans and plans assumed in acquisitions are reflantthe information set forth below.

The amount of stock-based compensation expensgnizea in the consolidated statement of operat®nsduced by estimated
forfeitures, as the expense recorded is based ardavhat are ultimately expected to vest. Theeftufe rate is estimated at the grant date
based on historical experience and revised, if swang, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitaliffer from the estimated rate.

The total income tax benefit recognized in the agganying consolidated statement of operationshieryears ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011 related to stock-based corapienss $19.3 million , $31.3 million and $32.7liin , respectively.

At December 31, 2013, there is $86.2 million ofagognized compensation cost, net of estimateeifares, related to all equity-based
awards, which is expected to be recognized ovesighted average period of approximately 2.2 years.

Stock Options

A summary of changes in outstanding stock optisresifollows:

December 31, 2013

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Term Value
(Shares and intrinsic value in thousands)
Outstanding at January 1, 2013 10,46( $ 33.6¢
Granted 69:< 47.3:
Exercised (2,246 23.17
Forfeited (783) 41.8i
Expired (50 33.91
Outstanding at December 31, 2013 8,07« § 36.9¢ 6.8 $ 255,67:
Options exercisable 3,74( $ 30.3¢ 5.3 $ 143,30

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeesents the total ptex intrinsic value (the difference between IAQ&sing stock pric
on the last trading day of 2013 and the exercigepmultiplied by the number of in-the-money op8d that would have been received by the
option holders had all option holders exercisedt thgtions on December 31, 2013. This amount chseibgsed on the fair market value of
IAC's common stock. The total intrinsic value afat options exercised during the years ended Deeeih 2013, 2012 and 2011 is $65.6
million , $84.8 million and $70.6 million , respaaly.
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The following table summarizes the information abstock options outstanding and exercisable at Dbéee 31, 2013 :

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted- Weighted-

Average Weighted- Average Weighted-

Outstanding at Remaining Average Exercisable at Remaining Average

December 31, Contractual Exercise December 31, Contractual Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices 2013 Life in Years Price 2013 Life Price
(Shares in thousands)

$0.01 to $10.00 2 03 $ 6.9¢ 2 03 $ 6.9¢
$10.01 to $20.00 55¢ 5.4 17.5¢ 55¢ 5.4 17.5¢
$20.01 to $30.00 1,27 5.0 22.1¢4 1,031 4.8 22.2¢
$30.01 to $40.00 2,06¢ 7.2 32.0¢ 1,081 7.1 31.8¢
$40.01 to $50.00 3,78¢ 7.2 45.4; 1,04 3.7 43.12
$50.01 to $60.00 382 8.4 58.51 20 8.2 56.5(
8,07« 6.8 $ 36.9¢ 3,74( 53 $ 30.3¢

The fair value of each stock option award is estdian the grant date using the Black-Scholes ngtitcing model. Approximately 0.7
million , 3.6 million and 2.6 million stock optiongere granted by the Company during the years eBeéegmber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

The Black-Scholes option pricing model incorporatasous assumptions, including expected volatdityl expected term. During 2013 ,
2012 and 2011, expected stock price volatilitieserestimated based on the Company's historicatiityl. Expected term is based upon the
historical exercise behavior of our employees &edrisk-free interest rates are based on U.S. Uirgaselds for notes with comparable terms
as the awards, in effect at the grant date. THeviirhg are the weighted average assumptions usteiBlack-Scholes option pricing model:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Expected volatility 2% 31% 30%
Risk-free interest rate 1.C% 0.6% 2.3%
Expected term 6.2 year 4.4 year 6.1 year
Dividend yield 2.(% 1.2% —

The weighted average fair value of stock optiomtgd during the years ended December 31, 20182, &0d 2011 with exercise prices
equal to the market prices of IAC's common stockhendate of grant are $10.67 , $10.69 and $11r@8pectively. There are no stock options
issued during the years ended December 31, 2013Gidwith exercise prices greater than the markiete of IAC's common stock on the
date of grant. The weighted average exercise prideweighted average fair value of stock optiomstad during the year ended December 3!
2012 with exercise prices greater than the mar&ketevof IAC's common stock on the date of grant$a8€.00 and $ 7.61 , respectively.

Cash received from stock option exercises anddlated tax benefit realized for the years endeceBser 31, 2013 , 2012 and 2011 are
$40.7 million and $69.4 million ; $58.2 million a¥d4.3 million ; and $89.8 million and $25.5 milig respectively. In December 2013, the
Company's former Chief Executive Officer (the "Exte") became the Chairman of the newly createtcM&roup; in connection with the
Executive's new compensation arrangement, the Hxeaexercised 0.5 million stock options, which eeettled by the Company for $9.2
million in cash.

Restricted Stock Units and Performance-based Stodknits

RSUs and PSUs are awards in the form of phantomestoa units, denominated in a hypothetical egemahumber of shares of IAC
common stock and with the value of each RSU and &8lal to the fair value of IAC common stock at da¢e of grant. RSUs and PSUs may
be settled in cash, stock or both, as determinatidfCommittee at the time of grant. Each RSU &d Brant is subject to service-based
vesting, where a specific period of continued emplent must pass before an award vests. PSUs alsmléperformancéased vesting, whe
certain performance targets set at the time oftgrarst be achieved before an award vests. The Qoymgaognizes expense for all RSUs and
PSUs for which vesting is considered probable.F®U grants, the expense is measured at the grenasiahe fair value of IAC common st



and expensed as
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non-cash compensation over the vesting term. Fbr gt8nts, the expense is measured at the granaddle fair value of IAC common stock
and expensed as non-cash compensation over thiegvesim if the performance targets are considpretdable of being achieved.

Nonvested RSUs and PSUs outstanding at Decemb@033,and changes during the year ended Decemb2033 are as follows:

RSUs PSUs

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Number Grant Date Number Grant Date

of shares Fair Value of shares® Fair Value

(Shares in thousands)

Nonvested at January 1, 2013 37C % 39.9¢ 1,27C  $ 29.3¢
Granted 552 42.3: — —
Vested (230 33.5( (53 29.3¢
Forfeited — — (895) 28.71
Nonvested at December 31, 2013 69z ¢ 43.5( 32z ¢ 31.27

(&) Included in the table are PSUs which vestaend of two or three years in varying amounteddimg upon certain performance conditions. The B®l¢ above
includes these awards at their maximum potentipbpia

The weighted average fair value of RSUs and PStistgd during the years ended December 31, 20182, &@d 2011 based on market
prices of IAC's common stock on the grant date $4%532 , $46.24 and $32.4tespectively. The total fair value of RSUs andJB%hat veste
during the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012@ht was $14.5 million , $139.0 million and $3&lion , respectively.

Equity Instruments Denominated in the Shares of Cdain Subsidiaries

IAC has granted phantom equity units and stockoogtin various operating subsidiaries to certaimivers of the subsidiaries’
management. These equity awards vest over a pefripehrs or upon the occurrence of certain preedréwents. In some cases, IAC has takel
a preferred interest in the subsidiary with a feakie equal to the subsidiary's acquisition priceunen funding a start-up business, its
investment cost, or a certain other fixed amounsdme cases, these preferred interests accrét@avid-in-kind dividends at a prescribed rate
of return. The value of the phantom equity unitd atock options is tied to the value of the comrstmtk of the entity, with the equity awards
management receives as a whole generally repragesmtmall minority of the total common stock ocansting. Accordingly, these interests
only have value to the extent the relevant busiapgseciates in value above the preferred intéiedtiding the accretion of dividends), our
investment cost or other fixed amount or, in theecaf stock options, the initial value utilizeddetermine the exercise price. These interests
can have significant value in the event of sigaificappreciation. The interests are ultimatelylesgtih IAC common stock or cash at the option
of IAC, with fair market value generally determiniegl negotiation or arbitration, at various datestigh 2019. The expense associated with
these equity awards is initially measured at falue at the grant date and is expensed as norcoagbensation over the vesting term. The
aggregate number of IAC common shares that wouledpaired to settle these interests at currentn@séid fair values, including vested and
unvested interests, at December 31, 2013 is 1l®m#hares, which is included in the calculatidmlituted earnings per share if the effect is
dilutive. The comparable amount at December 312292.0 million shares.

NOTE 15—SEGMENT INFORMATION

The overall concept that IAC employs in determinitisgoperating segments is to present the finamtiatmation in a manner consistent
with how the chief operating decision maker viets businesses, how the businesses are organitedegment management, and the foci
the businesses with regards to the types of sergicproducts offered or the target market. Opegasegments are combined for reporting
purposes if they meet certain aggregation critevfach principally relate to the similarity of the@conomic characteristics or, in the case of th
"Other" reportable segment, do not meet the quaivit thresholds that require presentation as aepaperating segments.
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Revenue:

Search & Applications
Match

Local

Media

Other

Inter-segment elimination

Total

Operating Income (Loss):
Search & Applications
Match

Local

Media

Other

Corporate

Total

Operating Income Before Amortization®:

Search & Applications
Match

Local

Media

Other

Corporate

Total

Years Ended December 31,

2013

2012

2011

(In thousands)

$ 1,604,95 % 1,465,79" $ 1,040,50
788,19° 713,44¢ 518,02°
277,46¢ 322,62 303,41¢
193,73« 164,82 70,16¢
159,49: 134,55! 128,06!

(852) (317) (737)

$ 3,02298 $ 2,800,93 $ 2,059,44.

Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)
$ 340,11 $ 305,64: % 204,00¢
245,55t 205,49:. 137,55!
(392) 21,73 25,53
(29,86() (51,776 (16,279
(8,837) (7,689 (3,896)
(120,38) (149,83 (149,16))
$ 426,20 $ 323,56( $ 197,76
Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

$ 367,67: $ 313,14t % 204,98(

262,15¢ 225,76" 156,27

13,02: 24,93: 28,28¢

(28,15 (44,82) (15,845

(6,13¢) (6,095) (2,499

(69,167 (67,957 (62,787

$ 539,39: $ 444,96: $ 308,40




Segment Asset® :
Search & Applications
Match

Local

Media

Other

Corporate

Total

77

December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)

409,11t % 355,15¢
325,93¢ 225,78:
25,52: 46,84
93,07 71,49¢
45,34( 28,84:
1,215,03. 978,65
2,114,020 $ 1,706,77!
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Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Depreciation:

Search & Applications $ 18,177 % 1499 % 25,48
Match 19,99: 16,33¢ 10,78(
Local 7,651 10,13¢ 10,38¢
Media 2,12¢ 1,39¢ 70%
Other 1,44 1,074 851
Corporate 9,51¢ 8,53¢ 8,51z

Total $ 58,90¢ $ 52,48, $ 56,71¢

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Capital expenditures:

Search & Applications $ 22,21 $ 15,32( % 8,69¢
Match 19,58° 19,85 17,44
Local 7,01¢ 6,66¢ 9,29¢
Media 1,38¢ 1,17¢ 90t
Other 2,12¢ 1,81¢ 97C
Corporate 27,98 6,36¢ 2,63¢

Total $ 80,31: $ 51,20: $ 39,95¢

(&) The Company's primary metric is Operating medefore Amortization, which is defined as opemgincome excluding, if applicable: (1) non-casmpensation
expense, (2) amortization and impairment of inthlegi, (3) goodwill impairment, (4) acquisition-redd contingent consideration fair value adjustments (5) one-
time items. The Company believes this measuregfuli® investors because it represents the catetelil operating results from IAC's segments, takitgaccount
depreciation, which it believes is an ongoing @adstoing business, but excluding the effects of atiner noneash expenses. Operating Income Before Amortizias
certain limitations in that it does not take intwaunt the impact to IAC's statement of operatmfnsertain expenses, including non-cash compensatid acquisition-
related accounting. IAC endeavors to compensatéhélimitations of the non-U.S. GAAP measure pnéset by providing the comparable U.S. GAAP measititie
equal or greater prominence, financial statememtsgped in accordance with U.S. GAAP, and desorngtdf the reconciling items, including quantifyisigch items, to
derive the non-U.S. GAAP measure.

(b) Consistent with the Company's primary metric (déset in (a) above), the Company excludes, if applie, goodwill and intangible assets from the meastisegmer
assets presented above.

Revenue by geography is based on where the cusisioeated. Geographic information about revematlanglived assets is presen
below:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Revenue
United States $ 2,081,48 % 1,966,38: $ 1,583,32;
All other countries 941,50: 834,55( 476,12:

Total $ 302298 $ 280093 $  2,05944.
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December 31,

2013 2012
(In thousands)

Long-lived assets (excluding goodwill and intangilel assets)

United States $ 27191t $ 251,37¢
All other countries 22,04¢ 19,13
Total $ 293,96: $ 270,51.

The following tables reconcile Operating IncomedefAmortization to operating income (loss) for @empany's reportable segments:

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Operating Acquisition-related
Income Non-Cash Contingent Operating
Before Compensation Amortization Consideration Fair Income
Amortization Expense of Intangibles Value Adjustments (Loss)
(In thousands)

Search & Applications $ 367,67: $ 3 $ (27,559 $ — $ 340,11
Match 262,15¢ (1,122 (15,139 (349 245,55t
Local 13,02: — (13,41%) — (392
Media (28,15 (639) (1,070 — (29,86()
Other (6,13¢) (33 (2,66¢6) — (8,837)
Corporate (69,167 (51,219 — — (120,38)
Total $ 539,39 $ (53,00 $  (59,84) $ (349 $ 426,20

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Operating

Income Non-Cash Operating

Before Compensation Amortization Income

Amortization Expense of Intangibles (Loss)

(In thousands)

Search & Applications $ 313,14t % (34) $ (7,46¢) $ 305,64«
Match 225,76! (2,819 (17,45%) 205,49;
Local 24,93: — (3,199 21,73t
Media (44,82 (770) (6,179 (51,77¢)
Other (6,095) (122) (1,477 (7,689
Corporate (67,959 (81,887 — (149,839
Total $ 444,96: $ (85,62 $ (35,77) $ 323,56¢
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Year Ended December 31, 2011

Operating

Income Non-Cash Operating

Before Compensation Amortization Income

Amortization Expense of Intangibles (Loss)

(In thousands)

$ 204,98( $ 20z $ (1,176 $ 204,00t
156,27 (1,647) (17,07 137,55!
28,28« — (2,75)) 25,53
(15,84 (427) ©) (16,275
(2,499 (347) (1,050 (3,896)
(62,787 (86,374 — (149,16)
$ 308,40° $ (88,589 $ (22,05) $ 197,76

The following tables reconcile segment assetsttl &ssets:

Search & Applications
Match

Local

Media

Other

Corporate?

Total

Search & Applications
Match

Local

Media

Other

Corporate®

Total

December 31, 2013

Indefinite-Lived

Definite-Lived

Segment Assets Goodwill Intangible Assets Intangible Assets Total Assets
(In thousands)
$ 409,11¢ 738,06: $ 195,80 $ 40,55( 1,383,53:
325,93¢ 751,23. 162,34 5,40¢ 1,244,92|
25,52; 131,87 — 14,02% 171,42:
93,07 15,59( 1,80( 944 111,40¢
45,34( 38,56 16,38( 8,081 108,36¢
1,215,03. — — — 1,215,03.
$ 2,114,02! 1,675,32. $ 376,32¢ % 69,00 4,234,68:
December 31, 2012
Indefinite-Lived Definite-Lived
Segment Assets Goodwill Intangible Assets Intangible Assets Total Assets
(In thousands)
$ 355,15¢ 723,65( $ 197,30 $ 64,45 1,340,57!
225,78: 683,93! 158,09¢ 5,612 1,073,42
46,84 143,78 5,382 21,10¢ 217,11(
71,49¢ 15,59( 1,80( 2,02( 90,90¢
28,84: 49,19; 16,38( 10,745 105, 16¢
978,65: — — — 978,65:
$ 1,706,77! 1,616,15. $ 378,96: $ 103,94( 3,805,82!

(c) Corporate assets consist primarily of cash and egslvalents, marketable securities and IAC's headgrs building

NOTE 16—COMMITMENTS

The Company leases land, office space, data ctauiéities and equipment used in connection wishojperations under various operating
leases, many of which contain escalation clauses.Jompany is also committed to pay a portion efrtated operating expenses under a
center lease agreement. These operating expermsestancluded in the table below.
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Future minimum payments under operating lease agrets are as follows:

Years Ending December 31, (In thousands)
2014 $ 26,29¢
2015 26,21:
2016 25,42¢
2017 22,35¢
2018 20,04¢
Thereafter 197,84t
Total $ 318,18:

Expenses charged to operations under these agresearer$36.7 million , $30.6 million and $31.3 noitl for the years ended
December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The Company's most significant operating leasesisva@nty-seven years land lease for IAC's headepgdstilding in New York City and
approximates 57% of the future minimum paymentsuhder all operating lease agreements in the tdizge.

The Company also has funding commitments that cpotdntially require its performance in the evend@mands by third parties or
contingent events as follows:

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

Total
Less Than 1-3 Amounts
1 Year Years Committed
(In thousands)
Purchase obligations $ 8,63 % 3,00¢ % 11,54
Letters of credit and surety bonds 2,937 69 3,00¢
Total commercial commitments $ 11,47 % 3,07¢ $ 14,54¢

The purchase obligations primarily include advé@rgscommitments, which commitments are reducibleeominable such that these
commitments can never exceed associated revenaen@aningful amount. Purchase obligations alsademinimum payments due under
telecommunication contracts related to data trassion lines. The letters of credit support the Canys casualty insurance program.

NOTE 17—CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of business, the Compamygaarty to various lawsuits. The Company estaldisheerves for specific legal matters
when it determines that the likelihood of an unfae outcome is probable and the loss is reaspmastimable. Management has also
identified certain other legal matters where wedwel an unfavorable outcome is not probable aretetbre, no reserve is established. Althc
management currently believes that resolving clagainst us, including claims where an unfavorabkeome is reasonably possible, will not
have a material impact on the liquidity, result®pérations, or financial condition of the Compatingse matters are subject to inherent
uncertainties and management's view of these mattay change in the future. The Company also etedugher contingent matters, includ
income and non-income tax contingencies, to aghed#elihood of an unfavorable outcome and estmiaxtent of potential loss. It is
possible that an unfavorable outcome of one or rabtkese lawsuits or other contingencies coulcchamaterial impact on the liquidity,
results of operations, or financial condition of tBompany. See Note 4 for additional informatidatesl to income tax contingencies.

NOTE 18—SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Transactions f@013

The consideration for the acquisition of Twoo onuly 4, 2013 includes a contingent consideraticangement, which is described in
Note 5 and Note ¢
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Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Transactionsf@011
The consideration for the acquisition of OkCupidJamuary 20, 2011 includes a contingent consideratirangement.

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
(In thousands)

Cash paid (received) during the year for:

Interest $ 28,708 $ 521 % 5,12¢
Income tax payments 112,08 43,31¢ 42,09¢
Income tax refunds (17,687 (8,187 (3,609

NOTE 19—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Each of the Company and Expedia has a 50% owneirgei@st in an aircraft that may be used by bothganies. In 2013, the Company
and Expedia completed the purchase of an additainahft in which each company has a 50% ownerisitgyest. Members of both aircraft's
flight crew are employed by an entity in which eaéthe Company and Expedia has a 50% ownerstepest. The Company and Expedia
have agreed to share costs relating to flight arempensation and benefits pro-rata according th eampany's respective usage of the
aircrafts, for which they are separately billedtbg entity described above. The Company and Expediaclated parties since they are under
common control, given that Mr. Diller serves as i@han and Senior Executive of both IAC and ExpeBia. the years ended December 31,
2013, 2012 and 2011, total payments made teetitisy by the Company were immaterial.

NOTE 20—BENEFIT PLANS

IAC has a retirement savings plan in the UnitedeStéhat qualifies under Section 401(k) of therimié Revenue Code. Participating
employees may contribute up to 50% of their preg@pnings, but not more than statutory limits. Ié@htributes fifty cents for each dollar a
participant contributes in this plan, with a maximmuaontribution of 3% of a participant's eligibleriags. Matching contributions for the plan
for the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 &1d &re $6.5 million , $6.5 million and $5.0 mitiig respectively. Matching contributions
are invested in the same manner as each particparttintary contributions in the investment opigmovided under the plan. Investment
options in the plan include IAC common stock, beitlmer participant nor matching contributions arquired to be invested in IAC common
stock.

IAC also has or participates in various benefinplgrincipally defined contribution plans, for itéernational employees. IAC's

contributions for these plans for the years endedelmber 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 are $2.9 mill&h3 million and $1.4 million ,
respectively. The increase in contributions in 2&1@rimarily related to Meetic, consolidated betimy September 1, 2011.
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NOTE 21—QUARTERLY RESULTS (UNAUDITED)

Quarter
Quarter Ended Quarter Ended Ended Quarter Ended
March 31 @ June 30 September 30 December 31

(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Revenue $ 742,24¢ 3 799,41 % 756,87 $ 724.,45!
Cost of revenue 255,84 272,82. 248,85t 222,57
Operating income 84,55 106,69¢ 122,00« 112,95:.
Earnings from continuing operations 52,70¢ 58,54( 91,72 78,82¢
(Loss) earnings from discontinued operations, hé&bo (944) (1,06%) 3,91« 24
Net earnings 51,76¢ 57,47 95,63t 78,85!
Net earnings attributable to IAC shareholders 53,63: 58,29( 96,94( 76,91°
Per share information attributable to IAC shareholders:

Basic earnings per share from continuing operatfons $ 065 $ 071 $ 112z $ 0.9:
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operesi® $ 0.6z $ 0.6¢ $ 1.0¢ $ 0.8¢
Basic earnings per shdfe $ 0.6¢ % 0.7¢ $ 1.17  $ 0.9z
Diluted earnings per shafe $ 0.61 % 0.67 $ 1.1z $ 0.8¢

Quarter
Quarter Ended Quarter Ended Ended Quarter Ended
March 31 @ June 30@® September 307 December 31
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Revenue $ 640,60( $ 680,61: $ 714,47C $ 765,25:
Cost of revenue 223,30( 237,30 262,27" 267,91¢
Operating income 62,76 97,47¢ 78,03 85,29
Earnings from continuing operations 31,15 48,10: 46,18¢ 44,40¢
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, fiéto 3,68¢ (4,64 (5,629 (2,470
Net earnings 34,831 43,46( 40,56 41,93¢
Net earnings attributable to IAC shareholders 34,47¢ 43,33: 40,71° 40,73¢
Per share information attributable to IAC shareholders:

Basic earnings per share from continuing operatfons $ 037 $ 0.5¢ $ 05z $ 0.4¢
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operei® $ 032 $ 05z $ 04¢ $ 0.4¢
Basic earnings per shdfe $ 04z % 05C $ 0.4¢ % 0.4¢
Diluted earnings per shafe $ 03 $ 047 $ 04: $ 0.42
(@) During the second quarter of 2013, certaireasps were reclassified between cost of revenlliegsand marketing expense, general and admitigér@xpense and

product development expense. Accordingly, coseeénue presented above for periods prior to thensequarter of 2013 differs from the amounts reéiddn the
Company’s quarterly reports on Form 10-Q for thst fjuarter of 2013 and the second and third grsaofe2012.

(b) The second quarter of 2012 includes an afterbn-cash charge of $16.2 million related tortheneasurement of the carrying value of our equigghod investment in
News_Beast to fair value in connection with ourwasition of a controlling interest in June 20.

(c) Quarterly per share amounts may not add to théetennual per share amount because of differéndbe average common shares outstanding duriry geriod
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NOTE 22—GUARANTOR AND NON-GUARANTOR FINANCIAL INFOR MATION

The 2013 and 2012 Senior Notes are unconditiomglfranteed, jointly and severally, by certain ddinesibsidiaries which are 100%
owned by the Company. The following tables presentiensed consolidating financial information at&aber 31, 2013 and December 31,
2012 and for the years ended December 31, 20182 &0d 2011 for: IAC, on a stand-alone basis; tmhined guarantor subsidiaries of IAC;
the combined non-guarantor subsidiaries of IAC; @ on a consolidated basis.

Balance sheet at December 31, 2013:

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
IAC Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Total Eliminations  IAC Consolidated
(In thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 782,02 $ — 3 318,42. $ — $ 1,100,44
Marketable securities 1,007 — 4,997 — 6,004
Accounts receivable, net 38 124,69: 82,67 — 207,40¢
Other current assets 45,11 73,34 43,89( (814) 161,53(
Intercompany receivables — 556,37( 860,08: (1,416,45) —
Property and equipment, net 5,31¢ 220,74 67,90¢ — 293,96
Goodwill — 1,179,31 496,00t — 1,675,32.
Intangible assets, net — 300,84! 144,49: — 445,33t
Investment in subsidiaries 3,833,75. 599,59! — (4,433,34)) —
Other non-current assets 83,20" 15,48¢ 252,61: (6,629 344,67!
Total assets $ 4,75045 $ 3,070,390 $ 2,271,088 $ (5857,24) $ 4,234,68
Accounts payable, trade $ 4,31C % 47,09¢ $ 26,248 $ — 3 77,65¢
Other current liabilities 41,62 248,411 219,20t — 509,24
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 1,000,00! 80,00( — — 1,080,00!
Income taxes payable 383,92¢ 6,76¢ 25,69( — 416,38
Intercompany liabilities 1,416,45. — — (1,416,45) —
Other long-term liabilities 217,40: 96,11+ 73,06¢ (7,449 379,14:
Redeemable noncontrolling interests — — 42,86: — 42,86:
IAC shareholders' equity 1,686,73 2,591,99 1,841,344 (4,433,34)) 1,686,73
Noncontrolling interests — — 42,66 — 42,66
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 475045 §$ 307039 $ 227108 §$ (5857,24) $§  4,234,68
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Balance sheet at December 31, 2012:

Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable securities
Accounts receivable, net
Other current assets
Intercompany receivables
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill

Intangible assets, net
Investment in subsidiaries
Other non-current assets

Total assets

Accounts payable, trade

Other current liabilities

Long-term debt, net of current maturities
Income taxes payable

Intercompany liabilities

Other long-term liabilities

Redeemable noncontrolling interests
IAC shareholders' equity

Noncontrolling interests

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity

IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

Guarantor

Non-Guarantor

ed)

IAC Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Total Eliminations  |IAC Consolidated

(In thousands)
$ 501,07 $ — % 248,90: $ — % 749,97
20,60« — — — 20,60«
43 142,62 87,16( — 229,83(
58,45: 53,72( 45,20« (1,03%) 156,33¢
— 482,92 10,276,17 (10,759,10) —
4,11¢ 194,51! 71,88 — 270,51.
— 1,190,19 425,95! — 1,616,15
— 340,63: 142,27: — 482,90
12,913,69 611,85: — (13,525,54) —
153,15! 16,50¢ 109,91. (68) 279,50¢
$ 13,651,13 $ 3,032,97 $ 11,407,46 $ (24,285,75) $ 3,805,82!
$ 4,366 $ 64,88¢ $ 29,06( $ — % 98,31«
74,21« 216,01( 238,00: (1,652) 526,57!
500,00( 80,00( — — 580,00(
440,11( 26,38¢ 13,44¢ — 479,94!
10,759,10 — — (10,759,10) —
217,61 91,11¢ 45,95( 547 355,23(
— 1,38¢ 56,73¢ — 58,12¢
1,655,72i 2,553,18 10,972,36 (13,525,54) 1,655,72i
— — 51,90 — 51,90
$ 13,651,13 $ 3,032,971 $ 11,407,46 $ (24,285,75) $ 3,805,82
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Statement of operations for the year ended Decemb@d, 2013:

Revenue $
Costs and expenses:

Cost of revenue (exclusive of
depreciation shown separately below

Selling and marketing expense
General and administrative expense
Product development expense
Depreciation

Amortization of intangibles

Total costs and expenses

Operating (loss) income

Equity in earnings (losses) of
unconsolidated affiliates

Interest expense
Other (expense) income, net

Earnings from continuing operations before
income taxes

Income tax benefit (provision)

Earnings from continuing operations

Earnings (losses) from discontinued
operations, net of tax

Net earnings

Net loss attributable to noncontrolling
interests

Net earnings attributable to IAC
shareholders $

Comprehensive income attributable to
IAC shareholders

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
IAC Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Total Eliminations IAC Consolidated
(In thousands)

— % 2,082,25 % 944,84 $ (4,115 $ 3,022,98
2,45¢ 579,41: 421,09 (2,860) 1,000,10.
2,56: 707,52¢ 255,17! (1,139 964,13

97,02t 155,56( 120,00° (122) 372,47(
4,68t 95,07 41,57: — 141,33(
1,38¢ 37,47¢ 20,047 — 58,90¢

— 39,47: 20,37( — 59,84:

108,11! 1,614,52 878,26« (4,115 2,596,78
(108,11) 467,73! 66,58 — 426,20
439,92! 68,50( (303 (514,73) (6,615
(29,41)) (3,979 (200) — (33,59¢)
(35,33) (36,009 101,64! — 30,30¢
267,06: 496,25 167,72¢ (514,73) 416,30:
16,79¢ (154,910 3,612 — (134,507
283,85¢ 341,34: 171,33 (514,73) 281,79¢
1,92¢ — (39) 3¢ 1,92¢
285,78« 341,34: 171,29¢ (514,69 283,72!
— 411 1,64¢ — 2,05¢
285,78 $ 341,75. $ 172,94« $ (514,699 $ 285,78:
304,90 $ 342,61t $ 183,64¢ $ (526,26 $ 304,90
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Statement of operations for the year ended Decemb@d, 2012:

Revenue $
Costs and expenses:

Cost of revenue (exclusive of
depreciation shown separately below

Selling and marketing expense
General and administrative expense
Product development expense
Depreciation

Amortization of intangibles

Total costs and expenses

Operating (loss) income

Equity in earnings (losses) of
unconsolidated affiliates

Interest expense
Other (expense) income, net

Earnings from continuing operations before
income taxes

Income tax benefit (provision)

Earnings from continuing operations

(Loss) earnings from discontinued
operations, net of tax

Net earnings

Net loss (earnings) attributable to
noncontrolling interests

Net earnings attributable to IAC
shareholders $

Comprehensive income attributable to
IAC shareholders

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
IAC Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Total Eliminations IAC Consolidated
(In thousands)

— % 1,959,48! $ 847,79¢ $ (6,35%) $ 2,800,93
5,19¢ 582,34 408,16( (4,90%) 990,79
4,081 663,26¢ 228,66: (1,465 894,54!

121,91¢ 147,21¢ 116,93 17 386,08t
5,611 78,01¢ 34,05: — 117,68
832 35,15¢ 16,49( — 52,48:

— 10,88: 24,89( — 35,77:
137,63 1,516,89. 829,18t (6,357%) 2,477,36!
(137,63) 442 59! 18,61( — 323,56¢
309,63¢ 37,83: (22,549 (350,26Y) (25,345
(1,83%) (4,179 (140) — (6,149
(82,900 (3,889 83,77: — (3,017
87,26 472,371 79,69: (350,26%) 289,06:
81,05( (148,167 (52,109 — (119,219
168,31 324,20¢ 27,58¢ (350,269) 169,84
(9,05)) — 84z (842) (9,05))
159,26t 324,20¢ 28,43: (351,110 160,79t

— 20€ (1,736 — (1,530)

159,26 $ 324,41 $ 26,69 $ (351,11 % 159,26t
139,54( $ 325,18t $ 26,81¢ $ (352,000 $ 139,54(
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Statement of operations for the year ended Decemb@d, 2011:

Revenue $
Costs and expenses:

Cost of revenue (exclusive of
depreciation shown separately below

Selling and marketing expense
General and administrative expense
Product development expense
Depreciation

Amortization of intangibles

Total costs and expenses

Operating (loss) income

Equity in earnings (losses) of
unconsolidated affiliates

Interest expense
Other (expense) income, net

(Loss) earnings from continuing operations
before income taxes

Income tax benefit (provision)

Earnings from continuing operations

(Loss) earnings from discontinued
operations, net of tax

Net earnings

Net loss attributable to noncontrolling
interests

Net earnings attributable to IAC
shareholders $

Comprehensive income attributable to
IAC shareholders

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
IAC Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Total Eliminations IAC Consolidated
(In thousands)

41z $ 1,539,28, $ 522,49t $ 2,747 $ 2,059,44.
4,76: 485,37t 264,90: (1,159 753,88
4,38t 496,65 117,77¢ (1,615 617,19¢
120,90t 133,26: 66,86¢ 22 321,06:
7,29¢ 67,94 15,51: — 90,75
79¢ 44,76 11,157 — 56,71¢

— 3,59: 18,46« — 22,05%
138,15 1,231,59 494,67¢ (2,74%) 1,861,68.
(137,74) 307,68! 27,81¢ — 197,76:
696,25( 29,60" (32,866 (729,29) (36,300)
(1,119 (4,259 (60) — (5,430
(732,589 3,18¢ 744,89 — 15,49(
(175,190 336,21 739,78 (729,29)) 171,52:
353,41! (128,026 (221,34 — 4,047
178,22! 208,19: 518,44. (729,29) 175,56¢
(3,997) — 4,877 (4,877) (3,997)
174,23: 208,19: 523,31¢ (734,169 171,57
— 60 2,59¢ — 2,65¢
174,23. $ 208,25. $ 525,91f $ (734,169 $ 174,23:
144,24 $ 208,60: $ 481,620 $ (690,22 $ 144,24
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended Decemb@t, 2013:

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
IAC Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Total Eliminations IAC Consolidated

Net cash (used in) provided by operating

(In thousands)

activities attributable to continuing operations (95,08) $ 520,25 $ (14,219 $ — % 410,96:
Cash flows from investing activities attributable
to continuing operations:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired — (6,13¢) (34,557) — (40,690
Capital expenditures (1,389 (63,229 (15,700 — (80,31)
Proceeds from maturities and sales of markete
debt securities 12,50: — — — 12,50:
Proceeds from sales of long-term investments 7,83¢ 50,85( 11,27¢ — 69,96¢
Purchases of long-term investments (17,819 — (33,26¢6) — (51,080
Other, net — (1,725 11,31¢ — 9,59/
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activitie
attributable to continuing operations 1,14( (20,23 (60,920 — (80,017
Cash flows from financing activities attributable
to continuing operations:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 500,00 — — — 500,00(
Principal payments on long-term debt (15,849 — — — (15,849
Purchase of treasury stock (264,21 — — — (264,21,
Dividends (79,189 — — — (79,189
Issuance of common stock, net of withholding
taxes (5,077) — — — (5,077%)
Excess tax benefits from stock-based awards 32,08: — 81C — 32,89
Purchase of noncontrolling interests — — (67,947 — (67,947
Funds transferred to escrow for Meetic tender
offer — — (71,519 — (71,51
Debt issuance costs (7,399 — — — (7,399
Intercompany 216,35¢ (498,81() 282,45: — —
Other, net — (1,225 (2,567) — (3,78%)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities attributable to continuing operations 376,71 (500,03Y 141,241 — 17,92:
Total cash provided by (used in) continuing
operations 282,77t @an 66,107 — 348,86t
Total cash used in discontinued operations (1,829 — (48) — (1,87%)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and ca
equivalents — 17 3,461 — 3,47¢
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 280,94 — 69,52( — 350,46
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of perio 501,07! — 248,90: — 749,97
782,02. $ — 8 318,42; $ — $ 1,100,44

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended Decemb@t, 2012:

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
IAC Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Total Eliminations  |IAC Consolidated
(In thousands)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating
activities attributable to continuing operations $ (116,35) $ 454,04¢ $ 16,83: $ — 3 354,52
Cash flows from investing activities attributable
to continuing operations:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired (35,159 (338,829 (37,047 — (411,03
Capital expenditures (3,969 (29,55() (17,68 — (51,209
Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketz
debt securities 195,50: — — — 195,50:
Purchases of marketable debt securities (53,957 — — — (53,957
Proceeds from sales of long-term investments 14,19« — — — 14,19«
Purchases of long-term investments (27,187 (729 (8,187) — (36,099
Other, net (357) 117 (9,267) — (9,507)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activitie
attributable to continuing operations 89,07" (368,98¢) (72,179 — (352,089
Cash flows from financing activities attributable
to continuing operations:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 500,00 — — — 500,00(
Purchase of treasury stock (691,83() — — — (691,83()
Dividends (68,167) — — — (68,167)
Issuance of common stock, net of withholding
taxes 262,84: — — — 262,84:
Excess tax benefits from stock-based awards 52,20¢ 4,892 — — 57,10
Purchase of noncontrolling interests (1,936 — (2,959 — (4,897)
Debt issuance costs (12,009 — — — (11,009
Intercompany (55,020) (89,939 144,95. — —
Other, net — — 244 — 244
Net cash (used in) provided by financing
activities attributable to continuing operations (22,900 (85,047 142,24: — 44,30:
Total cash (used in) provided by continuing
operations (40,17¢) 18 86,89¢ — 46,74(
Total cash (used in) provided by discontinued
operations (3,979 — 49¢ — (3,472)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents — (18 2,57¢ — 2,55¢
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents (44,14 — 89,97: — 45,824
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period  545,22: — 158,93: — 704,15:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 50107 $ — 3 248,90. $ — $ 749,97
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended Decemb@t, 2011:

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
IAC Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Total Eliminations  |IAC Consolidated
(In thousands)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating
activities attributable to continuing operations $ (75,300 $ 366,14: $ 8154: $ — 372,38t
Cash flows from investing activities attributable
to continuing operations:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired — (80,999 (197,47 — (278,469
Capital expenditures (798 (29,05) (10,109 — (39,959
Proceeds from maturities and sales of markete
debt securities 267,63! — 317,30( — 584,93!
Purchases of marketable debt securities (74,24() — (129,730 — (203,97()
Proceeds from sales of long-term investments 10,21¢ — 5,00( — 15,21
Purchases of long-term investments (35,267 (51,009) (3,979 — (90,245
Other, net — 1,88¢ (14,589 — (12,69))
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activitie
attributable to continuing operations 167,54t (159,17) (33,569) — (25,18¢)
Cash flows from financing activities attributable
to continuing operations:
Purchase of treasury stock (507,769 — — — (507,76%)
Dividends (20,66¢) — — — (20,66%)
Issuance of common stock, net of withholding
taxes 132,78! — — — 132,78
Excess tax benefits from stock-based awards 22,16¢ — — — 22,16¢
Purchase of noncontrolling interests (3,849 — — — (3,847
Intercompany 824,19: (206,86¢) (617,329 — —
Other, net — (249 (4,659 — (4,909¢)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities attributable to continuing operations 456,86 (207,11Y (621,98 — (372,23)
Total cash provided by (used in) continuing
operations 549,11 (142 (574,009 — (25,039
Total cash used in discontinued operations (7,166 — (1,257) — (8,41%)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents 3,271 142 (7,909 — (4,49¢)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 545,22 — (583,169 — (37,946
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period — — 742,09¢ — 742,09¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 545220 % — $ 158,93. $ — 3 704,15!
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Iltem 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accotemts on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of the Compg's Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company monitors and evaluates on an ongoisig ia disclosure controls and procedures in ai@é@nprove their overall
effectiveness. In the course of these evaluatibesCompany modifies and refines its internal psses as conditions warrant.

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) of the Exchange BT, management, including the Chairman and Senkachtive and the Chief
Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation, ashefénd of the period covered by this report, ofatfiectiveness of the Company's disclosure
controls and procedures as defined in Exchangdralt= 13a-15(e). Based on this evaluation, the @Gfairand Senior Executive and the Chief
Financial Officer concluded that the Company'sldsare controls and procedures were effective dseoénd of the period covered by this
report.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finangal Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for a@stdby and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting (as defined
in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) for ttmpany. The Company's internal control over finah@porting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the réjabflfinancial reporting and the preparation fancial statements for external purposes in
accordance with accounting principles generallyepted in the United States. Management assessedfélciveness of the Company's intel
control over financial reporting as of December&113. In making this assessment, our managemedtthe criteria for effective internal
control over financial reporting described in "Imal Control—ntegrated Framework" issued by the Committee @fiSpring Organizations
the Treadway Commission in 1992. Based on thissagsent, management has determined that, as of Dec&t, 2013, the Company's
internal control over financial reporting is effet The effectiveness of our internal control ofreancial reporting as of December 31, 2013
has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independsgistered public accounting firm, as stateth@ir attestation report, included herein.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdeanaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company monitors and evaluates on an ongoisig fia internal control over financial reportingarder to improve its overall
effectiveness. In the course of these evaluatiblesCompany modifies and refines its internal psses as conditions warrant. As required by
Rule 13a-15(d), IAC management, including the Ghair and Senior Executive and the Chief Financiéice, also conducted an evaluation
of the Company's internal control over financigoging to determine whether any changes occureithgl the quarter ended December 31,
2013 that have materially affected, or are readgritdely to materially affect, the Company's imet control over financial reporting. Basec
that evaluation, there has be no such change dtirenguarter ended December 31, 2013.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of
IAC/InterActiveCorp

We have audited IAC/InterActiveCorp's internal gohbver financial reporting as of December 31,20dased on criteria established in
Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued byG@oenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TweadCommission (1992 framework)
(the COSO criteria). IAC/InterActiveCorp's managens responsible for maintaining effective intdroantrol over financial reporting, and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of interoatrol over financial reporting included in thecampanying Management's Report on Inte
Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsipiig to express an opinion on the company's intemwtrol over financial reporting based
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stedsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversighti@d&/nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is:. audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness etasting and evaluating the design and operatifegéfeness of internal control based on the
assessed risk, and performing such other procedsre®& considered necessary in the circumstancefeliéve that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed to provide reasonablesasuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegeinerally accepted accounting princip
A company's internal control over financial repogtincludes those policies and procedures that€ftpin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®ttbmpany are being made only in accordance witibaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabsurance regarding prevention or timely detecfainauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the company's assets that could hawaterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaubject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, IAC/InterActiveCorp maintained, & material respects, effective internal contreéofinancial reporting as of
December 31, 2013, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
consolidated balance sheet of IAC/InterActiveCangd aubsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 20itRthee related consolidated statements
of operations, comprehensive income, shareholdgsty and cash flows for each of the three yaathé period ended December 31, 2013
our report dated February 26, 2014 expressed amalifigd opinion thereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

New York, New York
February 26, 2014

93




Table of Contents

Iltem 9B. Other Information
Not applicable.
PART IlI

The information required by Part Il (Items 10, 12, 13 and 14) has been incorporated herein leyaete to IAC's definitive Proxy
Statement to be used in connection with its 201A4uah Meeting of Stockholders, or the 2014 ProxyeSteent, as set forth below, in
accordance with General Instruction G(3) of ForrKL0

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpmate Governance

The information required by Items 401 and 405 ofifation S-K relating to directors and executivioafrs of IAC and their compliance
with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act is set fantthe sections entitled "Information Concerninigedtor Nominees" and "Information
Concerning IAC Executive Officers Who Are Not Ditexs” and "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership R&pgrCompliance," respectively, in
the 2014 Proxy Statement and is incorporated héneneference. The information required by Iltem 40&egulation S-K relating to IAC's
Code of Ethics is set forth under the caption "Dipsion of IAC Businesses-Additional Information-@® of Ethics" of this annual report and is
incorporated herein by reference. The informatiguired by subsections (c)(3), (d)(4) and (d)(Siten 407 of Regulation S-K is set forth in
the sections entitled "Corporate Governance" aret"Board and Board Committees" in the 2014 Progje®tent and is incorporated hereir
reference.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 402 of Regulati®K relating to executive and director compensat®set forth in the sections entit
"Executive Compensation" and "Director Compensdtiorthe 2014 Proxy Statement and is incorporaeein by reference. The information
required by subsections (e)(4) and (e)(5) of Ité¥ df Regulation S-K relating to certain compersatommittee matters is set forth in the
sections entitled "The Board and Board Committe&gmpensation Committee Report” and "Compensaiommittee Interlocks and Insider
Participation” in the 2014 Proxy Statement anah@®iporated herein by reference; provided, thatrtfimation set forth in the section entitl
"Compensation Committee Report" shall be deematghed herein and shall not be deemed incorpotatedference into any filing under t
Securities Act or the Exchange Act.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficihOwners and Management and Related Stockholder Métrs

The information regarding ownership of IAC commadwock and Class B common stock required by Itema@fRegulation S-K and
securities authorized for issuance under IAC'sousriequity compensation plans required by Item @0df( Regulation S-K is set forth in the
sections entitled "Security Ownership of Certaim8&ficial Owners and Management" and "Equity Comptos Plan Information,”
respectively, in the 2014 Proxy Statement anddenporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Traresctions, and Director Independence

Information regarding certain relationships anated transactions involving IAC required by Iten#4 Regulation S-K and director
independence required by Item 407(a) of Regulaighis set forth in the sections entitled "CertRiglationships and Related Person
Transactions" and "Corporate Governance," respalgtiin the 2014 Proxy Statement and is incorparagrein by reference.
Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information required by Item 9(e) of Schedule 1#&farding the fees and services of IAC's indepenagistered public accounting firm
and the preapproval policies and procedures applicable toisesvwrovided to IAC by such firm is set forth hretsections entitled "Fees Pai

Our Independent Registered Public Accounting Fiamd "Audit and Non-Audit Services PAgproval Policy," respectively, in the 2014 Pr¢
Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedes
(a) List of documentsfiled as part of this Report:
(1) Consolidated Financial Statements of IAC
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfiiimm: Ernst & Young LLP.
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 20d.2012.
Consolidated Statement of Operations for the YEaded December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incomthéolyears Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.
Consolidated Statement of Shareholders' Equityhieryears Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the YEaded December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule 6AC

Schedule
Number

I Valuation and Qualifying Accounts.

All other financial statements and schedules rst¢di have been omitted since the required infoonasi either included in the
Consolidated Financial Statements or the notegthgeis not applicable or is not required.
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(3) Exhibits

The documents set forth below, numbered in accalaiith Item 601 of Regulation S-K, are filed heitbwincorporated herein by
reference to the location indicated or furnishegkhith.

Exhibit
No. Description Location
2.1 Separation and Distribution Agreement, dated asugfust 20, Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current Reporfomm 8-
2008, by and among the Registrant, HSN, Inc., K, filed on August 22, 2008.
Interval Leisure Group, Inc., Ticketmaster and Teem, Inc.
3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of IAC/IntetAreCorp. Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant's Registration Staeton
Form 8-A/A, filed on August 12, 2005.

3.2 Certificate of Amendment of the Restated Certificat Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant's Current Report omnf-8-
Incorporation of IAC/InterActiveCorp. K, filed on August 22, 2008.

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of IAC/InterActiveCorp Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant's Current Report omnf-8-

K, filed on December 6, 2010.

4.1 Indenture for 4.75% Senior Notes due 2022, datexf Beecember  Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Annual Report omnfrd 0-
21, 2012, among IAC/InterActiveCorp, the Guarantaamed K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012.
therein and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. rastée.

4.2 Supplemental Indenture for 4.75% Senior Notes d#22dated as Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant's Registration Staeton
of April 11, 2013, among IAC/InterActiveCorp, thei&antors Form S-4, filed on May 3, 2013.
named therein and Computershare Trust Company, BsAlrustee.

4.2  Supplemental Indenture for 4.75% Senior Notes d#22dated as Exhibit 4.4 to the Registrant's Registration Staeton
of May 30, 2013, among IAC/InterActiveCorp, the @rators Form S-4, as amended, filed on June 5, 2013.
named therein and Computershare Trust Company, BsAlrustee.

4.4 Indenture for 4.875% Senior Notes due 2018, dateaf Alovember Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Registration Staeton
15, 2013, among IAC/InterActiveCorp, the Guarantmamed Form S-4, filed on December 13, 2013.
therein and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. rasté&e.

4.5 In accordance with Item 601(b)(4)(iii)(A) of Regtitn S-K,
certain instruments relating to long-term obligati®f the
Registrant have been omitted but will be furnisteethe
Commission upon request.

10.1 Amended and Restated Governance Agreement, dated as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Repart o
August 9, 2005, by and between the Registrant awdyBiller. Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30
2005.
10.z Letter Agreement, dated as of December 1, 201@nyamong the Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current ReporEomm 8-
Registrant, Liberty Media Corporation, Liberty U$ldings, LLC K, filed on December 6, 2010.
and Barry Diller.
10.2 Letter Agreement, dated as of December 1, 201@nybetween  Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Current ReporEFomm 8-
the Registrant and Barry Diller. K, filed on December 6, 2010.
10.4 Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of August 20, 26P&nd among Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Current Reporfomm 8-
the Registrant, Ticketmaster, Interval Leisure @rdac., HSN, Inc. K, filed on August 22, 2008.
and Tree.com, Inc.
10.E  IAC/InterActiveCorp 2013 Stock and Annual Incent®ian.(1) Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Reporform
10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2013.
10.€ Form of Terms and Conditions of Stock Options urtber
IAC/InterActiveCorp 2013 Stock and Annual IncentRian.(1)(2)
10.7 Form of Terms and Conditions of Restricted StockdJunder the
IAC/InterActiveCorp 2013 Stock and Annual IncentRian.(1)(2)
10.¢ IAC/InterActiveCorp 2008 Stock and Annual Incent®ian.(1) Annex F to the Registrant's Definitive Proxy Stageit
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10.€

10.1(

10.11

10.1Z

10.1:

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.15

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2¢

10.21

10.2:

10.2¢

10.2¢

211
23.1
31.1

31.z

Form of Terms and Conditions of Stock Options urtbter

IAC/InterActiveCorp 2008 Stock and Annual IncentRian.(1)

Form of Terms and Conditions of Restricted StockdJunder the
IAC/InterActiveCorp 2008 Stock and Annual IncentRian.(1)

IAC/InterActiveCorp 2005 Stock and Annual IncentRian.(1)

Form of Terms and Conditions of Stock Options uritler

IAC/InterActiveCorp 2005 Stock and Annual IncentRian.(1)
Summary of Non-Employee Director Compensation Ageanents.

(1)

2011 IAC/InterActiveCorp Deferred Compensation FtanNon-

Employee Directors.(1)

Stock Option Agreement between the Registrant ardyBiller,

dated as of June 7, 2005.(1)

Match.com, Inc. Equity Program.(1)

Employment Agreement between Gregory R. Blatt &ed t

Registrant, dated as of December 22, 2010.(1)

Summary of Key Terms of Gregory R. Blatt's Employine

Arrangements.(1)

Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreembmne e
Victor A. Kaufman and the Registrant, dated as afdéh 15, 2012.

1)

Employment Agreement between Jeffrey W. Kip andRbgistrant,

dated as of March 20, 2012.(1)

Employment Agreement between Gregg Winiarski aed th

Registrant, dated as of February 26, 2010.(1)

Google Services Agreement, dated as of Januar§QB, between

the Registrant and Google Inc.

Amendment No. 4 to Google Services Agreement, daseaf

April 1, 2011, between the Registrant and Googte In
Credit Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2012ngm

IAC/InterActiveCorp, as Borrower, the Lenders pattgreto,
JPMorgan Chase, Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agant the

other parties thereto.
Subsidiaries of the Registrant as of December 313%2)
Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.(2)

Certification of the Chairman and Senior Execupuesuant to
Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Securities ErgleaAct of 1934,
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb@rlkes- Act of

2002.(2)

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo Rule 13a-14
(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Ac%984, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002.(2)
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Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 30820

Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant's Annual Report onnk
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012.
Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 30820

Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Repart o
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 3D&0

Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Quarterly Repart o
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 320

Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Repart o
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31,120

Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant's Quarterly Repart o
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30
2005.

Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Repart o
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 309200
Exhibit 10.17 to the Registrant's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31020

Exhibit 99.1 to the Registrant's Current Reporfomm 8-
K, filed on December 20, 2013.

Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Repart o
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31,20

Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Quarterly Repart o
Form 10-Q for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012.

Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Quarterly Repart o
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31,0
Exhibit 10.25 to the Registrant's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 30820

Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Repart o
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 301201

Exhibit 10.20 to the Registrant's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31220
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32.1 Certification of the Chairman and Senior Execupwesuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Segfi6rof the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.(3)

32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9€¢&dbarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.(3)

101.INS XBRL Instance
101.SC+ XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation
Q) Reflects management contracts and management @aadodicompensatory pla

(2 Filed herewitt

3) Furnished herewit
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regigthas duly caused this report tc
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

February 26, 2014 IAC/INTERACTIVECORP
By: /sl JEFFREY W. KIP
Jeffrey W. Kip
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
of the Registrant and in the capacities indicate&ebruary 26, 2014 :

Signature Title
/sl BARRY DILLER Chairman of the Board, Senior Executive and Dinecto
Barry Diller
/s/ VICTOR A. KAUFMAN Vice Chairman and Director

Victor A. Kaufman

/sl JEFFREY W. KIP Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
Jeffrey W. Kip
/sl MICHAEL H. SCHWERDTMAN Senior Vice President and Controller (Chief AccanmiOfficer)

Michael H. Schwerdtman

/sl EDGAR BRONFMAN, JR. Director
Edgar Bronfman, Jr.

/s CHELSEA CLINTON Director
Chelsea Clinton

/s/ SONALI DE RYCKER Director
Sonali De Rycker

/sl MICHAEL D. EISNER Director
Michael D. Eisner

/s DONALD R. KEOUGH Director
Donald R. Keough

/sl BRYAN LOURD Director
Bryan Lourd
/sl ARTHUR C. MARTINEZ Director

Arthur C. Martinez

/s/ DAVID S. ROSENBLATT Director
David S. Rosenblatt

/sl ALAN G. SPOON Director
Alan. G. Spoon




/sl ALEXANDER VON FURSTENBERG Director

Alexander von Furstenberg

/sl RICHARD F. ZANNINO Director

Richard F. Zannino
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Schedule Il
IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Balance at
Beginning Charges to Charges to Balance at
Description of Period Earnings Other Accounts Deductions End of Period
(In thousands)

2013

Allowance for doubtful accounts and revenue

reserves $ 8,778 $ 1227t W § 564 $ (13,079 ® 8,54(
Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand

returns 2,31: 164 @ 45 (2,527 © —
Sales returns accrual 1,24¢ 19,17¢ — (29,217 1,20¢
Deferred tax valuation allowance 60,78 8,86¢ © (7,299 @ — 62,35:
Other reserves 1,92¢ 2,51¢
2012

Allowance for doubtful accounts and revenue

reserves $ 730¢ $ 122237 @ § 654 $ (11,429 ® ¢ 8,77t
Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand

returns — 10,42¢ @ 33 (8,14¢) © 2,31:
Sales returns accrual 1,02C 17,72¢ — (17,509 1,24¢
Deferred tax valuation allowance 45,08 9,32( @ 6,37¢ © — 60,78:
Other reserves 2,11¢ 1,92¢
2011

Allowance for doubtful accounts and revenue

reserves $ 884¢ $ 889t W § (329 $ (10,109 ® $ 7,30¢
Sales returns accrual 913 16,57 — (16,466€) 1,02(
Deferred tax valuation allowance 40,26¢ 573. O (914 @O — 45,08:
Other reserves 1,55¢ 2,11¢

@ Additions to the allowance for doubtful accounts aeharged to expense. Additions to the revenuewesare charged against reve

@ Additions to the magazine publishing allowancerfewsstand returns are related to magazine pubdjsitifNewsweek and are charged

(©)]

4)

)

(6)

@)

®)

against revenue. The Newsweek print business waasitioned to a digital only publication in DecemB612 (and was subsequently
sold in August 2013).

Amount is primarily related to foreign and fedemat operating losses, partially offset by a de@éasleferred tax assets for investme
in subsidiaries and available-for-sale securities.

Amount is primary related to the release of a imaallowance on unrealized gains on availablestae securities included in
accumulated other comprehensive income

Write-off of fully reserved accounts receival

Amount represents returns of magazines at NewsvildekNewsweek print business was transitioneddigigal only publication in
December 2012 (and was subsequently sold in AI]).

Amount is primarily related to an unbenefited ottten-temporary impairment charge related to a-H@ngn marketable equity security,
an increase in deferred tax assets for investniestsbsidiaries and an increase in federal netatiper losses.

Amount is primary related to unbenefited unrealilesses on available-for-sale securities includeadcumulated other comprehensive
income.
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©®  Amount is primarily related to losses from equitgtiod investment

@9 Amount is primary related to the net release ofvhleation allowance on net benefited losses fdr2inrealized gains on available-for-
sale securities included in accumulated other cehmgmsive income.
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Exhibit 10.6
Terms and Conditions for Stock Options Granted Undethe
IAC/InterActiveCorp 2013 Stock and Annual Incentive Plan
Overview

These Terms and Conditions apply to the grant tobyol AC/InterActiveCorp (“IAC” or the “Company”)yrsuant to Section 5 of the
IAC/InterActiveCorp 2013 Stock and Annual Incent®fan (the “2013 Plan”) of the right and optiong(ttstock Options”) to purchase the
number of shares of common stock of the Companyyalae $0.001 per share (the “Common Stock”)fath in your award notice (the
“Award Notice” and together with these Terms andhditions, the “Award Agreement”) at the exercise@mper share set forth in the Award
Notice. The Stock Options shall be Nonqualified iOqm. Unless earlier terminated pursuant to thmsesf your Award Agreement or the Pl
the Stock Options shall expire on the ten yeanaraary of your Award Date (the “Expiration Date”).

All capitalized terms used herein, to the extent rtadefined, shall have the meanings set forth in th2013 Plan.
Continuous Service

In order for your Stock Options to vest, you mustcbntinuously employed by IAC or one of its Sulzsids or Affiliates during the
Restriction Period (as defined below). NothinghistAward Agreement or the 2013 Plan shall confaruyou any right to continue in the
employ or service of IAC or any of its SubsidiargasAffiliates or interfere in any way with theiights to terminate your employment or sen
at any time.

Vesting

Subject to this Award Agreement and the Plan, y&tock Options shall vest and become exercisabteh(gariod prior to vesting is
the “Restriction Period”) as specified in your Awa¥otice.

Method of Exercise; Payment of the Exercise Price

The portion of your Stock Options that is vested/ina exercised by delivering to the Company orathent selected by IAC to
administer the 2013 Plan (the “Agent”) a writtemc{uding by way of electronic means) notice statimgnumber of whole shares to be
purchased pursuant to this Award Agreement, accamegdy payment of the full purchase price of thares of Common Stock to be
purchased. Your Stock Options may not be exer@asethy one time as to fewer than 100 shares (dr sumber of shares as to which the
Stock Options are then exercisable if less thar). Fa@ctional share interests shall be disregaededpt they may be accumulated.

The exercise price of the Stock Options shall bd:[{g in cash, by certified check or bank dradtypble to the order of the Company
or by way of such other instrument as the Compaay atcept from time to time; (ii) by exchange odirgls of unrestricted Common Stock of
the Company already owned by you and having aneagde Fair Market Value equal to the aggregatehasee price (which amount shall be
equal to the product of the exercise price mukiplby the number of shares of Common Stock in @sgevhich the Stock Options are being
exercised); provided, that you represent and watcathe Company that you hold the shares of Com8tonk free and clear of liens and
encumbrances; (iii) by delivering, along with appedy executed exercise notice to the Company pa obirrevocable instructions to a broker
to deliver promptly to the Company the aggregatr@se price and the amount of any applicable fddstate, local and/or foreign withhold|
taxes required to be withheld by the Company; gtedj however, that such exercise must be implerdesatiely under a program or
arrangement established and approved by the Conyiimpa brokerage firm selected by the Companyj\grby any other procedure appro\
by the Committee, or by a combination of the foiago

Termination of Employment

The treatment of your Stock Options upon the teatidm of your employment is set forth in this Awakdreement and the 2013 Plan.
Except as provided in this Award Agreement or ttPupon any Termination of Employment for anysagg any and all of your unvested
Stock Options will be forfeited and canceled inithe




entirety. Except as set forth below, upon a Tertiomeof Employment, that portion of the Stock Op8oif any, which is exercisable at the ti
of such Termination of Employment may be exercisdr to the first to occur of: (a) the $@lay after such Termination of Employment or
the Expiration Date and will thereafter be forfdignd canceled.

If: (i) your employment is terminated by IAC or aafits Subsidiaries or Affiliates for Cause ogdu resign in anticipation of being
terminated for Cause or (ii) if following any Temaition of Employment for any reason, IAC becomearavthat during the two (2) years prior
to such Termination of Employment there was an ewenircumstance that would have been groundgefonination for Cause that caused «
reasonably likely to cause meaningful damage (emdnyaeputational or otherwise) to IAC and/or affiyte Affiliates (the “Underlying
Event”), then: (a) all of your Stock Options (whetlor not vested) shall be forfeited and cancaletieir entirety and (b) if any portion of your
Stock Options were exercised after the Underlyingr, then IAC shall be entitled to recover fronuyai any time within two (2) years after
such exercise(s), and you shall pay over to IA@,gain realized as a result of such exercise(ds l#medy shall be without prejudice to, or
waiver of, any other remedies IAC and/or its Ats may have in such event.

In the event of a Termination of Employment dugdar death that portion of the Stock Options, if,amhich is exercisable at the
time of death may be exercised by your estate @& jpgrson who acquired the right to exercise stiebkSDptions by bequest or inheritance or
otherwise by reason of your death at any time gddhe first to occur of: (a) the first anniverngaff the date of death or (b) the Expiration Date
and will thereafter be forfeited and canceledhia ¢vent of a Termination of Employment due to yDisability or Retirement, that portion of
the Stock Options, if any, which is exercisabléhattime of such Termination of Employment for igidy or Retirement may be exercised by
you or your guardian or legal representative attamg prior to the first to occur of: (a) the fimtniversary of such Termination of Employrr
or (b) the Expiration Date and will thereafter beféited and canceled.

Taxes and Withholding

No later than the date as of which an amount ipeetsof the Stock Options first becomes includiblgour gross income for federal,
state, local or foreign income or employment oreotiax purposes, you shall pay to the Company d&enaarangements satisfactory to the
Committee regarding payment of any federal, stata| and/or foreign taxes of any kind requireddoy to be withheld with respect to such
amount and the Company shall, to the extent pexchiit required by law, have the right to deduatffiany payment of any kind otherwise due
to you (either directly or indirectly through itgent), federal, state, local and foreign taxesngfkind required by law to be withheld.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company shalébttled to hold the shares issuable to you upereiercise of your Stock Options (or
related proceeds) until the Company or the Agestrhaeived from you: (i) a duly executed Form WrW68, as applicable and (ii) payment
for any federal, state, local and/or foreign tagkany kind required by law to be withheld with pest to such Stock Options. Payment for any
federal, state, local and/or foreign taxes of aimgl knay be made in the same manner as paymertdaxercise price (as described above).

Adjustment in the Event of Change in Stock; Changén Control

Adjustment in the Event of Change in Sock. In the event of a stock dividend, stock split, meestock split, separation, spinoff,
reorganization, extraordinary dividend of cash thieo property, share combination, or recapitalmatr similar event affecting the capital
structure of IAC (each, a “Share Change”), the Cadtterm or the Board shall, in its sole discretioraka such substitutions or adjustments as it
deems appropriate and equitable to the number imddolk shares of Common Stock subject to your StOpkions and/or the exercise price per
share. In the event of a merger, consolidationyiattépn of property or shares, stock rights offigriliquidation, Disaffiliation, or similar event
affecting IAC or any of its Subsidiaries (eachGofporate Transaction”), the Committee or the Bamay, in its sole discretion, make such
substitutions or adjustments as it deems apprepaiatl equitable to the number and kind of shar€oaimon Stock subject to your Stock
Options and/or the exercise price per share. Ttermé@ation of the Committee regarding any suclistdjents will be final and conclusive ¢
need not be the same for all Stock Option awaripiets.




Changein Control. “Change in Control” is defined as set forth in #8413 Plan. The vesting of your Stock Options wilt he
accelerated upon a Change in Control of IAC. Howgivethe event you cease to be employed by elth@ror any of its Subsidiaries or
Affiliates within the two (2) year period following Change in Control of IAC as a result of: (ipemination by IAC or any of its Subsidiaries
or Affiliates without Cause or (ii) a resignatioy you for Good Reason, then upon the occurrenseicti event, 100% of your unvested Stock
Options shall automatically vest.

In addition, following a Termination of Employmemder these circumstances, your Stock Options raaxbrcised through the later
of: (i) the last date on which the Stock Optionaulgdbe exercisable in the absence of a Change mr@and (i) the earlier of: (A) the first
anniversary of the Change in Control and (B) thpiation Date and will thereafter be forfeited ar@hceled. For the avoidance of doubt, the
Disaffiliation of the Subsidiary, Affiliate or digion of IAC by which you are employed or for whigbu are performing services at the time of
such sale or other disposition by IAC shall be amer®d a Termination of Employmentdt a Change in Control) and shall be governed by th
applicable provisions of this Award Agreement amgl 2013 Plan; provided, that the Committee or tharB may deem it appropriate to make
an equitable adjustment to your Stock Options thaase.

Non-Transferability of Stock Options

Your Stock Options are non-transferable (includiggvay of sale, assignment, exchange, encumbratedge, hedge or otherwise)
by you other than by will or the laws of descend distribution or pursuant to a qualified domesgiations order, and your Stock Options may
be exercised, during your lifetime, only by youbgryour guardian or legal representative or anysferee described above.

No Rights as a Stockholder

Neither you nor any transferee of your Stock Optishall have rights as a stockholder (includingrityet to vote the shares
underlying your Stock Options and the right to reealividends) with respect to any shares covegesluzh Stock Options until you or your
transferee: (i) has given written notice of exerci{d) if requested, has given the representadiescribed in Section 14(a) of the Plan and (iii)
has paid in full for the shares issuable upon éserc

Payment of Transfer Taxes, Fees and Other Expenses

The Company agrees to pay any and all originakisaxes and stock transfer taxes that may be indpms¢he issuance of shares
acquired pursuant to exercise of your Stock Optitogether with any and all other fees and expensesssarily incurred by the Company in
connection therewith. Notwithstanding the foregoiypou shall be solely responsible for any otheesafincluding, without limitation, federal,
state, local or foreign income taxes, social séguMedicare and/or other similar taxes and/ortesta excise taxes) that may be payable as a
result of your participation in the Plan or as suteof the exercise of your Stock Options andher gale, disposition or transfer of any shares ¢
Common Stock acquired upon the exercise of yourkS@iptions.

Other Restrictions

The exercise of your Stock Options shall be sulifetite requirement that, if at any time the Cortemitshall determine that: (i) the
listing, registration or qualification of the sharaf Common Stock subject or related thereto upgnsacurities exchange or under any state ol
federal law or (ii) the consent or approval of @owernment regulatory body, is necessary or ddsi@da condition of, or in connection with,
such exercise or the delivery or purchase of sharesuant thereto, then in any such event, theceseeshall not be effective unless such list
registration, qualification, consent or approvalshave been effected or obtained free of any itmms not acceptable to the Committee.

Conflicts and Interpretation

In the event of any conflict between this Award égment and the 2013 Plan, the 2013 Plan shallaipptovided, that an action or
provision that is permissive under the terms of28&3 Plan, and required under this Award Agreensall not be deemed a conflict and this
Award Agreement shall control. In the event of anybiguity in this Award Agreement, or any mattegss@which this Award Agreement is
silent, the 2013 Plan shall




govern, including, without limitation, the provisis thereof pursuant to which the Committee haptiveer, among others, to: (i) interpret the
2013 Plan, (ii) prescribe, amend and rescind rahesregulations relating to the 2013 Plan andr(iike all other determinations deemed
necessary or advisable for the administration ef2013 Plan. In the event of any conflict betwdses Award Agreement (or any other
information posted on IAC’s extranet or given taiydirectly or indirectly through the Agent (incligj information posted on
www.benefitaccess.com)) and IAC’s books and records, or (i) ambiguitythis Award Agreement (or any other informatiorsteal on IAC's
extranet or given to you directly or indirectly dlugh the Agent (including information postedvanw.benefitaccess.com)), IAC’s books and
records shall control.

Amendment

IAC may modify, amend or waive the terms of yousc&t Options, prospectively or retroactively, butsuwh modification,
amendment or waiver shall materially impair yogghts without your consent, except as required Ipjiegble law, NASDAQ or stock
exchange rules, tax rules or accounting rules.\Wéiger by either party of compliance with any psion of this Award Agreement shall not
operate or be construed as a waiver of any otloxigion hereof.

Data Protection

The acceptance of your Stock Options constitutes gathorization of the release from time to timéAC or any of its Subsidiaries
Affiliates and to the Agent (together, the “Relev@ompanies”pf any and all personal or professional data thaecessary or desirable for
administration of your Stock Options and/or thenRllne “Relevant Information”). Without limiting ¢habove, this authorization permits your
employing company to collect, process, registerteamusfer to the Relevant Companies all Relevdtimation (including any professional ¢
personal data that may be useful or necessarphégpuirposes of the administration of your Stockiéyst and/or the Plan and/or to implement
or structure any further grants of equity awarélary)). The acceptance of your Stock Options atswstitutes your authorization of the tran:
of the Relevant Information to any jurisdictionvitich IAC, your employing company or the Agent ddess appropriate. You shall have
access to, and the right to change, the Relevéminhation, which will only be used in accordancehaapplicable law.



Exhibit 10.7
Terms and Conditions for Restricted Stock Units Grated Under the
IAC/InterActiveCorp 2013 Stock and Annual Incentive Plan

Overview

These Terms and Conditions apply to your awaresiricted stock units (the “Award”) granted purduanSection 7 of the
IAC/InterActiveCorp 2013 Stock and Annual Incent®ian (the “2013 Plan”)You were notified of your Award by way of an awaratice (the
“Award Notice”).

ALL CAPITALIZED TERMS USED HEREIN, TO THE EXTENT NO T DEFINED, SHALL HAVE THE MEANINGS SET
FORTH IN 2013 PLAN.
Continuous Service

In order for your Award to vest, you must be continsly employed by IAC or any of its Subsidiarieg\ffiliates during the
Restriction Period (as defined below). Nothing auy Award Notice, these Terms and Conditions or2®&3 Plan shall confer upon you any
right to continue in the employ or service of IACamy of its Subsidiaries or Affiliates or interéein any way with their rights to terminate y:
employment or service at any time.

Vesting

Subject to these Terms and Conditions and the B0ArR the restricted stock units (“RSUsY)respect of your Award shall vest anc
longer be subject to any restriction (such periodrdy which such restriction applies is the “Regton Period”) as specified in your Award
Notice.

Termination of Employment

The treatment of the RSUs in respect of your Awgrdn the termination of your employment is setifantthese Terms and Conditi
and the 2013 Plan. Except as set forth in your Avidatice, employment agreement (if applicable) @oty, upon any termination of your
employment with IAC or any of its Subsidiaries dfikates during the Restriction Period for any sea (including, for the avoidance of doubt,
due to your death or Disability) any unvested porivf your Award shall be forfeited and canceledsrentirety effective immediately upon
such event.

If: (i) your employment is terminated for Causefarou resign in anticipation of being terminatext Cause or (ii) if following any
termination of your employment for any reason, IB&omes aware that during the two (2) years poieuth termination of employment th
was an event or circumstance that would have bemmgs for termination for Cause that caused oeasonably likely to cause meaningful
damage (economic, reputational or otherwise) to &@/or any of its Affiliates (the “Underlying Evign(and which would not have been
curable upon notice), then: (a) your Award (whetbrenot vested) shall be forfeited and canceldtsientirety and (b) if your Award vested
after the Underlying Event, then IAC shall be édetitto recover from you at any time within two {®ars after such vesting, and you shall pay
over to IAC, any amounts realized as a result ohseesting. This remedy shall be without prejudigeor waiver of, any other remedies IAC
and/or its Subsidiaries and/or its Affiliates mawh in such event.

Settlement

Subject to your satisfaction of the tax obligatidescribed immediately below under “Taxes and WitHimg,” as soon as practicable
after any RSUs in respect of your Award have veatetlare no longer subject to the Restriction Besach RSUs shall be settled. For each
RSU settled, IAC shall: (i) if you are employed hitt the United States, issue one share of CommuaekSor each RSU vesting or (ii) if you
are employed outside the United States, pay, ssecube paid, to you an amount of cash equakté-#ir Market Value of one share of
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Common Stock for each RSU vesting. Notwithstandiggforegoing, IAC shall be entitled to hold theusds or cash issuable to you upon
settlement of all RSUs that have vested until IAGhe agent selected by IAC to administer the 2RtHd (the “Agent”) has received from you:
(i) a duly executed Form W-9 or \B/-as applicable or (ii) payment for any federtdfes local or foreign taxes of any kind requirgddw to be
withheld with respect to such RSUs.

Taxes and Withholding

No later than the date as of which an amount ipeesof any RSUs first becomes includible in yorosg income for federal, state,
local or foreign income or employment or other paxposes, IAC or its Subsidiaries and/or Affiliagksll, unless prohibited by law, have the
right to deduct any federal, state, local or foneigxes of any kind required by law to be withhelth respect to such amount due to you,
including deducting such amount from the delivefrgltares or cash issued upon settlement of the R&llgives rise to the withholding
requirement. In the event shares are deductedveer ¢ax withholdings, the number of shares withrehdll generally have a Fair Market Value
equal to the aggregate amount of IA®'ithholding obligation. If the event that any Buteduction and/or withholding is prohibited by |awu
shall, prior to or contemporaneously with the vesitr your RSUs, pay to IAC, or make arrangemeaisfactory to IAC regarding the
payment of, any federal, state, local or foreigresaof any kind required by law to be withheld wiéspect to such amount.

Adjustment in the Event of Change in Stock; Changén Control

Adjustment in the Event of Change in Sock. In the event of a stock dividend, stock split, meestock split, separation, spinoff,
reorganization, extraordinary dividend of cash thieo property, share combination, or recapitalmatr similar event affecting the capital
structure of IAC (each, a “Share Change”), the Catter or the Board shall, in its sole discretioraka such substitutions or adjustments as it
deems appropriate and equitable to the number tfisR@®derlying your Award and the number and kindtedres of Common Stock
underlying such RSUs. In the event of a mergersalitation, acquisition of property or shares, ktaghts offering, liquidation, Disaffiliatior
or similar event affecting IAC or any of its Sulisiges (each, a “Corporate Transaction”), the Cottemior the Board may, in its sole
discretion, make such substitutions or adjustmasitis deems appropriate and equitable to the nuoftREUs underlying your Award and the
number and kind of shares of Common Stock undeglgich RSUs. The determination of the Committeandigg any such adjustments will
be final and conclusive and need not be the samaIfRSU award recipients.

Change in Control. “Change in Control” is defined as set forth in ®lan. The vesting of your Award will not be accated upon a
Change in Control of IAC. However, in the eventtthau cease to be employed within the two (2) yesaiod following a Change in Control of
IAC as a result of: (i) a termination without Caus(ii) your resignation for Good Reason, then%0&f your Award shall vest in one lump
sum installment as of the date of such event. Tiaffiliation of the business or subsidiary of 14§ which you are employed or for which y
are performing services at the time of such sakloer disposition by IAC shall be considered anfieation of Employment iiot a Change in
Control of IAC) and shall be governed by the apilie provisions of the 2013 Plan and the provisienforth under the caption “Termination
of Employment” above; provided, however, that tlemnittee or the Board may deem it appropriate tkaran equitable adjustment to the
number of RSUs and the number and kind of shar&nofmon Stock underlying the RSUs underlying yowa#d.

Non-Transferability of the RSUs

Until such time as your RSUs are ultimately setttedy shall not be transferable by you by mearsats, assignment, exchange,
encumbrance, pledge, hedge or otherwise.

No Rights as a Stockholder

Except as otherwise specifically provided in th&2@lan, unless and until your RSUs are settled,sjm@ll not be entitled to any rig
of a stockholder with respect to the RSUs (inclgdime right to vote the shares underlying your R8kks the right to receive dividends).
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Other Restrictions

The RSUs shall be subject to the requirement that,any time the Committee shall determine tkiathe listing, registration or
qualification of the shares of Common Stock subjeatlated thereto upon any securities exchangmaoer any state or federal law, or (ii) the
consent or approval of any government regulatodybis necessary or desirable as a condition oin(oonnection with) the delivery of shar
then in any such event, the award of RSUs shalbaddffective unless such listing, registratiorgliication, consent or approval shall have
been effected or obtained free of any conditiortsacoeptable to the Committee.

Conflicts and Interpretation

In the event of any conflict between these Ternts@anditions and the 2013 Plan, the 2013 Plan sbalirol; provided, that an acti
or provision that is permissive under the termthef2013 Plan, and required under these Terms anditibns, shall not be deemed a conflict
and these Terms and Conditions shall control. énetvent of any ambiguity in these Terms and Comliti or any matters as to which these
Terms and Conditions are silent, the 2013 Plar gbakern including, without limitation, the provisis thereof pursuant to which the
Committee has the power, among others, to: (iyjpmé&t the 2013 Plan, (ii) prescribe, amend andimdsailes and regulations relating to the
2013 Plan and (iii) make all other determinatioesrded necessary or advisable for the administrafitine 2013 Plan. In the event of any
conflict between your Award Notice (or any othefiormation posted on IAC’s extranet or given to yirectly or indirectly through the Agent
(including information posted amww.benefitaccess.com)) and IAC’s books and records, or (ii) ambiguitythe Award Notice (or any other
information posted on IAC’s extranet or given taiydirectly or indirectly through the Agent (inclidj information posted on
www.benefitaccess.com)), IAC’s books and records shall control.

Amendment

IAC may modify, amend or waive the terms of yourllBSprospectively or retroactively, but no such ificdtion, amendment or
waiver shall materially impair your rights withogur consent, except as required by applicable B&4SDAQ or stock exchange rules, tax
rules or accounting rules.

Data Protection

The acceptance of your RSUs constitutes your alzitton of the release from time to time to IACamy of its Subsidiaries or
Affiliates and to the Agent (together, the “Relev@vompanies”pf any and all personal or professional data thaecessary or desirable for
administration of your RSUs and/or the 2013 Plae (Relevant Information”). Without limiting the ate, this authorization permits your
employing company to collect, process, registertaamusfer to the Relevant Companies all Relevdiatrimation (including any professional ¢
personal data that may be useful or necessarphéopurposes of the administration of your RSUsa@mithe 2013 Plan and/or to implement or
structure any further grants of equity awardsiif)}y. The acceptance of your RSUs also constitydes authorization of the transfer of the
Relevant Information to any jurisdiction in whicAC, your employing company or the Agent considgusrapriate. You shall have access to,
and the right to change, the Relevant Informatwamich will only be used in accordance with appliealaw.

Section 409A of the Code

Your Award is not intended to constitute “nonqualif deferred compensation” within the meaning aft®a 409A of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the rulegguladtions issued thereunder (“Section 409A"rcérdingly, if any amounts or benefits
payable in respect of your Award are: (i) payalgerua termination of employment and (ii) if you ar&Specified Employee’as defined und:
Section 409A) as of the date of your terminatioemiployment, then such amounts or benefits (if ahg)l be paid or provided to you in a
single lump sum on the earlier of (i) the first deythe seventh month following your terminationeshployment or (ii) your death.




In no event shall IAC be required to pay you ango$-up” or other payment with respect to any taxgsenalties imposed under
Section 409A with respect to any amounts or bexigfiid to you in respect of your Award.



Entity

IAC/InterActiveCorp Subsidiaries
As of December 31, 2013

Exhibit 21.1

Jurisdiction of Formation

8831-8833 Sunset, LLC

About Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

About International

About, Inc.

Alpha411 Agency Services, LLC
APN, LLC
ApplianceAppointment.com, LLC
Aqua Acquisition Holdings LLC
Ask Applications, Inc.
AutoGlassSearch.com, LLC
AutoRepairLocal, LLC

Buzz Technologies, Inc.

CH Pacific, LLC
ChiroAppointment.com, LLC
CityGrid Media, LLC
CollegeHumor Press LLC
Comedy News Ventures, Inc.
Connect, LLC

Connected Ventures, LLC
ConsumerSearch, Inc.
CraftJack Inc.

CV Acquisition Corp.

Daily Burn, Inc.
DatingDirect.com Limited
Delightful.com, LLC

Diamant Production Services, LLC
Dictionary.com, LLC

ECS Sports Fulfillment LLC
Electus Productions, LLC
Electus, LLC

Elicia Acquisition Corp.

ES1 Productions, LLC

ES2 Productions, LLC

Failure to Appear Productions, LLC
Falcon Holdings Il, LLC

FC & Co

Felix Calls, LLC

Five Star Matchmaking Information Technology (Begjj Co., Ltd.

Gym Interactive, LLC
Hatch Labs, Inc.

High Line Venture Partners Follow On Fund GP, LLC

Delaware

People’s Republic of China

Cayman Islands
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Washington
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Maryland
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

lllinois
Delaware
Delaware

United Kingdom
Delaware
Delaware
California
Delaware
California
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

France
Delaware

People’s Republic of China

New York
Delaware
Delaware




Entity Jurisdiction of Formation

High Line Venture Partners Follow On Fund, L.P. Delaware
High Line Venture Partners GP I, LLC Delaware
High Line Venture Partners GP, LLC Delaware
High Line Venture Partners II, L.P. Delaware
High Line Venture Partners, L.P. Delaware
Home Industry Leadership Board Colorado
HomeAdvisor B.V. Netherlands
HomeAdvisor, Inc. Delaware
HSN Capital LLC Delaware
HSN Home Shopping Network GmbH Germany
HSN, LLC Delaware
HTRF Ventures, LLC Delaware
Humor Rainbow, Inc. New York
IAC 19" St. Holdings, LLC Delaware
IAC Falcon Holdings, LLC Delaware
IAC Family Foundation, Inc. Delaware
IAC Search & Media (Canada) Inc. Canada
IAC Search & Media B.V. Netherlands
IAC Search & Media Deutschland GmbH Germany
IAC Search & Media Europe Limited Ireland
IAC Search & Media Hong Kong, Limited Hong Kong
IAC Search & Media International, Inc. Delaware
IAC Search & Media Massachusetts, Inc. Massachusetts
IAC Search & Media Technologies Limited Ireland
IAC Search & Media UK Limited United Kingdom
IAC Search & Media Washington, LLC Washington
IAC Search & Media, Inc. Delaware
IAC Search, LLC Delaware
IAC Shopping International, Inc. Delaware
ImproveNet, Inc. Delaware
Insider Pages, Inc. Delaware
InstantAction, LLC Delaware
InterActiveCorp Films, Inc. Delaware
InterActiveCorp Films, LLC Delaware
InterCaptiveCorp, Ltd. Bermuda
Internet Shopping Network LLC Delaware
iWon Points LLC New York
La Centrale des Marchés Privés S.ar.l. France
Life123, Inc. Delaware
LocalEyeCare.com, LLC Delaware
LocalPodiatry.com, LLC Delaware
LocalVets.com, LLC Delaware
Lucky Morning Productions, LLC Delaware
M8 Singlesnet LLC Delaware
Magnusville Limited Cayman Islands
Maker Shack, LLC California
Massive Media Europe NV Belgium
Massive Media Limited United Kingdom

Massive Media Match NV Belgium






Entity

Jurisdiction of Formation

Match ProfilePro, LLC

Match.com Canada Ltd.

Match.com Europe Limited
Match.com Events LLC

Match.com France Ltd.

Match.com Global Investments SARL
Match.com Global Services Limited
Match.com HK Limited

Match.com International Holdings, Inc.

Match.com International Ltd.
Match.com Investments, Inc.
Match.com Japan KK

Match.com Japan Networks GK
Match.com LatAm Ltd.
Match.com Nordic AB

Match.com Offshore Holdings, Ltd
Match.com Pegasus Limited
Match.com, Inc.

Match.com, L.L.C.

Matvin, LLC

Meetic Espana, SLU

Meetic Italia SRL

Meetic Netherlands BV

Meetic SA

Mile High Insights, LLC
Mindspark Interactive Network, Inc.
MM LatAm, LLC

Mojo Acquisition Corp.

Neu.de GmbH

Newsweek Philippines Inc.
Nexus Dating Limited

Notional, LLC

NRelate LLC

Parperfeito Comunicacao SA
People Media, Inc.

People Media, LLC

Performance Vertical Marketing LLC
Picnic, LLC

Pronto, LLC

Rebel Entertainment, Inc.

Rio Bravo Productions, LLC
Riviere Productions

Search Floor, Inc.

ServiceMagic Canada Inc.
ServiceMagic Europe S.ar.l.
ServiceMagic GmbH
ServiceMagic International S.ar.l.
ServiceMagic IP Ireland Limited
ServiceMagic Limited

Delaware
Canada
United Kingdom
Delaware
France
Luxembourg
United Kingdom
Hong Kong
Delaware
United Kingdom
Cayman Island
Japan
Japan
United Kingdom
Sweden
Mauritius
United Kingdom
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Spain
Italy
Netherlands
France
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Germany
Philippines
United Kingdom
Delaware
Delaware
Brazil
Delaware
Arizona
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
California
California
Canada
Luxembourg
Germany
Luxembourg
Ireland
United Kingdom






Entity

Jurisdiction of Formation

Shoebuy.com Europe Limited
Shoebuy.com, Inc.
Shoptouch, Inc.

Soulmates Limited

Soulmates Technology Pty Ltd.
SpeedDate.com, LLC

Starnet Interactive Ltd.
Starnet Interactive, Inc.
StorageReserve.com, LLC
Styleclick Chicago, Inc.
Styleclick, Inc.

Styleclick.com Enterprises Inc.
TanningNearYou.com, LLC
Targeted Media Solutions LLC
TDB Holdings, Inc.

The Daily Beast Company LLC
The IAC Foundation, Inc.
Tinder, Inc.

TMC Realty, L.L.C.

Triple Threat Marketing, LLC
Tutor.com, Inc.
TVRepairMan.com, LLC
uDate.com Ltd.

USA Electronic Commerce Solutions LLC
USA Video Distribution LLC
USANi LLC

USANi Sub LLC
VenuesNearYou.com, LLC
Vimeo, LLC

Wanderspot LLC

Werkspot BV

Yext Advertising, LLC

Yext Countertops, LLC

Yext Voice, LLC

England and Wales
Delaware
Delaware

New Zealand

New South Wales Australia
Delaware
Israel
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
California
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
United Kingdom

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Washington

Netherlands
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference irfélewing registration statements (and any amenumshereto) of
IAC/InterActiveCorp of our reports dated FebruaBy 2014, with respect to the consolidated finansalements and schedule of
IAC/InterActiveCorp, and the effectiveness of imi@rcontrol over financial reporting of IAC/InterfieeCorp, included in this Annual Report
(Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2013.

COMMISSION FILE NO.:

Form S-8, No. 333-127410
Form S-8, No. 333-127411
Form S-4, No. 333-124303
Form S-8, No. 333-146940
Form S-8, No. 333-154875
Form S-8, No. 333-174538
Form S-8, No. 333-192186

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

New York, New York
February 26, 2014



Exhibit 31.1

Certification
I, Barry Diller, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this report on Form K @er the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 @;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary tc

make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedarecaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over finanogdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

C) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrati$slosure controls and procedures and presentesi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegtgnt's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regig's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeatf, the registrant's internal control over finahceéporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent el@tuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thdataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cboirer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@niifiole in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Dated: February 26, 2014 /sl BARRY DILLER

Barry Diller
Chairman and Senior Executive




Exhibit 31.2

Certification
I, Jeffrey W. Kip, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this report on Form K @er the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 @;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact otamstate a material fact necessary tc

make the statements made, in light of the circuntgtsiunder which such statements were made, nistadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrare responsible for establishing and maintaimiisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report ishg prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over finanogdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratigslosure controls and procedures and presentsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contints procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehlis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegignt's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regis's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent ev@tuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakres in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial
information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedyunanagement or other employees who have a s@nifiole in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Dated: February 26, 2014 /sl JEFFREY W. KIP

Jeffrey W. Kip
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Barry Diller, certify, pursuant to Section 906the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Secti®b0, that, to my knowledge:

Q) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisgalr ended December 31, 2013 of IAC/InterActiveQoine "Report™) which this
statement accompanies fully complies with the nexments of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securkirshange Act of 1934

(15 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)); and
(2) the information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finaraaldition and results of operations of

IAC/InterActiveCorp.

Dated: February 26, 2014 /s/ BARRY DILLER
Barry Diller
Chairman and Senior Executive




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jeffrey W. Kip, certify, pursuant to Section 966the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. $ecti350, that, to my knowledge:

(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fisgalr ended December 31, 2013 of IAC/InterActiveQoine "Report™) which this
statement accompanies fully complies with the nexments of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securkirshange Act of 1934

(15 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)); and

(2) the information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finaramaldition and results of operations of
IAC/InterActiveCorp.
Dated: February 26, 2014 /sl JEFFREY W. KIP

Jeffrey W. Kip
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



